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INTRODUCTORY

The stary of the Benders in Kansas, und the
dreadful murders committed by that family, has
often heen writlen, and in many different forms.
The horrible detnils are fumiliar to the people
who lived in Kansas and the West during 1873,
and for muny yemrs thereafter.

Of thebr “deeds most terrible,’” it is said that the
first news given to the world, was published Muy
10, 1873, and that the story of the “devilish”
crimes of the Benders was obtained from a passen-
ger conductor on n Southern Kansas railroad,
three days after the flight of the criminnls, This
was quite rapld in those days of limited telegraph
facilitics.

The story itsell, seems like the reeital of some
dremm, in which nightmare mirrors upon the dis-
ordered brain, 0 countless number of monstrous
and unusual things,  Yet, the story is ns true
as the sun.  Fictlon tells of no more horrid,
ntrocious crimes, than those committed by the
Benders,  The memory of the offenses of those
murderers stands yet, n4 a crimson blot upon
the pagcs of the history of that part of the West.

Whether the Benders were vvertaken and exter-
minated by a posse, or whether they succeeded in
making their escape, have been mooted questions
ever since Lheir flight was discovered. Over and
over ngnin, has the stalement been printed, that
the Benders were all shot to death.,  Another
story is told, that they were overtaken in the
Indinn Territory and speedily lynched., Others
just as positively declare that the Benders escaped
and were not eaptured.

On the day that the discoveries were made at
the Bender House and the bodies of the victims
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were exhumed, a number of well-nrmed, deler-
mined men organized a posse, prepared to follow
the flecing family of murderers and at once started
in pursuit. Shortly wfter the discovery of these
Bender murders, in 1873, the New York Ledger
published the very grutifying narrative that all
of the Benders were shot to death. ‘That story
50 t?lmsr::d the people, and it scemed such a fitting
and just retribution for these crimes, that nearly
everybody nccepted that statement withoul ques-
tioning ils correctness.  Papers all over the coun-
try published that Ledger report of the ense, and
it was accepled as news, believed by most people,
For many years following that report the Benders
were permitted to slumber in silent oblivion, in the
minds of the people, along with their many vic-
tims.

Sixteen years later, in 1889, that repose was
disturbed by a clew furnished through a woman,
at McPherson, Kansas, which led to the identi-
fication of tlwo women, then living in Michigan,
as old Mrs. Bender and her daughter, Kate Ben-
der.  These two women were arrested in Mich-
igan and with requisition papers an officer took
them Lo Oswcgm\'amq. charged with the mur-
der of Dr., William Il. York.

From Lestimony given in court by many former
ncighbors of the Benders, when that family lived
in Kansas, as wilnesses at Oswego; from state-
ments of fact made by persons who claimed to
have positive knowledge; from Governor Oshorn’s
Proclamation issued at the time of the flight of
the Benders; from Court records, officinl certil-
icates, aflidavits, and numerous letters; from man-
ifold articles published in different newspnpers at
various times, in ditferent localities, nnd by per-
sonal interviews with severnl members of the
posses which purmsued the flecing eriminals, has
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bhreen obtnined Lhe faets which are written here,
and it is nol fletion.

All the story of the Benders in Kansas is pre-
sented In this book,

The unreliability of human lestimony, the Len-
deney and ease of mistaken identity, the difficulty
of establishing nn alibi and the abnormal desire
for criminul notoriety in some human minds, are
lessons Lo be learned by the perusal of this book.

The general reader will enjoy Lhis slory with
avidity of fiction; the aclive lawyer will gather
many Lthoughts of use in trinl of cases, while the
Inw sludent may glean much beneficial knowl-
cdge; all will read this book with interest and be
glnd of its perusal,

The evidence is here presented and the case
submitted, upon which the reader may render
verdict, as should each juror in a case, from the
preponderance of the testimony.

That verdict should answer the question:
Whether the Benders were overtaken and exter-
minated.
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CHADTIER .
The New Arrirals.,

In the latter part of the year 1870, there came
into the north-west part of Labette County, Kan-
sy, four persons constituting one fiymily—an old
man, an okl woman, a young man,
‘woman, who lived together and werep known by
the name of Beuder.  1Bach of the mdnp was called
John, nnd each woman was called Kanle, The old
cnupfu Hved together ag hushand and wife, and the
young man and woman were repuled to be the
son and dnughter of the older people.

The old man, John Bender, Sr., was a Hollander
Il%y birth. He had lived in Germany near the

rench line, where he conducted a bakery. He
sald he had lived in America for several years
prior (0 1870. He was nbout sixty yenrs old, five
feet, nine or ten inches in height, square-shoul-
dered, just n little stooped, of spare build, dark
complexion, very rough in munner, hnd no whisk-
crs, spoke very ()iLLIe English, and what he did say
was very broken, with a strong German accent.

The wife, Knte Bender, Sr., was about fifly
yeurs of age, rather heavy set, had blue eyes set
close together—unplensantly so—and brown hair
slightly tinged with grey. Her countenance was
uninviting. She was dccidcdl;.' German and
(alked the German language.  When she attempt-
ed to use Lthe English langunge it was very broken,
so much so that most persons eoutld not understand
what she sald at all.

The younger man, John Beader, Jr., was also
known ns John Gebhardt. 1t is & mooted ques-
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tion whether he was the son of the old peuple.
He was flve feet, elght or nine inches Lall, of slight
build, had grey cyes with a  brownish tint,
brown hair, light moustache, no whiskers, was
nbout Lwenty-seven years of age and spoke the
EEnglish language wﬁh a German accent. He
may have been born in the United States,
The young woman, Kale Bender, Jr., was be-
Lween cighteen and twenty-four years of age. Her
hair was a dark, rich auburn. She had deep, grey-
ish-blue, or dark-grey eyes. She was over med-
ium height, some flve feet, six or seven inches Lall,
slender, well-formed, voluptuous mold, fair skin,
white ns milk, rose complexion. She was good-
looking, n remarkably handsome woman, rather
bold and strlking In appearance, with a tigerish
grace and animal attraction, which butl few man
could resist.  She was a fluent Lalker, giflted with
finc conversational powers, but she did not dis-
play any educationnl advantages of a high order.
She used good English with very little, il any,
German accent.  She was n Spiritualist, occasion-
ally giving scunces and leeturing on that subject.
Her success in the leelure fleld was not sufficient
to encournge her to continue that work. She
clnimed to be n Medium. She would go into a
trance and call up the spirits of departed loved
ones for the neighbors.  In her leetures she boldly
advocated free love and pleaded justification for
murder. |
Some people believed that she was o paramour
of John, Jr., nnd that she was not his sister, as was
rencrully supposed by the neighbors. She was a
good horseback rider and she danced well. She
altended Sunday-school and “meelin's’” at the
Carpenter schoof-house often. She served ns din-
In% room girl aL Lthe Cherryvale Hotel in 1871.
ome of the nelghbors called Kate "n she-devil.”
The light which ot times flashed from her hard,
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steel-greyish blue or dark-grey eyes was sinister
and {orbidding. Her rather tall form seemed Lo
lift up. when the spiritualistic inlluence Look pos-
session of her, and to become gigantic in ils pro-
portions, while she appeared supernatural,  She
dealt with incantations, boiling herbs and roots,
which she cluimed had charms and spells about
them for cures. |

Her will was indomitable and all of the family
feared her, dreaded her, obeyed her, and did the
“devilish’' work that she required of each of Lhem.
She was the ruler of the houschold nnd directed:
the actions of each one, whether Lhat was lor good
or for evil—-most usually for evil.  She was qual-
ificd for deeds of any nature, even to the taking
of human life.  She had the disposition to use any
means, Lo go to any extremes of nction to accom-
plish her desires and secure the end of her purpose
as she willed.

She had a great desire for notoriety, longed to
become a great lecturer, and she possessed an in-
satiable eraving to gain wealth, money and pos-
ition. With her, any means justified the end (o
get money.

It was believed by many, after the discovery
of the awful crimes which were commitled by the
Benders, that Kate had struck blows with Lhe
hammer to crush the victim's skull, of which acl
she was clearly capable.

IL is very probable that John, Jr., was the son
of old Mrs. Bender by a former husband, whose
name was Gebhardt, Hence the nnme J ohn Geb-
hardt by which John, Jr., was nlso known. I
that be true, John, Jr., and Kale, Jr., were only
half brother and sister, if they were at all related.
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CHAPTIEIER 1.

Localion,

During the first ten days after the arrival of
the Benders in Labette County, they lived on Lhe
claim of Rudolph Brockmann, 2 German. Within
that time they built o small log house on the
qunt ler-seetion Lo Lthe south-west of Brockmann.
I'he log house was built on the North-enst quarter
of Secelion T'wenty-Lhiree, in Township Thirty-one
South, Range Seventeen, Fast, which wus the
elaim of Naurice Sparks, who was at that Llime
nbsent, and had been Tor nearly a year. This
claim cornered with that of Brockmann on the
south-west. The Benders moved into that log
house when completed, and lived in it through the
winler of 1870-1871.

Learning Lthat Sparks had not relinquished his
clnim, but would return soon to live on it, the
Benders made a location.  John Bender, Sr., filed
on the North-east quarter of Section Thirteen,
Township Thirty-one South, Range Seventleen,
Fust, in Labette County, Kansas.

The Brockmann clnim was the South-west quar-
ter of Seetion Thirteen, The Brockmann claim
und John Bender, Sr,, claim touched at the cor-
ners.  That made them near neighbors.

John Bender, Jr., alias John }cthnrdt, filed on
on the South-enst quarter of Seetion ‘T'welve, in
the snme Township and Range, ndjoining the
¢lnlm of John Nender, Sr., on the north.

Upon the claim of John Bender, Sr., while they
were living in the log house, the Benders bhuilt
frame house.  When it was completed they moved
intoit, and all lived together there.  John Bender,
Jr., did not live on his claim nor make any im-
wovemenl upon it.  lle made his home with the
Jender family in the new frume house.

These claims were situnted upon high, rolling
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prairie.  The new house was built in a slight de-
Prcsslon at the foot of u long vale in the prairie.

his vale led towards n small stream near the
house, ulong which n heavy growth of wild plums
nnd collonwood” trees, with underbrush, was
standing and hordered the stream for some dis-
tance,

This new Bender house was about twelve miles
wesl of Parsons, seven miles north-east of Cherry-
vale, and ten miles south of Thayer. The Neosho
County line was Lwo miles north, and the Mont-
gomery Counly line was four miles west. QOsage
Township was the north-west Township of Labette
County. Oswepo, the county-scal, is about
Lwenty-five miles from the Benders. Moorehead
#lotion on the Sunla Fe railrond is about Lwo miles
north-west,

At the time the Benders Jived in this house,
well-traveled road crossed Lthe prairie and ran
nlmost cast to west past Lhis house, This was the
main rond from Parsons to Cherryvale. L was
nlso the road principally used by travelers going
from Fort Scoll and Osage Mission Lo Independ-
ence, and the Indian Territory to the south-wesl.

DBender House.

The Benders moved into the new house in the
Spring of 1871 and lived in it until their sudden
departure in the Spring of 1873, This house
was n frame, sixleen by Lwenty feel in size, and it
had o shingle roof. A row of studding was sel
ucross near Lhe centler to divide the house into
Lwo rooms. ‘The front room was smaller than the
rear room. This fronl room was used as the liv-
ing, cooking, and dining room and also ns a small
slore,

To the right of the door in the front room enter-
ing from the road were rows of shelves upon which
wns kepl the small stock of canned and other
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goods for sale. To the left of this door a table
always stood.  Along the side of this tnble next
the partition was placed n beneh, on which per-
sons sat when enting meals at that table.

The rear room was used ns a sleeping room onnd
was scantily furnished. The only partition be-
tween the two rooms was the row of studding upon
which a curtain or wagon cover about cight feet
long was fastened at the top and hung loose to the
bottom. At the end of this curtain, near the cen-
ter of the row of studding, one of Lhe studding wis
left out or removed to make n doorway Lhrough
the partition between the two rooms. Al the right
of this doorway, but close Lo it, in the floor of Lhe
rear room, was a trap door through the floor by
which communication was had with the cellar
under the house, fram the inside. This wns n
circular cellar about six feet in depth and a little
more than six feet in diameter.  From this cellar
a narrow passage, just wide enough to admit Lhe
body of a man along it, led under the rear room
floor to the outside at the rear of the house.

A garden and orchard of small trees was loeated
a short distance back from the rear of the house.

The only other building upon the place was a
sod stable large enough to accomodate severul
head of horses. In it were places to hang harness,
saddles, and other usunl articles belonging to n
team when used, or to u harse under saddle.

Recady for Business.

The Bender House, located as it was upon the
main travelled road, at the point where the trav-
cler would stop about noon for dinner, or those
reaching there late at evening would slop for Lhe
night, taking supper, bed and breakfast, began
businecss as soon as the Bender family had moved
into it. The store was n very convenient place
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for Lhe traveling public, as well as for neighbors,
to buy such goorls as were kept there for sale.

CHAPTER II1.

Life in @ New Country.

For daily life, the settler, or clnim holder, was
occupied in the various ways necessary Lo make a
home in that newly-scttled country. They plow-
¢d, harrowed, sowed, planted, cultivated, reaped,
harvested and gathered, or “shucked’’ the corn.
They cutl the prairle grass, cured and stacked it
for hay. They made garden, set out fruit Lrees,
took care of stock by herding upen the prairie and,
sometimes, feeding hay and grain.

Often they were away from home for days and
weeks atn time, Lo do work by which Lo earn
money to enable them to live until the claim be-
came a farm to afford menns of support and require
all of their time,

Neightors.

All who held clnims and lived within ten miles
of each other were neighbors, taking friendly inter-
est, very socinl and often visiting with cach other,
and especinlly in ense of sickness were Lhey ready
imld only too willing to lend neighborly aid and
wlp.

Life of the Benders.

The Bender family led the usunl life of the new
settler, ndding to it the entertainment of travelers
for compensation, and they kept n small stock of
goodds Lo sell Lo Lhose who came to buy, whether
it were the traveler or a neighbor.

The old man Bender and his wife were always
ahout the plnce.  John Bender, Jr,, was frequent-
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ly away for days al a time, but that attructed no
parlicular atlention as that was usual and a part
of the settiler life in the new country. Kale was
often away, golng to nearby lowns Lo give sean-
ces, Lo leelure, nnd at one time to work as a dining-
room girl in Cherryvale. Sometitnes John, Jr.,
and Kate were seen in the nelghborhood together,
bul most often Knte waus seen going about alone,
Lo the neighbors' houses, atlending Sunday-school
and meetings. She also went to dances.

In 1871, Kale worked as n waitress in the din-
ing-room of n hotel in Cherryvale for about six
weeks, C. W. Booth was cook at thatl hotel at
that time and he beeame well acquainted with
Kuate. He went with her to a dance at Big Hill
in 1872 and danced with her,  She was a good
dancer.

Travelers Entertained.

During the two years Lthe Benders lived in that
house, many stopped and had dinner, while many
olhers were Lhere during the night, sleeping in a
bed in that rear room.

Some of Lhose went Lthere never Lo go away, but
to mysleriously disappear and not be seen again.

CHAPTEER 1V,
The Bender Neighbors.

Rudolph Brockmann, a German, lived about
n hall-mile south-west of the Bender House. He
was often at that house, saw anll of them, and con-
versed wilth them in the German language. |

Silny Toles lived about half a mile west, He
hought goods of the Benders during the Lwo years
they lived there, saw John and Kate often, and in
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1872 he walked from campmeeting with Kale nnd
had a long talk.

Gearge Frye lived n hall mile south, and fre-
quently bought goods at the store during the Lwo
years the Benders Hved there,

Thomas Jeans lived o mile south-east, saw them
building the new frame house, was often at Lhe
Bender House and sold them wood up to the time
they left.

Maurice Sparks lived a mile south-west, adjoin-
ing Mr. Brockmann, on the cluim where the Ben-
ders built the log house.  He was at the Bender
store several times during the two years they lived
there, and he knew John, Jr., quite well. M,
Bender was alwnys at the store and he saw Kale
at home at work, plainly but cheaply dressed.
He met Kate along the road and saw {;er at meet-
ings. There she was well dressed.  He said Kate
was a sprightly, active girl.

Michael Hilf. a near neighbor west, often saw
them at home

David Monahan, Mr. Lindsay, and Mr. Linn
lived near, south-cast, and cach had seen the Ben-
ders a number of times. _

Mrs. Dientz, Mrs. Delin Keek, and Mr. Boyd
were each near neighbors and often saw the dif-
ferent members of the Bender family.

Dr. G. B. Smith lived two and one-hall miles
south-cast. He met both Mms. Bender and Kate
several times at the houses of neighbors helping
care for the sick when he called to treal palients.

William Dick was a Pennsylvanin Dutchman,
who, with his son, T. C. Dick, lived three miles
south-east of the Benders. Both often saw the
Benders,

Sunday-school Girl,

Mri, Delin Keck met Kate in a clogs al Sunday-
school during 1872 in the Carpenter school-house,
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severnl different times.  Kale was very altenlive.
She also saw Kate at meetings in Lhe same place,
and met Kate Lwice nt Mrs, Dientz’s on Sunday
afternoons when Kalte called there.

Medinm,

Kule elnimed to be a Spiritualist Medium and
was ready to call up the spirit of M. Keck's
husband, but Mm. Keek would nol consent. Mrs,
Dientz saw Kale twice at her house and once in
the wagon with John, Jr., during 1872. Kale told
NMrs. Dientz she was willing o call up the spirit of
Mmi. Dientz's son, but made no further attempt
when told to let all of the Dientz relatives alone,
whether dead or alive. |

\isitor to the Sick.

Dr. GG. W. Gabriel met both Mrs. Bender and
Kute at neighbors' during 1872 and 1873 when he
wns called there Lo treat patients. Both were at
the bedslde of the sick aiding in caring for the
patient. He met Kate at Parsons, also, when she
was there on one of her lecture tours.

William Dick herded cattle on the prairie near
the Bender place during the years 1872-1873. He
wans a1 Lancaster County, Pensylvania, Dutchman
and had learned to speak German while workingfor
a well educated German. He frequently bought
goods nt the Bender store and the old man Bender
waited on him every Ltime. He saw all of Lhe
Benders. Mms. Bender talked German and could
not tulk English., Dick talked German Lo old man
Bender and Mms. Bender undenstood all that was
snid, She told Dick in German that she did not
think that they could keep or run the place. The
ulld couple were atl the store every time Dick was
Lhere.

John, Jr,, and Kate were oflen absent when
Dick was there. Dick saw Kate riding on horse-
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back, met her at Sunday-sechool and observed
her doing the housework at Bender House.  He
never talked to her. ‘They simply nodded their
heads to each other when they mel.

John Bender, Sr., talked very broken English.
He told Dick that he wans a Hollander, had lived
in Germany on the French line, and there kept a
bakery. John Bender, Jr., told Dick that he was
born in the United Stntes.

Township Trustce

Leroy F. Dick was at that time a newly-married
man and was also ‘Township Trustee. He lived
four miles south-cast of the Bender place. He
mel both John Bender, Sr., and John Bender, Jr.,
at the elections in 1872 and 1873. He met both of
them in the timber and tried to trade horses with
them. DMr. Dicksaw Kate nt Sunday-school antd
at o singing which he conducted, several times.
He saw both Nrs. Bender and Kale at meeling
in the Carpenter school-house. He saw all of the
members of the Bender family al their house
several times and knew them well.

Freighter,

J. A. Handley was hauling freight from Fort
Scott to Independence during the years 1871, 1872
and 1873. He passed the DBender House about
once each month during that time. Ie stopped
there to buy goods and get water. He saw all
of the Benders quite often and knew them well.

“ Kranky Kate,"

Handley stopped at the Bender House in April,
1873, to get water. Kate was sitting in the doorway.
Handley asked her for a buckel to get water. She
replied in a very insolent manner, *' You ought to
have it."”” Kate sat still. Handly jumd)cd over her
lap into the room and asked Mm. Bender for n
buckel and she at once gave it to him.
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These neighbors were al the Bender House on
different occnsions and for differenl purposes dur-
ing the years 1871, 1872 and the Spring of 1873.
FFrequently they mel and talked with members of
the family. Often they wentl there lo gel water
and Lo buy goods at the store. They mel John, Jr.,
or I{ale, somelimes both of them, on Lthe road.
‘T'hey saw Kate al Sunduny-school, BinFing, and
meetings. Nothing suspicious was seen by any of
these neighbors. ‘They not only had no knowledge
of any criminal acts on the part of any of the
Benders, bul no suspicions were aroused during
the entire time and Lhey did nol suspect them of
nny deeds, or other conducl of sufficiently bad
characler 1o require any investigation.

CHAPTER V.
Ineidents at Bender Honse.

A man by the name of Corlew, wholived at In-
dependence, in lpaaqing the Bender House stopped
Lo buy a can ol oysters for his noonday lunch.
He heard a peculinr struggling and moaning under
the house. He nsked Kate Bender what it was.
She told him that a hog had got into the cellar.
He offered to help get it out. Old man Bender
fiercely informed Corlew that if was none of his
business, and that if he did.not like thal noise,
lo “move on.” Kale sold the oysters to Corlew.
She then nsked him to sit on the bench at the
lable and cal his lunch. Corlew wanted to go a
shor{ distance farther on his way where there was
some good s for his horses to graze while he
ate his luncﬁ. He declined her invitation and did
“move on.” Probably Corlew thereby preserved
Iljsl!ifc and escaped becoming one of the Bender
viclims,
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“Happy Jack'" Reed, ns he wos [(amiliarly
known, of Cherryvale, in passing the Bender
House, enught a glimpse of Knte en deshabitie and
wng charmed wilh her appearance. He al once
entered the house, Kate engaged him in enter-
tninlng conversaLtion and gave him a scul on Lhe
heneh at the table. Hesal bul a few minutes when
he heard a shrill, peculinr cough, from Lhe door
step, as Lwo Lravelers rede up close Lo Lhe door ond
dismounted. He [elt a peculinr motion ns of some-
thing lightly and swiltly swishing pasL him hehind
Lhe curlain. That was probably the falal hammer
slarted on ils murderous mission when arresied
by Lhal signal which was given by old My, Bender.
Reed went nway with those Ltwo horsemen, having
first promised Kale that he would stop as he
returned and spend Lhe night.

The next evening he arrived and Kale greetled
him gladly and warmly, Soon afler his arrival two
of hig friends came Lo the door on their way to
Independence. Reed snid he would send a message
home by them. Kuale Lried every way that she
could devise to keep him [rom sending that message
but. Reed senl (.

IKnte immedintely beeame very sullen and acted
cold and distnnt Loward Reed. She did not talk
wilh him ns she had done before he sent the
message, Things became very monotlonous for
Reed and he retired to n bed in the rear room
to sleep.

Near midnight he heard n wogon drive up Lo the
fronl door and old man Bender went outl to con-
duct the driver and horses Lo the stable, In afew
minutes Reed heard n heavy blow followed by o
seream. ‘Then there was a rnin of blows in rapid
succession, Kate Bender arose from her bed and
walked to the side of the bed in which Reed lay
nnd she stood Lhere, Reed feigned sleep.

AL breakfnst the next morning, Kate nsked Reed



John Bender, Jr.




THIT BENDERS 1IN KANSAS 20

if he slepl well. Reed said that he had not awiak-
ened once during the whole night, As he made
this reply Lo Katle, old man Bender came from
behind the curtain and joined then at the break-
I'n..qt,l and he sal stlently and sullenly through the
meal,

AL Independence, Reed Llold thisstory. He was
laughed at 8o much by his friends for his coward-
lce ns Lthiey termed il that he dropped the maller
and It was forgolton unttl ufter I.EG flight of the
Benders, and the discovery of the hodies of their
victims, when its revival wus convineing that Reed
had told u real incldent at the Bender House and
was nol believed.

German Guests,

About the last week in FFebruary, 1873, an old
Germunn woman, just over from the Old Country,
stopped with the enders for a few days, while her
son-in-law was looking for a loention. She put in
the care of the Benders fifteen hundred dollars in
gold coln, Lwo Lhousand dollnrs in jewelry and two
drafis on banks, each for a lnrge sum of money.
When she left they did not return any of her prop-

erly bul made some excuse aboutl having sent
t lo o bank for safe keeping. The money and
jewelry were never relurned. Payment was slop-
ped on the draflts nnd afler some time she received
the money for them,

The Woman Canrasser.

ISarty in Muoreh, 1873, n woman was canvassing
through the Counly selling goods and wenl to the
Bender House late one afternoon, She sold Kale
Bender sume of the goonds nnd was inviled Lo spend
Lhe evening Lhere which she did. After supper the
family all insisted that she remain lor the night
which she eonsented to do. Kate was washing the
dlshes and John, Jr,, hegan to sharpen a very
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ugly looking knife. She was certnin that she saw
sinister glances and evil looks exchanged belween
members of the Bender family. T'hese things
made the woman very nervous and terrified her
extremely.

The woman made some excuse to step outside
the house and as soon as she was oulside of Lhe
door she fled to the timber along the ereek and hid
hersell. Some of the DBenders soon followed her
and hunted for her but did not find her, She made
her way to Independence and there told her story
toa lawyer. On his demund the Benders promptl
returned the goods which the woman had left
behind in her {light. That lnwyer concluded that
there wns nothing in his client’s story, but that she
had an unnecessary fright.

CHAPTER VI,
Mysterious Disappearances.

Sometime during Lhe latter parl of the year
1872 people began Lo mysteriously disappear when
they were guests at the Bender [House.

Firat Victim.

A man arrived at the Bender House carly in
the Fall of 1872, nnd said that he wanted Lo stop
there a few days while he looked for n location.
The Benders consented for him Lo stop with them.
He had with him over [ifteen hundred dollars in
cash, was well dressed and talked Lo Kate about his
money and plans, He was never seen about the
place nor elsewhere agnin.  No one knew when he
went awny nor anything else nbout him. Ie dis-
nppcare(l from sight nhso]ulelly.

This man was the firsL vietim of the Benders,
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IFifteen hundred dollurs eash was secured from him
and the old man Bender offered to sell some good
elothes in Cherryvale.

The *'good luck” attending this first viclim,
Logether with the flendish eraving Lo gain money
no doubt seared Lhe conseiences of the Benders aml
aleeled their hearts for the commission of the
“hellish'’ deeds of erime which followed this first
one in quick succession.

More Victims,

ShorLly after this first one came Lhe second.
I, I, MeKigzie wos n guest al the Bender House,
e waus looking for a claim and had a sum of money
with him. Hesuddenly disappeared and was seen
no more alive. |
~ [Pollowing came George Brown and M. R.
Boyle, both of whom slopped al the Bender I{ouse
and lilcy suddenly disappeared and were never
ngain seen nlive.

John Greary wenl Lo Lthe Bender House while a
very sick man. ‘T'he Benders believed that he
had a large sum of money. His death oceurred
very suddenly.  Afler his death it was found that
he had only R:)rLy cents.

William F. McCroity and Benjamin M. Brown
became guests al the Bender House., Both were
looking for locatlons, McCrolly had with him
over Lwo Lhousand dollars and Brown carried more
than one thousand dollns. All wans in cash,
Both suddenly disnppeared {rom there.

G. W. Longcohr lost his wife. A little daughter
was left Lo his eare.  He decided to take the little
daughter back to lown to live. They slopped at
the Bender House for the night. DBoth disap-
peared and were no more seen alive,

A very handsome young woman belween twenly
and Lwenly-lwo years of nge was o guest at the
Bender lHouse. Where she eanme from, who she
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was and whal she wos doing at thul place were
mysteries which were never solved.  She suddenly
and mysteriously disappeured.

The Last Victim,

Dr. Willlam H. York resided al Independence,
Kansus, His brother, Col. A. M. York, lived at
Fort Scoll, Kansas. Doctor York had been
visiting with his brother at Fort Scoll for some
days from the lirst week in March, 1873. |

On the 9th of March, Doclor York left his
brother's home on horse-hack intending lo go
dircetly to his home in Independence. He rode
n good horse, hnd a fine saddle, nice blankel and
splendid bridle. He carried a large sum of money
on his person, had a fine waleh and he wore goodl
clothes. The (it night he stopped at Osage
Mission. Aflter breakfnst the next morning,
March 10th he continued his journey on horse-
bnck. Some ncqunintnnees met Lthe doctor riding
alone, along the rond near the Bender house and
talked with him. He told them that he would
slop al the Bender House for his dinner and have
his horse fed.

That was the last ever seen of Doclor York
nlive by any of his friends or acquaintances. He
reached the Bender House about mid-day on
March 10, 1873. lle did stop there for dinner and
never left. Doclor York, the horse, saddle, blan-
ket, bridle, clothes, watch and mone all sud-
denly and entirely disappeared. Neither he nor
any of the other things were ever again seen except.
{he remains of Doctor York.

Those remnins were afterwards exhumed at the
Hender place.
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CHAPTER VII,
A Dinner at the Bender House.

Within one month after Doctor York had stop-
ped at the Bender House for his dinner, L. ‘T.
tephenson, Treasurer of Montgomery County,
with Judge H. G. Webb of the District Court,
who lived at Pamsons, were going together from
Independence to Parsons along that road past
the Bender House and they stopped for dinner.
Mr. Stephenson had a splendid team of horses,
silver-mounted harness and n good Lwo-horse
buggy in which they were riding. The leam way
in fine conditlon, high strung and good lookers.
He gave explicit instructions to the old man Bender
to feed the horses without unhitching them {from
the buggy, because, ns he explained to Bender,
he and the Judge were in a great hun'ry and very
anxious Lo get to Parsons early that afternoon.
Kate Bender took their order for the dinner.
While wailing for her to prepare the meal, Mr.
Stephenson went out to the stable to see if the
horses had been fed as he had directed Bender to
do. The horses had been unhitched, put into the
stable and the door was locked. He returned to
the house and told the Judge whal had been done,
Their suspicions were at once aroused and they
began looking about the room. They discovered
that the partition was a curtnin which was fasten-
cd on the studding at the top.  They saw that
the table and bench were placed near that curtain.
Kate came in and Pluce the dinner on that table
and said to them, “Draw up.” Sheat once left
the room. Mr. Stephenson and the Judge quictly
lifted the table and placed it at the other side of
the room, took chairs, sat down facing the curtain
and began caling their dinners. The bench was
left in its f[ormer position near the curtain.
While they were eating, suddenly a quick,
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vigorous blow struck the other side of the curtain
and glanced down toward Lhe floor. AL once
they both arose from the Lable, drew their revolvers
and walked rapidly to the stable. Mr. Stephenson
broke the lock on the door, led out his honses and
hitched them Lo the buggy, while the Judge stood
walching, with revolver in hand, expecling an
atlack from the house. When Mr. Stephenson
finished hitehing the team to the buggy both
jumped into il and drove rapidly away Lowards
Parsons. As they drove from the Bender place
geveral shols were fired about the place, but both
eseaped without being harmed.

Upon their arrival at Parsons, Mr, Stephenson
left the Judge Lhere and drove alone to Oswego,
attended to his business, and from there he went
dircctly to Independence, not passing the Bender
House on the return trip. When he arrived at
Independence he learned of the disappearance of
Doctor York. He then told of their dinner at the
Bender House.

Scarch for Doctor York Begins.

Several days clupsed. Doctor York did not
arrive at home, and nothing had been heard from
him. Colonel York started out from Fort Scott
in a search for him. He followed the trail of
Doctor York from thal place with the tenacity
and skill of an Indian scoutl. e learned that the
doclor hnd remalned all night at Osage Mission,
left there in early morning on his journey, had been
scen on Lhe road some miles west of Parsons only
o few miles cast of the Bender House, had there
talked with acquaintances and told them that he
would stop at the IBender House for dinner.

Colonel York made most careful inquiry as he
wenl nlong the road. lie looked in every direc-
tion nnd manner possible to discover il he could
lenrm something of Doctor York or gel some
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triee of the horse, saddle, blunket, bridle and
other property which the Doctor had with him.,
Spots fit for ambush were carefully probed foot
by {oot, lonely places were searched and streams
dragged. Not a vestige of anything was discov-
l'rt'(T and nol a shadow of evit?encu wis found to
rhow the fate of the doetor. Thus Colonel York
went through to Independence where he first
heard the rumors about the Bender incidents,

At once he made plans for n thorough return
secarch and wns joined by some men from Inde-
pendence. AL Cherryvale, C. W. Boolh and others
joined the party, making in all about Lwelve men.
The rumors of the events which had taken place at
the Bender House were fully discussed by Lhese
men, including the adventure of Mr. Stephenson
and Judge Webb., The party decided to go
straight to the Bender place and institute o search.
As they neared the l|Jemler House they saw a
man sitting by the roadside reading a Bible. One
of the party recognized that man as John Bender,
Jr. Some one in the party made inquiries about
Doctor York, in answer to which John, Jr., in-
formed them that he had been attacked by ban-
dits along the creek and he believed the doctor
had fallen a victim to those same outlaws. The

arty, led by Colonel York, rode on to Lhe Bender

ouse, which was the last place that Doetor York
was known to have been alive,

As the party rode up to the door, In front of Lhe
house, old Mrs. Bender came and stood in Lthe
doorway, saying in German, that it was “loo
bad a peaccable family must be disturbed by such
a crowd of men.” Kate was standing just inside
the house, near the old lndy, and the old man Ben-
der stood not far from Kate. John, Jr., had walk-
ed nlong past the stable and eame up near the door,
and stood outside close to old Mri. Bender.

In answer to Colonel York's inquiries about
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Doctor York having been there, Kale siid that
she served him with dinner and that he had gone
on his way afler dinner.  John Bender, Jr., aguin
sald that he belleved that Daoctor York had been
foully denll with on Drum Creek, where he had
been atlacked,

‘Onc of the men in Colonel Yorl's party was in-
clined Lo Spiritualism and knew that Kate clnimed
lo be a medium.  He requested Kate to make an
inquiry and ascertnin the whereabouts of Doctor
York. Kate at once wenl into a tranee, hut soon
revived and said thal the spirits refused to answer
her, heeause there were severnl unbelievers pres-
ent. IKnie {old this man that il he would come
alone in five days she would tell him personally
where Lhe doclor could be found, He replied to
her thal he would be there.

Drum Creek Searched,

Old man Bender and John, Jr., proposed to
accompany Lhe party to Drum Creek and help
them search for Doctor York, and this proposition
was acceded Lo by Colonel York and the searching
parly. Both of ithe Bender men went with the
parLty and remained all day, helped drag the creek,
and make search for the hody of Doclor York.
John, Jr., pointed Lo a supposed human grave,
but when il was opened the remains of a hog were
found. Again he said that he had been shot at
severnl times along there, and pointed to many
bullet holes in the trees Lo verily his slatement.

This was on Thursday, April 24, 1873.

Suspicion Allayed.

The answer given by Kale Bender when ques-
tioned at the house, Lthe readiness with which both
ol Lthe Benders went along and aided in the search
on Drum Creck, together with the arrangement
between Kate_and the Spiritualist of the party



J8 THE BENDERS IN KANSAS

for him to go back to the Bender House and she
would tell him where Doctor York could be found,
allayed all suspicion at that time, and Colonel
York, with this first scarching party, leaving
Drum Creck and old mun and John Bender, Jr.,
returned to Cherryvale and Independence, goin
away from the scene of the Bummr crimes, with
suspicion allayed and knowledge deflerred, to re-
turn again in eleven dnys, only with a much larger
party of searchers, to then reveal what had trans-
pired there and arouse the people to investigation
and discovery, the horridness of which has never
been equalled in a civilized community.

| CHAPTER VIIL
No Suspicion, No Knowledge of Crimes Committed.

The four members of the Bender family had
made their home in thal house for two years.
Many neighbors were golng Lo and from thathouse,
others passing and stopping to get waler and buy
goods, and many travelers took meals and lodging
who did go away.

During most of that time, if not all of it, crimes
were committed by the Benders. The neighbors
not only had no knowledge of the deeds commit-
ted, but did not even suspect the Benders of the
foul crimes, until Colonel York and the parly
came as searchers for absenl ones, and made Lhe
inquiries which Kate and John, Jr., met in such n
manner that it allayed all suspicion, even of the
party of searchers.

Another Scarching Party Organized

Colonel York was determined to find his brother

or secure evidence ns to what had become of him.
But, what should be done?
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Everybody was now aroused by the disappear-
ance ol Doctor York. I'he discussion of the
rumors aflont about the suspicious Incidents and
events which had occured at the Bender JHouse
were rife.

Between  twenty-five and thirly determined
men from Independence, Cherryvale, and the
couniry around, joined Colonel York, all well
armed and ready to go with him for a thorough
scarch. Among the men who joined that ]l‘)ﬁanﬂ
where C. W. Booth, of Cherryvale; Colonel FFran
Triplelt and his brother, the colonel was visiting
his brother, who was then living on a claim in
Montgomery County, and they both joined Lhe
scarching party with Colonel York; Jake Her-
berger, George Evans Downer and L. T. Stephen-
son. DBoth of the last-nnmed men were members
of the Vigilance Committee, and they lived at
Independence., In the party were several Civil
War velerans, who were scurhrs on claims in thal
new country.,

Afler o full discussion of the many rumors about
the Bender House, it was decided Lo go directly
to that place and make a thorough investigation,
Just cleven days after he had been there with the
first parly, Colonel York returned to the Bender
House accompanied bi; these men. It was
Monday, May b, 1873, when this party reached the
Bender House, where they found several of the
ncighbors of the Benders engaged in searching
the house, and later several other neighbors joined
them. Among the neighbors present when Colonel
York and party nrrivc(r, were Sllas Toles, Rudolph
Broekmann, J. J, Johns, and Leroy I*. Dlck.
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CHADPTER IX.
The Bender Flight Discovered.,

Silas Toles, one of the neighbors of the Benders,
with his younger brother, were the finst to discover
that the Benders had left.

On Sundny morning, May 4, 1873, nboul cight
o’'clock, they were passing the Bender place, when
they heard the plaintive buwl of a hungry calf
in its pen, while just outside stood Ity mother,
with swollen and distended udder, lowlng pitcous-
Iy in answer to the calf. Evidently she was in
great agony from want of attention. ‘Thinking
that the family must be ill, Silas Toles went to the
house to offer their services in caring for Lhings
about the place. He rapped on the door bul re-
ceived no answer.  He peered In at a window and
beheld o scene of confusion, the evidence of a
hurricd departure.  They at once turned the cow
and calf together and hurnied away to inform other
neighbors and secure assistance to make an in-
vestigation,

On Mondny morning, May b, Toles induced two
other neighbors to go nlong with him, and together
they went to the Bender House and broke open
the door. They found things in a chaotic con-
dition. Clothing of all kinds belonging Lo both
sexes, wilth babies’ garments and expensive articles
of wearing apparel for both women and men
were scattered about the rooms. Household uten-
sils littered the floor. Lying nboul wns a consld-
erable quantity of manuscript containing Kale
Bender's lectures.

Dender Place Scarched.

While these neighbors were examining the Ben-
der House and its contents, Colonel York with the
sccond searching parly came and jolned In the
examinalion of what remained after the Benders
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had taken flight,  All movable things were taken
oul. of the house and plled on Lhe ground some
distance away. The house was then careflully
scrutinized, including the partition of studding
with the curtain fustenced on them.

I'he trap door was most careflully examined, and
when it was lifted the men looked through the
opening beneath and saw the cellar. They saw
ils gloomy, lorbidding oullines, eavernous and
uninviting, A light was brought and men des-
cended into that abyss, shaped like a well, more
than six fect in dinmeter and fully six feel deep.
They found damp looking spols in the bottom,
which upon careful examination were pronounced
to be human blood. From thia cellar they follow-
ed n narrow puasage, jusi wide enough to permit
n man Lo go along it under the rear room of the
house and came Lo the oulside Lowards Lhe garden
and little orchard.

These men moved about cautiously, carefully
looking over things, yel entertaining no suspicion
of the true state of affairs. The scarch was con-
tinued in and nhout the house and cellar for more
than an hour, but nolhing was discovered which
was evidence of Lhe commission of any erime.

The Garden and Orchard.

Back of the house running paralle]l with the road
were severnl rows of corn fringed with high weeds.
Beyond Lthese rows of corn was o small garden and
little orchard of young trees. The ground was
freahly plowed un(r nicely harrowed, making iL look
fresh and clenn,

It will be readily observed that this whole ar-
rangement ineluding that trap door, cellar and
narrow pussage from under the house towards
the garden was carefully planned to facilitate and
conceal erime. 1L was also afterwards discovered
Lhal every particle of subsoil that was removed



42 THE BENDERS IN KANSAS

from the gurden und orchard to make the holes in
which the vietims were Inid had been tuken Lo the
stable lot and earefully covered with manure.
Colonel York and several of the men were out-
side of the house and in full view of the garden and
orchard. Suddenly  the Colonel  exelnimed,
“Boys, |scegruves yonderin the orchard”  The
men laughingly nnswered him that he had “graves
on the hrain.” But he insisted that he saw graves
and pointed to what he thought wns n grave,
Finally, after some looking about them, other men
could see a number of depressions shaped like
praves in the freshly plowed and hirrowed ground.

Discorery.

Dmawing the ramrod from his muskel, Colonel
York thrust it into the first depression and drew
it out. It showed human hair on the end. He
pushed the ramrod into the second depression,
drew it out and held it up to their view displaying
a fragment of clothingon theend.  The wildest ex-
citement prevailed among the men gathered aboul
him, and all thought of the eseape of the murderers
was for the moment entirely forgotten.

Spurdes and Shorels

Men wildly rushed aboul looking for spades or
shovels. Finding them, they worked in turns
wilh feverish energy and anxiety to uncover thad.
first depression and discover if 1t were In foet o
grave. They dug to the depth of five feet and
discovered the body of a man practically nude.
It was lying face down and they gently dug
around it, tenderly lifted it out with trembling
hands and Iaid it on the ground with the fuce up
that it might be seen by all present.

One single glance into that ghostly faee nand men
cried oul with expressions of great i;nrror:
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“ft 18 Duclor York!"

All of the depressions were then rapidly opened
by those excited men and each proved Lo be the
grave of a humnn being.  When all were opened
and the work finished there were eleven human
bodies lald out upon the pluee. Nine of those
hodies were of men, one was Lhalt of n younyg
womun and the other was that of a little girl
with its long locks of golden hair. Men wept
nloud when the hody of that little girl was by
gentle hands tenderly lifted up from ils grave
und laid before the view of that crowd of strong
men, all of whom instinctively uncovered their
hends, realizing (hal it was an innocent little girl
that they heheld.

Voies of Vengeaner,

With hands uplifted towards Heaven, terrible
vows of vengeance were tiken by those men against
the murderers,

The hody of the young woman was that of a
very handsome girl between twenly and twenty-
two years of age, Who she wos, or where she
came from was n mystery to all of those present
al that time, and it remains o mystery unsolved
lo this dny.  Her deseription was widely publish-
ed at that time and every means used Lo make
known the fnet of finding hier remnins, but her body
was never tdentified and no one has ever heen
found who could give any information about her.

EEach body removed from those holes was
wactically nude. Doctor York's right temple
Lnd been crushed by o blow from some blunt
instrument. Each of those bodies, excepl that of
the little girl, had the skull erushed in one or more
pluees by n blow from some blunt instrument.

In the rear room of the house wins found three
hammers of different slzes. Upon .examination
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of these hummers the men presenl concluded thal
all of the blows had been struck with these
hammers.

Lattle Girl Smothered,

Every indication about the remains of the
little girl was that she had been smothered.  Her
body was found in the same hole with that of her
father and was lying under his body, so il was
the opinion of these present that it must have been
pul in there first.

Buried Alire.

From the horribly distorted appearance of the
{eatures, limbs and body of that |RUL‘ girl, many of
those present insistet] that it wns clearly evident
that she had been put into that hole while she was
yet alive.

House Pulled Down

Every corner and thing about that place was
thoroughly scarched and it was completely torn
up. The house was pulled from its foundation.
Afterwards it was torn in pleces and carried away
as souvenirs by the curious who visited the place.

CHAPTER X.
German Neighbor.

Rudolph Brockmann lived on the claim which
cornered on the southwest with the Bender claim.
He wos a German, When the Benders firsl eame
to make a location they stopped on his claim for
ten days. DBrockmann frequently wenl Lo Lhe
Bender store to buy goods while lﬁcy lived there.
The Benders had been seen Lo visit Broekmann’s
place, too. Brockmann talked with the Benders
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in Germon, Brockmann cume to the Bender
House that Monday morning, as did other nelgh-
bors, to make an investigation. He aided Colonel
York und party to search the Bender House and
premises.  He worked as hard and earnestly with
apade and shovel as did any of the parly in
opening Lthose holes containing bodies,

Some one in that party intimated thal Brock-
man knew aboul the commission of the crimes by
the Benders.  He was questioned very closely but
denied all knowledge of their ecrimes.  He admit-
ted that he had been at the Bender slore, had
boughlL goods there, that they did stop on his
clalm at fimt and that some of the Benders had
visited at his house since. That he always Lalked
in German language with them.

Many of the men in that party were much excit-
ed by Lﬁe day’s events and were justly aroused and
indignant. They bhad vowed vengeance on the
murderers and they thirsted Lo avenge the foul
murders that had just been discovered.

Some one made the suggesiion that Brockmann
was an nccomplicc of the Benders. Suspicion at
once geized the minds of that body of men.

A Ropel

Some one cried out, “Gel a rope!” Excitement
wis intense. A rope was brought, a noose made on
onc end of il and that was put around the neck of
Brockmann. The other end was pul over a sup-
port and severnl men caught hold of the rope and
pulled Brockmann up in the air. He was held
there awhile and then let down to confess his
guilt. He still protested that he was innocent and

new nolhing to tell. He was drawn up and let
down several times to mnke him tell of his supposed
complicity in the Bender crimes. To the end he
denled nll knowledge and vigorously protested that
he wns Innocent. That “hanging’’ wns repeated
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several Limes untl Brockmann was more dead than
alive, when cooler hends prevailed, and he was sel
free and permitled to go to his home,

Leroy I Dick went to the Bender place that
Monday while the search was in progress, but he
did not remain ull day.  He made a hasly disposal
of the property left behind by the Benders, retain-
ing three hammems and a cloek as evidence. The
hummens were n six-pound eollier, an Alsatian shoe
hammer and 0 common small hammer.

Bodics of Elecen Vielims,

I'he bodics of those vietims whieh were exhumed
and identified were: Dr, William H. York, Benja-
min M. Brown, John Greary, William F. Me-
Crolity, H. ‘I'. MeKigzie, George Brown, M. R.
Boyle and G, W. Longeolr and his little daughter,

‘hose which were not identified were the hodies
of one mun and that of the unknown young
woman.

Other bodies and some skelelons were after-
wards found nlong Lhe bottom, in the timber, und
one some dlstance from the Bender House, near
Cherryvnle, in a creck or pond. Al of these
were very probably vielims of the Benders, and
from Lhese faets it is known that they did not put
all of their victims in the depressions discovered
by the party with Colonel York, back of the
Bender House in the garden and orchard.

CHAPTER XI.
How The Benders Did 1t.

When the meal was ready the guest was given a
seat on that beneh between the table and the cur-
tain. \When seated on the beneh the back of the
person would be toward the partlition close to the
curlain.
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Behind this curtnin the "she-devil” Kute, or
one of the other members of the family dominated
by the evil mind of Kute, would steal quietly and
take a standing position, hummer in hand, close
to the curtain, and with the fool push the curtain
along the floor towards the hench until the outlines
of the form of the person seated on the beneh were
clearly shown.  The hammer way held In th2 hands
uplifted, ready to strike the blow at the proper
moment. As soon as the outlines of the head were
seen, the blow was struck.  This blow crushed the
skull and the stunned victim fell on the floor,

The trap door was very near, just to the right,
inside the opening between the studding of the
partition for a doorwny. The body wus nt once
dragged to this trap door, it was quickly raised,
the head of the vietim was placed so ns Lo hang
into the opening over the cellar beneath. ‘The
throat was cut with a large knife, the body wns
dropped into the cellar and the trap door quickly
closed. In a moment nothing remained visible
to tell the.wale of the horrible deed which had thus
been committed. All evidenee of what had been
done had disappeared into the cellar and with the
trap door closed, things moved along as though
nothing had transpired in that room and the Ben-
ders were ready (o receive and entertain the next
guest. Al nigi;l. the body was robbed of money,
clothing and valunbles, Under cover of durkness
the body was taken from the cellar along that
narrow passage Lo the outside and buried in the
garden and orchard.

When Mr. Corlew was informed that a hog had
fallen into Lhat cellar, it was probably one of the
Bender vietims, n humian being and not a hog,
that had just been thrown Lhrough that trap
door into the cellar.  What he heard was the dylng
moans and struggles of a fellow belng. It 1s nol Lo
be wondered that old man Bender so fiercely sald



THIS BENDERS IN KANSAS 41

it wis none of Mr. Corlew's husiness, and for him
to “move on."

Date T'he Benders Fled,

Colonel York was at the Bender House with the
first party on the 24th doay of April, 1873. In
answer Lo the request of Lhe Spirilualisl of the
mrty, Kate promised that if he would come alone
n five days she would tell him where Doctor York
could be found. ‘That would be the 29th of April.

Kate expected to answer Lhal inquiry to that
inquirer ulone, and she waited expectantly for that
opportunity. She looked for him to come, and
thut nlone. The DBenders nll walled his comin
undoubtedly cerlnin of another vietim. e di
not return and none of the parly came again.
When he did not come for that answer, and none
of that parly returned to make any further in-
quiry, It was ominous. ‘The DBenders then took
alarm and they hastily prepared for flight. The
condition of the house disclosed the fact of the
hnsty departure.

IL was on Sunday morning, the 4th of Muy that
Silns Toles, with his brother, discovered that the
Benders had gone.  From the condition of the cow
nnd enlf it was evident that they had been gone
some Lhree or four days, but not more than that.
The Benders did not leave before the 29th of April,
the day that Lhey expected that Spiritualist to
come nlone to gel the answer from Kate to his
inquiry ns Lo Lhe whereabouls of Doctor York. It
is evident Lthat Lhey had been gone three or four
dnys only when Mr. Toles found the condition of
the cow and calf to be so pitiful and relieved it and
went Lo get neighbors to investigale.

183:%10 Benders fled the night of the 29th of April,
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The Dircetion the Benders Fled,

The Benders knew that country well.  "They
also knew that Colonel York had been at Parsons
making inquirics in his search for Doctor York:
they knew that at Cherryvale and Independence
there were many people who would recognize some
of the Benders if they saw them; they would ex-
pect that Colonel York had reported the result
of the visit to the Bender House and the search on
Drum Creek. To go towards cither Parsons,
Cherryvale or Independence, cerlain recognition
awaited them. |

To the South lay the high rolling prairic and
mounds about Mound Valley from which n long
view could be had, so that would not be a safe
direction to travel. North, the timber bordered
the streams as fur as Thayer, Kansas. The
country in that direction was sparsely settled
and the roads were but little traveled.  In that
direction the Benders could travel at night and
could casily disappear in the friendly growth of
underbrush. They would meet but few persons,
if any. That was the best course for their flight.

How The Benders Went Away.

The Benders drove a team attnched Lo a two-
horse farm wagon, which they left in the timber
about one mile from ‘Thayer. This is evidence
of the fact that they lefu Bender House by driving
a team away. The horses had been (aken from
the wagon and tied with ropes nbout their necks to
the sides of the wagon bed. When found the
horses had eaten large notehes in the sides of the
wagon-bed and were nlmost famished with hunger
and thirst,

Where The Benders Went.

The Benders hought railroad tickets from Thay-
er to Humboldt, nsas, n smnll town nhout
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Lwenty-live iniles north on the M. K. & °I', railway.
That road runs south from Humboldl to Vinita,
Indlun Tervitory, and on through to Denison,
Texng, The Benders traveled from Humboldt
on that railrond to the South and have never heen
“een since.

CHAPTER XII
Band of Desperadocs,

Col. Frank ‘Triplett and several others who
were present at the Bender House with Colonel
York, after enreful investigntion were of the
opinion that the Benders were members of a large
nnd well organized gang of desperadoes, who were
at that time operuting extensively along theSouth-
ern Kansas border, throughout the Indian Terri-
tory, nnd away Lo the West into the Texns Panhan-
dle and No-Man's-Land.

There was not one of the vietims of the Benders
but what went there with cither a team and wagon,
a horse und saddle and other personal property
nnd elfects, besides having money with them.
None of the homses, wagons, harness, saddles or
any of their equipment, nor any of the personal
roperty, was ever disposed of by any of the
Benders in Lhat loeality, nor was any of it ever
heard of afterwards.  No one knew of any member
of the Bender fumily being away from the Bender
House for any great length of time,

Confederales.

This was conclusive evidence Lo many Lhat
confederntes of Lhe Benders ran off all of the stock
nt once and disposed of it in some place safe [rom
discovery. It was doubtless some of these con-
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federates who made possible the escape of the
Benders,

A nother Abandoned Team,

About the time of the flight of the Benders from
Bender House, the people at New Chicago, now
Chanute, Kansas, then a little town, some twenly
miles north of the Bender place, discovered n team
of horses attached to o wagon which had been tied
in one of the streets for two duys without [ood or
attention. That team and wagon was never
claimed by anyone. [t was at once supposed Lhat
this was the team by which the Benders made
their escape. This [act was never established,
however, though believed by some, but flatly
contradicted by the fact of the abandoned team
near Thayer some miles south. The shrewdest
heads throughout that part of the country believed
that team was driven to Chanute by confederates
and left there merely ns a blind to throw pursurers
olf the real tmil of the Benders and let them escape.

Possc Organized,

Colonel York took charge of the remains of
Doctor York and gave them proper care and
interment, while others looked after Lthe remains of
the other victims which had been exhumed from
the Bender graveyard.

Many of the others in that party at the Bender
place who were brave, determined men, lost no
time that day, but organized n posse Lo pursue and,
if possible, capture the [leeing Benders. This
posse, alter it wns organized, was divided into four
parties, each of which at once started in n
different direction in pursuit. Among the mem-
bers were old veternns who had only a few yenrs
before been seasoned by service In Lthe Unlon army.
Nnturally they “fall in’’ and unite for service when
duty calls to courageous and hard work of the
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charneter required to pursue vielntors of the law,
capecially of the class Lo which the Benders most
clearly ﬁclongcd. Seven of those old velerans,
good and brave men, tried and true, formed one of
the four divisions of that posse and they chose for
the leader a former Captain of a Company in one
of the best Regiments and most serviceable, of a
lending Weslern State,

The Pursuil of the Benders.

T'he division of the posse led by the Captain
started In a Southerly direction, headed for the
Indian Territory line, as they believed that was the
most probable course the Benders would take to
gel where they would be safe and find shelter
among other outlaws. Wilhin (orly-eight hours
that posse was “hot on Lthe trail” of the Benders,
A sccond division of the posse wenl towards
Thayer, Kansas, A third division went lowards
Cherryvale and Independence, a fourth division
went toward Parsons, and from there to Oswego.
The pursuit of the Benders was begun in that
manner from the Bender plnce that day.

The Captlain and his men followed the trail
into the Indian Territory for some distance and
returned in n few days from pursuit. They said
they had given up the hunt, and they al once
dropped the aub{cct of the Benders or Lheir pur-
sull.  After their return the whereabouts of the
Benders never seemed of nny interest nor did it
seem Lo bother any of Lthal group of men.

It wns n surprise Lo their friends and acquain-
tances how quickly they dropped the whole mat-
ter and would not talk about it.

When they relurned it was generally under-
slood somechow that Lthey had attended while
gone n ‘‘lynching bee'” somewhere in the Terri-
tory. That they disposed of Lhe entire Bender
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family has always been suspeeted by many and
and fully believed by some,

Not one single member of the Captain’s men
has ever peached.

Fach of the other divisions of the posse skir-
mished around all over that pnrt of the country
in the direction they finst started and the members
returned to their homes believing that the Benders
escapedd,

Since that time there have heen numerous
Benders located in various parts of the country,
but none of them have been fully and satisfaclor-
ily identified as members of that notorious family.,

Gorernor's Proclamation.

Under date of May 17, 1873, Governor Osborn
of Kansas, issued a proclamation, which read, in
part, as {ollows:

Wherean: Several atroclous murders have beon recently
committed in Labette County, Kansas, under clreumatancen
which fastena beyond doubit the comimirslon of these erimes
upon a family known as the [lender Famlily.

The reward was offered of Five Hundred Dol-
lars for the capture and delivery of cither of the
partics to the Sherifl of Labette County, and it
also contained the following:

Description of the Benders,

John Bender, about sixty yeam of nge, five feet, elght or
nine inches In helght, German, speala but llittle Engliah,
dark complexion, no whiskers nnd apnrely bullt.

Mrs. Hender, nbout fifty yenrs of uge, rathor hieavy net,
blue eyes, brown hair, Geemnn, spenka brokon nglialh,

John Bender, Jr., alias John Gebhardt, five feet, elght or
nine inches In helght, slightly buillt, grey cyes, with brownish
tint, brown hair, light mustache, no whiskers, nbout Lwenty-
reven ycar of age, speakn Fnglish with German nccent.

KRate Bender, about twenty-four years of age, dark hale
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nntl eyes, good looking, well foemed, rather bold In appear-
nnce, fluent tolker, apeohs English with very litte German
neeent.,

All trace of the Benders was lost.  The entire
fumily had disappeared. Many Dbelieved  that
they were nll exterminated.  Others denied that
they were demd.  What hud beecome of them was
un unanswered guestion,

More than twelve years passed nnd the ques-
tion whether the Benders were yel living was not
answered.  Finally a supposed clew was given by
n woman, who hnd obtained her information
from n statement made to her by another woman,
at the time washing for the informont. This
led to the positive deelaration that the Benders
were alive and then living in the Suate of Michi-
gan.

CHAPTER X1
The Washeriroman,

A woman, who had lost her husband a short
time before, lived at McPherson, Kansas, in the
year 1886. She wns compelled to do washing,
to earn the living for hersell and Lwo liutle girls.
She waushed for many people at their homes.  She
had formerly lived in Michigan and eame from that
State to MePherson in the year 1884. The nome
of this winsherwoman was Sarah Eliza Davis,

A Dream ulerpreted,

Among those for whom this woman did wnshing
nt their homes was M, FFrances McCann, the
wile of n hardware merchant of MePherson.

Mrs. MceConn had a strange dream during the
time that Mrs. Davis was doing washing at her



= ) W Sy
_ 2
- .-

Mrs. Frances McCann

) 'l N




THE BENDERS IN KANSAS 67

house. Thalt dream revealed to Mrs., McCann
the murder of an old man by an old woman and
her daughter. M. MceCann told that dream to
Mrs. Davis and informed her that she was very
much troubled over it. Mrs. Davis interpreted
it for her: |

Phere was a murder of an old man.  The mur-
dered man wans John W. Sanford. 1L was commit-
tedd ot Windsor, Cnnndn,  JL wis committed by
Lthe mother of M, Davis and an elder daughter,
who was Lhe wile of the murdered man, 1L was
done when M, Davis was a little girl,  Mrs.
MceCann was the little daughter of that murdered
man,

‘This was the interpretation of that dream by
Mrs. Davis, and she then told Mms. McCann that
the wife of the murdered Sanford ufterwards mar-
ried Stokes, of New York, who killed Fisk. This
was Lhe story Lold Mis. MeCann by her washer-
woman.

Parent Discorcred.

Mrs. MeCann did not know her own parentage.
sShe was so impressed with the interpretation of
her drenm by M. Davis that she made the jour-
ney Lo Kentucky, where she visited the orphan
asylum in which she was reared.  There she dis-
covered that she had heen received at thatl insti-
tution ns Frances Sanford.

Her next journey was to Windsor, Canada,
where she learned thal a man by the name of John

W. Sanford had been murdered there many years
before.

The Woman Deteclire.

Mrs., NMeCann returned to MePherson deter-
mincd to prosccute her search for the murderer
of her father and bring that murderer to a con-
viction and punishment.  She at once began her
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work s a detective by shadowing Sarah Eliza
Davis, her own washerwoman.

Mrs. Davis being confined ut home by sickness
Mrs. MceCann went to the home of Mrs, Davis
to sce her and sympathise with her. M. Davis
was an ignorant, superstitious woman and believed
that Mrs. McCann wns a Spiritualist having
supernatural powers. Mms. MceCunn  expressed
great s,\'mpalhf' for Mrs. Davis and for severnl
weeks during her sickness mude daily visits to
se¢ Mrs. Davis, saying that she was doing so
“for sweet charity’s sake.” .

She fimst placed o magnet in M. Davis’ hand.
The elfeet was mesmeric and she had Mrs. Davis
mesmerized,  Then she showed NMrs. Davis an
instrument which she said would write the maiden
name and birth-place of M, Davis, il she would
just hold her hand upon it.  Mm., Davis placed
wer hand upon il. '1'{10 instrument wrote: “Sarah
Eliza Nark, Caularaugns County, New York,”
the maiden name and place of birth of Mrs. Davis.
What it meant, Mrs. Davis did not know. It waos
a deep mystery to her.

From that moment Mrs. McCann could do
anything she wished to do with Mrs. Davis.  She
wius absolutely under her control. She would
ask a question and Mrs. Davis would answer it
just as Mrs. McCann desired her Lo answer it.

Bender ldea.

Mrs. McCann said that there was one Lhing
which M. Davis had declared that she woulc
never tell to Mrs. MceCann.  That one thing Mrs.
McCann wus determined to make Mrs. Davis
tell her. She kept thinking about that matter
and how to get Mrs, Davis to tell it to her. Sud-
denly, like a flash of bright light, iL ecame to her
mind that Mrs. Davis and her mother, without
any doubt, were
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The Bender Women,

She asked M. Davis the point blank question,
il her mother was Mes. Bender?  Mms. Davis be-
came very indignant and told Mrs, McCann to
never agnin refer to that subjeet. On another
occasion while Mrs. Davis was busy over the
washtub, Mmi. McCann in a careless, off-hand
manner, nsked Mms. Davis how many there were
in the Bender family.

Mnrs. Davis replied, “Well, let mesee. There
was Molher————~—." She stopped for an
instant, nnd then throwing up her hands, exclaim-
ed, “Now you have my sceret! [ have Lold you
all.” She then warned Mrs. McCann Lo never
mentLion that muttler again, either to her or to any
one clse,

~In many other conversutions after that Mns.
Davis told of murders commitied by her mother
and family, and left the impression stronger each
Lime Lhot Lthey were indeed the Benders. Mm.
McCann believed that the rehearsing of the mur-
ders was for Lhe sole purpose of convincing her Lhat
she was in danger from thal family.

T'hat dream, its interpretation and the conver-
sations wilth Mrs. Davis, as well as the confession
which had followed in conseculiveorder, formed the
groundwork of all subsequent investigalions, and
Lthe result of the whole was the arrest of Mrs.
Dnvis and her mother in Michigan as the Bender
women,

CHAPTER X1V,
Intition-Guided,

Mrs. McCann clnimed that she was guided in
all of her work solely by intuition, or impressions
made upon her mind by some mysterious influence.
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She wus convineed that  Mrs, Davis' stalement
that her mother had murdered the futher of Mrs.
MeCann wns true, and she wns determined Lo
establish that fact by evidence and conviet and
punish the murderer.

The State Wonld Prusccule.

After getting the confession from Mrs., Davis
that her mother was old Mrs. Bender, iU was clear
to Mrs. McCann that the State of Kansas would
prosecute the Benders il loeated and identified.

If she located and identified these as the Bender
women, she would secure the reward which she
had been informed was outstanding for them,
and she would also obtain a world-widereputation
as n woman detective. Perchance, she would also
punish the murderers of her own father, which she
so much desired to do,

Mrs. Darcis Leaces Kansus,

A short time after the disclosure Lo Mrs. Me-
Cann that her mother was old Ms. Bender, the
washerwoman left MePherson and with her little
children moved back to Michigan.

Mrs. McCann Goes to Michigan.

Soon after Mrs, Davis deft, Mrs. MeCann
followed her te Michignn and there constantly
shadowed her. Upon her arrival in Michigan,
she located the mother of Mrs. Davis who was
living at Niles and was known there ns Mrs. Al-
mira Griffith. She also learned that these women
hore a bad reputation and were said among
oflicers to belong to the eriminal elnsses.  T'o keep
a close watch on every movement by Mmri. Davis
and her mother, M, MeCann would oflen spend
the whole night in the outhulldings upon the
premises where they were living.,

Mm. McCann Induced the officers aL Niles,
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Michigan, during the summer of 1884, to advise
NMr, John . Morrison, the Prosecuting Attorney
of Labette County, Knnsas, living at Oswego, that
the two women, Mis, Davis and Mrs. Griflith,
were known Lo be bad eriminals, and that the
nuthorities believed that these women were old
Mrs. Bender and her daughter, Kate, members of
that notorious family, and formerly of Labette
County. Aflter quite n conespondence with the
Michignn ofticers, Mr. Morrison decided to sub-
mit (he correspondence on the subject to the
I(?nullil%y Commissioners of Labette County, which
1e did.

Leroy F. Dick Goes to Michigan,

"T'he County Commissioners carcefully considered
the matter when submitted to them by Mr. Mor-
rison, and decided to send Leroy F. Dick, o former
neighbor of the Benders, well acquainted with
them when they were living in Labette County,
and who took charge and disposed of the property
left behind by the Benders, to Michigan to investi-
gate.  Mr. Dick had retained the hammers and
clock, left by the Benders, as evidence. He had
heen Sheriff of Labetie County and was at this
Lime living in Parsons. |

The County Commissioners instructed Mr.
Dick to go to Niles, Michigan, and carefully in-
vestignte the whole matter, identifly the Benders
il they were found, and to ascertain if these sus-
weled women were really the Bender women.
Mr. Dick had often met imlh Mrs. Bender and
Kate when they lived on the Bender place and
would know them i he met them anywhere,
He was instrueled to go wherever necessary, gel
all the fnets possible and to loeate the Benders if
they could be found.

Mr. Dick so authorized by the County Com-
missioneis made the trip.  Afterwards he re-
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ported that in malking this investigntion he travel-
ed all aver Lhe State of Michigan, then went to
Indinna, Ohio, Pennsylvania, New York and
Conadun.  He sald that in making invesligalion
he traveled more Lthan eleven thousand miles.

The Benders Fownd.

Mr., Dicl found the old womun Bender, Kate
Bender, and two other daughters of old Mrs.
Bender, but of Lthe old man Bender and John, Jr.,
he could not gel any trace at all.

He saw and Lalked with Mrs, Griflith and Mis,
Davis while in Michigan, and he was convineed
thot these women were the old womun Bender
nnd Kate Bender, whom he kinew so well in
Labette Counly, when the Bender family were
keeping the Bender IMouse. He conferred wilh
Mrs. MeCann and Lhe officials, and he was in
duily conferenee with Mrs. MceCann, to determine
what was besl to be done Lo prevent these noted
eriminals, the Bender women, from making their
eseape, before he could return to Kansas, make his
repori, sceure requisitions necessary 1o take them
to Kansas ns Lhe Benders, and again get to Michi-
gan Lo tnke charge of Lthese women.

To prevent escape b was decided that Mrs,
Griffith and Mrs. Davis mustl be held by some
courl, process until requisition papers arrived.
One or holh of them mustl be arrested and either
placed in jail, or be pul under bond and the case
musl he held along until Mr, Dick could go to
Kunsus and get back wilth the necessary papers.
Mrs. Griffith and one of her doughlers were very
much incensed and angry towards Mrs. Davis
for having Lold Mrs, MeCann thal Mirs. Grif-
fith wns old Mra, Bender.  That muade it eas
for Lhe officinls ul Niles to induee Mra, Griflit
to file n charge of larceny against her daughter,
Mrs. Davis. Mrs. Davis had lately moved to
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Lansing where she had seeured  work,  That
charge was filled at Niles, o warrant was issued
and the Sheritl of Berrien County went to Lan-
sing with thal worant, arvested Mres, Duvis and
brought her back to Niles ns a prisoner where she
was arraigned in Court. charged with larceny.

After the arrnignment and before the prelimi-
nary hearing, Nrs. Davis and her mother, Mrs.
Giriflith beeame reconciled over their differences
and they started on foot topgether to make thelbr
escape in the night time.  They were hoth appre-
hended, brought back and held.

CHADPTER XV,
Mrs. McCann Keeps Watch.

To be cortain that M. Davis and her mother,
Mrs, Griflith, did nol escape until the papers
arrived to take them to Kansas, M. MeCann
remained in Michigan watching every move they
made and waiting for Mr. Dick Lo come from
INansas with requisition papers,

Dick Retirng to Kansas,

In the meantime Nr. Dick went to Oswego
and made his report.  In his opinion, they were,
beyond doubt, the guilty parties. Nrs. Griffith
was old Mrs, Bender and Mrs, Davis was Kate
llender.  He knew them when they lived in the
Bender House in Labette County, he knew them
now, and was sure they were Lhe parties.

Upon the strength of Mr. Dick's positive lden-
tification, the papers for requisition were prepared,
submitied 1o the Governor of Konsus, by him
approved nnd signed, appointing Leroy 9. Diek
the agent of the State of Knnsas Lo recelve Lhe
prisoners from the oflicials of the Stale of Michi-
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gan and bring them o Kansus as the Bender
women,  With these papers Mr, Dick again trav-
cled Lo Michigan, presented them to the Govern-
or of that State and they were upproved. e went
Lo Niles where the oflicials delivered (o him Mrs.
Griffith as old Nrs. Pender and N, Davis as
Knle Bender, ,

While Mr. Dick wus gone to Kansas Lo get the
pupers, Lhe officials in Nichigan had played the
usual game of delay in court proceedings Lo hold
Mis. Davis and M. Griflith and prevent their
eseape.

The Larcoeny Case.

The cuse against Mirs, Davis on the larceny
charge wos pending in Justice court and had been
continued from time to time with no effort really
mitde Lo complete the hearing, until the people
were wenried with the talk about the case, com-
pletely disgusted and were censuring the oflicials
[or so much deluy,

On the 22nd day of October, 1889, the prelimi-
nary in that ense was hod before a Justice in
Niles, Michigan., Mr, Diek had returned from
Kansas and hoth he and Mrs. MeCann were
present nnd heard the testimony in the case,
NMrs. Davis, in her Ltestimony on her own behalf,
stated that she had been threatened by the son-
in-lnw of N, Griflith, and by the Prosecuting
Allorney Bridgeman with the penitentiary. She
stated her unwillingness to give her Lestimony, as
it would be ngainst her mmhur, Murs, Griffith, and
would “send her to the pen.”  She then proceeded
to tell a story of much lenglh in which she said
thatshesaw her mother murderaninfant, theillegiti-
mate child of anolher daughter, when Mrs, Davis
wad n littde givl, in 1859; that her mother killed an
old woman with an ax-helve and disposed of the
body by welghting it and sinking it-in a slough,
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tanking the witness, then o litte girl, with her at
night; that her mother had been arrested, tried,
convicted, sentenced and committed Lo the
Detroit House of Correction and had served a
term there for manslaughter. 7

She stated that she had received letters from her
mother written from Kansas, Colorado and Texas
from 1872 to 1874. That those letters had Intely
been stolen from witness; that Elizabeth, an older
daughter of Mrs. Griflith, married a Mr. Sanford.
He wns murdered by that daughterand her mother,
Mm. Griffith, at Windsor, Canadn, when witness
was a little girl, eight or ninc years old.  Witness
described the killing and her running nway. That
the same daughter, Elizabeth, married Stokes, the
man who killed Fisk in New York; that her
mother told her of the killing of her husband,
Griffith, and that his body was Lthrown into a well.

Upon the uncorroborated story of Mrs. Davis,
after she gave that testimony, which shows how
unrelinble were statements made by her, and Lhe
uncertain evidence of idenlily by persons who had
not seen old Mrs. Bender for more than sixteen
years, it was deeided that Mm. Almira Grifiith
was really old Mrs. Bender and shie must be tnken
to Kansas to be tried for the murder of Dr. Wil-
liam H. York and other victims of Lthatl notorious
Bender family.

But more strange than this, and without any
cvidence except the factl that she was the daughter
of M. Griflith, it was delermined that Sarmh
Eliza Davis, who had resided in Kansas several
yecans of late, and had told Mrs. McCann the story
upon which the Bender Iden hnd developed, was
the veritable Kate Bender, Jr.; thol she must be
taken to Kansas with her mother, also charged
with the murder of Dr. York and the other Bender
victims, 7

leroy F. Dick was present and heard all the
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testimony In that lnrceny case as given by M.
Griffith, Mrs. Davis nand others. lHe saw und
Lalked with hoth of these women in Michigan,
heard their numerous stories, tallked with two other
daughters of Mrs. Griflith, and with other people
who had known both of these women since Lhe
carly sixties. He was there as the representative
of Labette Counly, Kansas, with authorily to
fully investigate and determine whether they were
in fact the Hender women. He knew the Benders
when he lived near them, and he should have
known them when he saw them in Michigan.

It was declded Lo take these Lwo women Lo Os-
wego, Kansas, as the Bender women; seperate
Mrs. Davis from three little children all dependent
on her lnbor for support, and throw them on the
public chnrgc—uul:,cclﬂ of charity which they had
never heen while living wilth their mother. But
more sad Lhan all of this, {he youngest child of
Mrs. Duvis wid nursing, and if the mother wenl to
jull, that chitd must go, Loo, and go it did with its
mother Lo Oswego, Knnsny, and there remuined in
“durance vile' until its mother was discharged.

The Bonder Women tn Jail.,

Leroy F. Dick, nccompanied by Mrs. MceCann,
took those women from Niles, Michigan, to Oswego
charged with the murder of Dr. William . York,
nt the Bender House, in Labette County, Kansas,
With its mother he took that nursing child alon
toa prison. He delivered them to the SherifT, W.
I’. Wilson, aL Oswego, on the 15t day of November,
1889, thereby performing his part in that sad
dmﬂa, as fully and auccessful{;' as he possibly
could.

News of the npprehension of such noted crimi-
nals wns widely published in the newspapers all
over Lhe State of Kansas and in the large citics of
the West.
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The two wemen, Mrs, Almirn Griflith and Mrs.
Surah Elizn Davis, and (he little two-year-old girl
lunguished in “durance vile,"

CHAPTIER XVI.
The Defendants’ Attorneys,

On the second day of November, 1889, Judge
H. G. Webb of Parsons, ond J. 1. Jumes, lately
[rom Minneapolis, Minnesoln, became Lhe atlor-
neys for the defense of these Lwo women. The
women were [ar from home, friends and acquain-
taneces; Lhey were without money or ready means
Lo mnke their defense and Lhey could not pa
counsel fees. These Ltwo attorneys umlcrlooi’;
the defense, well knowing Lthat they would have
i long, hard fght and they gave Lheir Lime, money
and legal nbilily to the service of these defendants.

As lnwyers, they were ready and willing Lo do
this work, and thus perform their duly in the
defense of Lhe poor, as under the oath taken upon
admission Lo practlice, all lawyers are required to
do, They trusted in that reward of the future,
which will always come Lo the worthy lawyer,
who gains a reputalion honorably in the defense
of those charged with some great erime, as was that
of the Benders.

The Trial of the Alleged Bewders.,

Under the laws of Kansns, at that time, a pre-
liminary hearing must be given persons charged
with the commission of o erime.  T'he hearing of
the charge for murder, against these women, as
Lhe Benders, was set for Monday, the 18th day of
November, 1884, at the howr of 10 o'cloek in Lhe
forenoon.  The specilic charge was Lhe murder of
Dr. Willlam H. York, on the 6th day of May,
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1873, at and within Lubette Countly, Kansas,
The Justice record recited that the warrant was
returned and filed November, 2, 1889, with Kate
Bender, Sr. and Kate Bender, Jr., in court. The
hearing was had in the District Courl room, in
the Court House ot Oswego. Justice of the Peace
E. D. Kiersey associated with himself for the hear-
ing of this case, Justices C. T. Bridgeman and D,
Doyle, under a provision of the Statute of Lhe
State of Kannsas, which authorized such associa-
tion to be made, if the Justice considered the case
of suflicient importance Lo require it.

The State was represented by Proseculing Al-
torney John. . Morrison and Judge Frank H.
Atchinson. The defense was represented by Judge
H. G. Webb and J. 'T. James.

At 10 o'clock in the forenoon of Monday, the
18th day of November, 1889, the hour set for this
hearing, the Court room was filled with a crowded
and euager audience, a fair proportion of those
present  being Indies. The defendants, Mrs.
Griflith and Mrs. Davis, with the little girl, were
brought into court by Sheriff Wilson and his son,
D. H. Wilson, under-sheriff. The defendants
took seals as coolly ns Lthe most disinterested
speclator.  After awhile, Mms. Davis, about whom
the little dnughlcr wns playing, seemed Lo become
impressed with the seriousness of the charge
against her and she shed tears freely. Mrs.
Griffith, on the contrary, bore the ordeal wilh
stoic indifference. |

That hearing Insted through sessions of Lwo
days and evenings. Upon the calling of the case
a recess was Livken untll 1 o'clock in the afternoon.

To accomodate the Altorneys for the Stale and
save the time it would take nnd the trouble to
call witnerses to make the proof of the fnets, Judge
Webb, of counscl for defense, on behall of Lﬁc
defendants, admitted that the body of n man,
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ldentified ns that of Dr. William H. York, was
found buried on the Bender Place, in Labette
Counly, Stale of Kansas, on the fifth day of May,
1873, thus waiving the necessity for the State Lo
prove Lhe life and death of Doclor York. With
Lhese ndmissions of record, the only question for
the Court Lo pass upon was Lhe identifieation of
these defendonts, Mri. Almira Griffith as Kate
Bender, Sr., and Mrs. Sarnh Eliza Davis as Kale
Bender, Jr.

Upon request made by Judge Webb, wilnesses
for l‘lL‘ Stale were ealled, sworn and excluded from
the Court room. Upon a like request by Prose-
cuting Attorncy Morrison the wilnesses for the
defendants were called, sworn and excluded from
the Courl room. The reading of the charge
againsl the defendants was waived by Judge
Webb, for the defense, and the case proceeded with
the introduction of Lestimony.

The State called ns the first witness, C. W,
BBooth of Cherryvale, Kansas:

Knew the Denders . . . wan best aequainted with Kate

. she worked severnl wecks as diningroom girl at hotel

in Cherryvale during 1871 . . . witneas was cook there . . .
took Kate to dance ot Big 1l in 1872 . . . saw her last
time when with Colonel York and party ot Bender House In
1873 . . . sutliclently nequainted with Kate to identify her.

Witness' allention was called Lo Mrs. Davis by
Prosccuting Attorney Morrison. He scrutinized
her closely, then said, ““She bears an awful strik-
ing resemblunce to Kante Bender.”” The witness
was nol able (o identify old Mrs. Bender.

The second witness was T. C. Dick of Arcadia,
lndi?nn, about thirty-five miles north of Indian-
npolis:

Witnens lived with his Inther Willinm Dick, in Labetto
County durlng tlme Benders Jived at Dender House .
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persanolly wequadnted with Bender fomldly . . . frequently
wt Bender house o .. met Kute ot ehuceh and Sumday-
sehool . . . knew Johin, Jr., sl Kote well L, o fumlliare
with yenersd form and festures of Kate . . . could ldentily
her . . . Leroy F. Dick brother of wltness . . . on tele-
gram Teom bim met defendoants with W ut Endhnpolis
o oomaw Mps, Davis mntep from tendn at depot L .. sadil,
*She will B the B as Kote Beadere™ L, from el re-
collection safd “she s Kate Bender” L. can't Identdly
old M, Bemler,

The third witness was John A, Handley of
Greenwood County, Kansas:

Freighted from Fort Secott to Independenee fram 180610 to
187 L L L doew all of Benders .. osaw Kute and John,
Jr., often . . . was at Dender Howse nuce s month durlng
thase yvars . . . stopped to get water and huy yoods
remember distinetly how caelt looked | . . uble to dentily
them,

When asked to look at the two defendants, he
pointed to Nrs. Davis and suid:

“Thut s Kute . . . polnting 10 Mra. Geillith, sald: *that
inoldd Lady Bender," . . . Witness, with his wife nnd Mr, undd
M. Willium Littler, staopped at Bender House In April
1870 to pet waoter . . . nsked Kuote for bucket . . . she
rald “*You oupht to have it In a very Insolent wimnnner . .
from her netiona then, nid the actions of M. Duavis at the
trinl, wiltness wos nble to say that Mrea. Dovie waee Knle
Bender.

The fourth witness was NMes. Delin Ikeck:

Lived close to Benders . L . knew old nan, John ml
Kote . . . knew Knte best , . . et her st Snbboth-scliool
and nt home of father-in-low of witnesa . . . anw hier often
c¢nough to get ool Impression of her . .. Mra. Davin'
eyes and halr, and high eheek banes resemble strongly those
of Kuote Beader ., . in witness' judgment she la Knto
Bender,
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I'ilth witness was ‘1. 13, Sinith;

M., Davis' nose and hadr resemble Kot Bender . . .
ununble to ldentify Mra, Dender,

~ Sixth witness wos Rudolph Broelemann of Osage
Township, Labette County:

Lived thero sineo 1870 . . . knew Boendor famlly well .
. four members . . . two men and two women . . . old
mun Nender was six feot hlgh . . . blnek halr , . . stralght
brond shouldors . . . nhout fifty-iive yenm old , . . the
old womnn hud darle e . . . fAve feot, six or elght inches
tnll , , . pretty tall woman . ., medlum shouldered . . .
winlk lively . . . lforty to forty-five yenrs old . . . hroud
hend . . . fleshy fuce . . . Koloe had dark hoir . . . broad
nhoulders, u Httle stouped . . . slight murk or scar under
left eye . . . five feel, three or four Inches high . . slower
thun old lody . . . aboul clghteen yenrn old when they
left . .. not u full glel whon they came . . . she tnlked
nbout wsuperpnturat power . ., spirituallsm . . . o great
denl of Lnlk in nelghborhood . . . hale dork i witness' halr
v o . very dark . ., Tull fuce . . . high cheek bones . .
chin howed u little over . . . not mueh . . . blg mouth . .
. old Mm. Bender never talked [Engllsh, that witpess henrd

. she tulked German to witness . . . Benders enme first
o witnens' place . . . Benden settled on elnbin north-enst

. were nenrest neighbom  north-cast , .. I lived
lived north snd Frye lived cost of witnew' place ., . .
Bonders enma In Fall of 1870 , . . left Spring 1873 . . .
Hyed as u fnmily on their elaling oll ogether . . . fimt went
. southweat of witness ploee . . . bullt log house . . . lived
in thut one winter . . . In Spring moved to the Bender
House . . . John and Knte were talked of ns brother and
aister . . . Bondern liveld on witness’ place ten days when
they first cume . . . could nll talk Germnn language . . .
Mrs. Bender was not 1 Yankee woman.

Judge Webb requested both of the defendants
to stand up.  He uasked the witness, “Are either
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of these women the DBenders?' Witness said:
“They may be, but 1 will never believe iL.”

Old M Bender was o bigger woman than this old lady

. think Benders came from old country . . . John JIr.,
might have been born In thls country . . . old mnn Donder
safd ho hod lHved on the French lne and ron o bakery . . .
they were not Amerlcans . . . Mm. Dender was o taller
woman than this old lady . . . Mm. Dender wnn not so
fleshy . . . had higher cheek bones . . . longer face . . .
might be mistaken,

The Court took a recess until seven o'clock in
the cevening. During that recess, those who
were so very sure that M. Griflith and Mrs.
Davis were the Bender women, were purticular]
interested in discussing the testimony of Rudolph
Brockmann.

With a sncer and an assumed wise look, Lhoy
attempted to recall thosesuspicionsaroused ngainst
Mr. DBrockmann by the scarching party with
Colonel York, at the Bender place, when Mr.,
Brockmann was repeatedly hanged to make him
tell of his supposcd complicity in the Bender
crimes. By insﬁwnling that he was an accomplice
and by numerous innuendocs, it was attempted to
revive those suspicions, give them new lifeand
thereby discredit his Lestimony.  Through more
than sixteen years, which had elapsed since that
eventful day, those suspicions had slumbered.

As a witness in Court, under oath, Mr. Brock-
mann had told what he knew about the Benders
and their doings, just as he did in reply to the in-
quiries made ES; the members of that searching
party at the Bender place. He testified that he
did not believe that the two women under arrest
and on trial were the Bender women.  Mr. Brock-
mann had lived on his farm during nll these years
and nothing had developed to establish any com-
plicity on his part with the Bender crimes, nor to
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show Lhat he was nol a law abiding citizen. He

had been called as n witness by the Statle, which

was suflicient guarantee that he was a truthful

and to be believed., |
The evening sesslon of Lhe court was commenced

Bromptlv at 7 o'elock. The seventh wilness was
r. G. W. Gabriel of Oswego, Kansas:

Forty-seven yeam of ago . . . renlded n Labette county
since 1871 . . . knew Dender ploce . . . Bender family
composcd of old man, old Indy, John, Jr., and Kute . .
mel all . . . met Mm. DBender frequently when visiting
family that lived near Denders, to treal patlents ., .,
saw Kntonl same plnce n timeor two . . . would know them
If hnd mot them In this County . . . huve seen these defen-
donts In this court room , .. old Indy resembles M,
Bender . . . sho |n {leshier and older . . . haven't met
Dender women alnee 1872 or 1878 . . . any thero s some
resecmblance . . . more In old lady than in younger . . .
had convermation with Mrs. Bender and Kate . . . heard
Lboth talk . . . Mrs. Dender hnd German nceent . . . she
was Germon descent . . . nothing of German occent in
volce of Knte . . . hicard this old Indy defendant talk here
to-night ., . . she didn't talk ns broken as Mm. Dender & . .
only resemblance s in generol appenrance . . . Mm. Bender
waa lorger . . . Kote's hale was auburn, neither light nor
darlk . . . never snw M. Dender except at two houses. . .
saw Knte nt Boyd's and think at Darsons . . . will not
swear positively that the defendonts are the Bender women
. « « do say, thero [s n wonderful resemblance . . . never
saw these women, only to-day, in the court room . . .
Kate Bender claimed sho could eall up apirits and commune
with them.

The eighth witness was Mm. Dientz who had
Hved in Osage Township since 1871:

Remember Bender famlly . . . not acquainted . . .
have seen tho two younger members, John and Kate . . .
sho hnd auburn halr . . . very nico . . . done up in roll
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once and bralded next tlme . . . glel of protty good slzo .
. welpht about ane bundred und thicty pounds . . . aboul
nineteen or twenty years old .. . lght eyes . .. high
cheek bones ., . common-sized nose, bont a llttle, not
much . . , saw her theee thmes . . . twice in house and
once with Jolin Jr., in wangen . . . younger defendant In
countenince resembles Kate somo but her {eatures uro nol
like Kote . . . Kate had o murk on ono of her chechs up
close to the eye . . . not u mole or warl . , . looked )ke
it hod been o burn . . . not lorge . . . Kute clolmed shio
could enll up spieits . . . wonted to call up splrit of my von
. « told her to let my folks nlone, dend er nlive.

The ninth witness wns Willinm Dick, who hud
resided in Labette County slnee 1870 and waos
seventy-two years old:

Lived in Quwego Townahlp 1870 to 1870 .. . know
Bendem well & . . lived three miles fram the Bender ploeo
« » « been there frequently . . 0 mel two men and two
women , . . not much acquuinted with women . . ., herded
cuttle on praleie near Nender pluce . . . would recognlzoe
women [ met them out from home ., . have seon these
defendanmta ..., older one resembles M, Bender . . .
younger one resembles Knte some . . . could not deacribo
Kate so well . . . It lsa my judgment that this old lndy
resembles Mm. Bendee some , . . could not swour poal-
tively that It is her . . . na to Knte cannot be so positive
. .« . met Kate on horseback . .. snw her In Sunday-
schiool at school house . . . old mun Bender tulked vory
hroken Engllah . . . we tulked German . . . old Indy suld
In German, she did not think they could run the pluee . . .
did naot think old lndy could talk Engllsh.

Cross-examinalion by Judge Webb:

Lived three miles south-east of Benders . . . Monuhuy,
Lindsay and Linn Mved near nelghborm to Denders . . .
nearer than witness . . . John, Jr., held clafm north of old
man Dender . . . no one llved on John's clajm . . . West
of Bender's Ellm clalmed the luned . . . know thoe men of
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Bender fumlly . . . better than women . . . knew old
Mm. Doender better than Kale . . . nover conversed with
Kata ., . . we nodded hends ns wo pnssed . . o men were
there nll the time but ence, John, Jr., wna nwoy ., . . traded
a little ut Denders . . . wos walted on by old mun Bender
overy tlme ., . saw Mm, Dender but one time . . . nmoa
Lancaster County, Pennaylvanin, Dutchman . . . learned
German when ot work for n learned German . . . eouldn’t
declde whothor ald Indy waos a forelgnor or not . . . old mun
Bender told me he was n Hollander . . . John, Jr., told me
he wan barn In this country . . . thin old ludy delendunt
to-tlny when she hnd slde view made me think of Mrms.
Bender na | snw her sinnd in the door nt Bender pluce . . .
should say Mry. Dender at thnt time welghed one hundred
nnd thirty pounds . . . this old Indy might not welgh quite
so much . . . nol much difference . . . Kute was [alr com-
plexion . . . fine fentures . . . suw lier once ol home po-
Ing about liouschold dutles . . . sume glel I snw 0t Sunduy-
school . . . notlced no partleular thlngs about her . ..
Kalo wna five feet, Nve fuches, or therenbouts . . . weighed
one hundred and twenty lo one hundred and twenty-[ive
pounds . . . wpelghtly, pead  looking  lady . . . nleely,
well proportloned . . . slood erect and walked Indy like,
kprightly . . .

On re-direel examinatlinn, at the request of the
Prosecuting Allorney, the defendant, Mrs. Davis,
slood up,  Witness snid her height was just the
snme 08 Kate Bender.

The Stale recalled C. W, Booth Lo the stand
and he gaid that the last Lime he saw Kate Bender
wns il the party at Big Hill:

Firat saw these defendanta sinee dinner here to-dny o . .
win In Oawego Insl time belore to-duy nt June term of Court
. . . hnve not been here for thirty duya.

The tenth witness was NMaurice Sparks, who
lived in Osage Township at Lhe time of the dis-
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covery and exhuming of the bodies on the Bender
place:

Not much acquainted with Benders . . . especlally
women . . . saw women bbout place . . . rememnber
general appearance . . . old lady Dender seemed to bo fifty
yearsold . . . some grey . . . slender of build , . . rather
broad across the shoulders . . . halr had been dark . . .
some grey . . . medlum helght . . . Kato wos not very
tall . . . medium size . . . square, blocky girl . . . stout
Luild . . . round [uco . . . nuburn linlr . . . nover spokoe
to her . . . observed these defondonts here In court room
to~day . . . resemble some partles [ have seon . . . don'L
think Mra. Dender wos so full in fuco as the older defendnnt
. « . can't form opinlon ns to Koto . , . If there s any
resemblance, younger defendant does look more Hke Kante,
than the older defendant looka like Mm. Bender . . .
older defendant’s halr s as | rcemember M. Dender's hair .
. . younger defendant’s halr Is darker than Kate's halr . . .
Kote nt home wns dressed cheap and plaln . . . ot church
she was well dressed . . . don’t remember any parilcular
mark or [cature by which 1 could recognize her . . . was
sprightly, activegirl . . . hairkind of auburn . . . between
light and dark . . . am not posted about halr . . . olsecr-
vation of Knte was general . . . have acen her at Bender
House . . . pnas ofong road . . . at church In sachool-
house . . . she wans about twenty years of age . . . thero
was a mark on Kate's face on the cheek . . . n kind of molo

. eannot locate It . . ., was not sunken .. . if anything
projected a little . . . think it was on tho left cheek . . .
could not any that seeing scar on this defondant’s oye does
cnable me to aay more definitely where Kate's scar wos . . .
Benders were thero some over o year after my return . . .
] lived about ono mile south-west from them . . . Brock-
mann lived between my place and Denders . . . [ had been
awany about onc year . . . returned In Spring . . . they
were living there when I returned . . . thoy left in April
1873, or about that time . . . may be I lived by thom flor
two years ... knew young John bettoer than tho
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others . . . have seen M. Dender nt home wwice or three
timen,

It was nearing midnighl when Lhe testimony of
Sparks was completed, and the Court Look n recess
until Tuesday, the 19th of November, 1889, at
clght o’clock in Lthe morning. Promptly at that
hour the Courl convened ready Lo proceed with
hearing witnesses oflered by the State.

The second day of this hearing atliraclted a
great deal of attention, The Courl room was
yucked with lndies nnd genllemen as an audience.

rs. GriMith reltalned her serenily, bul would
wince a Lrifle and her mouth would Lwist, when
wilnesses pointed at her and were positive in Lheir
slalements thal she was old Mrs. Bender. Mms.
Davis frequently gave vent to her feelings in a
flood of tears. {Ier baby, bright-eyed and flaxen-
haired, was at her side and about her knees con-
slantly, and nursed the mother’s breast at regular
intervals during the proceedings in full view of the
audience.

Mrs. McCann occupied n seat within the bar,
close Lo the Prosecuting Altorney and took care-
ful notes of Lhe proceedings for future use in the
rosecution of her search for the murderers of her
[nther, She was o slightly buill woman, nol
welghing over ninety-five pounds, had large, pene-
truting grey eyes, prominent chin, which showed
her to be a woman of determination, During
Lthe progress of Lhe hearing her features remained
pnl.{-u; ve, no malter what turn the evidenee would
LakKe.

The firsl wilness called for the State on Tues-
day morning, and the cleventh that the State
offered in the hearing, was Leroy F. Dick:

Realde now in Parsons, Knnsas . . . resided In Labette
County twenty-one yeams . . . lived In center ol Osage
Township 1B71 to 1874 . . . wns n married man at that
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time and Township Trustee . . . knew Bender place . . .
lived four miles from it . . . koew Bender fumlly woll . .
better uoquainted with men folks . ., mel them at elee-
tions . . . tricd to “awap’ hormes with them one time In
the timber . . . met Kute at Sunday-school . . . old lmly
Bender came to mevting o . . have seen nll of them at home
« .« my uequaintunce wus such that 1 would recognlzo
them any time . . . remember them now us they were then
. country was sparsely settlead and new . . . all who
lived within ten miles of cach other were nelghbors . . .
several things about Katewould nttroet nttention . . . form
« . « looks . .. Tact thut she wns o Spiritunlist . . . huve
reen both women at home, twice . . . nothing particular
to attract attention . , . was present when bodles nt Ben-
der pluce were exhumed . . . Bendem' absence was (ls-
covered on Sabbath . ., went there mysell Mondny morn-
Ing . . . did not remain nll doy . . . made w hasty dispo-
sitlon of the stock.

~ Witness here prepared a pencil dingram of the
Bender premises.

Had convemation with Denders . . . not with women .
. « have heard them talk to euch other . . ., old lndy talked
German and English . . . she had German aceent . . .
have talked with this old lady defendant In German . , .
mald to her, * Kann Ich nicht cerkaufen?' . . . she replied,
‘Das kann du nich' . . . interpreted it means "*Cun 1 aell
you?' . . . "That you cunnot do.” . . . lHave secen these
defendants often . , . saw them at Berrlen Springs, Michi-
gan . . . they did not know what 1 wan there for . . . lnter
I anked them to tell me where they lived durlng 1871 Lo
18796 . . . they told of severnl places . . . younger defen-
dant In her teastimony in Michigun sald this old lndy Is not
her mother . . . that she was the veritablo old Mm. Bender
+ « » I would recognize the Bendern were I to ace them .,
defendants are old M. Hender and Kate . . . In private
conversation younger defendant told me old ludy was ol
Mra. Mark . . . that younger defendant was her step-
duaghter . . . 1ald me history of old Indy . . . rald she In
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old Mrs. Bunder . . . told me thut in Michlgan and on way
here . . o Koto Dender had smnll wart or inole under lier
eyo . . . my recollection it wus under lefteye . . . naw [t ut
n sloging of mine . . . witnisa deseribied finding of mutlla-
tedd bodles of Bender victima nnd thelr uppearnnee . . .
gave detnfled deneriptlon of Bender House, cellur und gor-
den nnd orchard whera vietlma wero burled . . . heads of
oll, excopt little girl, were bhadly crushed by biows from
hammers of different sz . . . found three hnmmem . . .
n colller welghing six pounds , . . nn Alaation shoe-hammer
nnd cammon amull hammer , . . have all these hammerns
nni n clocl.

Cross-examinalion by Judge Webb:

Kute Dender hod nuburn halr . . . between light and
dork . ., . eyes between hinzel and blue . . . was between
nineteen nnd twenty-one yenm of age . . . shoulden square
and thrown back . . . step, quick and aprightly . . . talked
reely . . . lorge mouth . . . heavy lips, slightly pouting
o « « perfeet teeth . ., very bright . . . helght five feet,
two ta five Inches . . . ol lady DBender | saw ns ahe andd
Kaote werestanding in door . . . saw her twice in 1871 . . .
think 1 snw her ut meeting In Spring, 1872 . . . twice after
that ut Dender House . . . she had German aceent . . .
hnve now in my nlmid how Bender women looked then . . .

Witness was nsked Lo look nt defendants, which
he did and said: “They are Mrs. Bender and Kate
Bender, 1 have no doubt as to them.”

Mne. Davis told me in Mlcehigan thut ahe ik step-dnughter
of Mm. Monroe . . . Mrs. Davis told me thia s the veritable
old lundy Bender nnd thnt she would alwaya so testify, when
permitted to do so . . . Kate had mark or mole under her
left oye . , . sce Mra. Davis has ono under herlefteye . .
Went to Mlichigan to see the woman nlleged to be Bender
women . . . plcture of women saw on Dender farm that |
knew resembled closcly women here naw . . . from leatures
nnd countenance would say they were one and aame , , .
In Michignn old Indy defendnnt sald she thought slin hnel
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sovin me some where . . . Elizn sald she bhad, too . . .
ald Iady gave e n wink und wished to know If 1 would talk
with her privately . . . shosaid, *Before God, U thero was n
Kute Bender, Mm Davis certninly wns'' . . Had been
marricd several times . . . fimt to Van Alstein . ., after-
wands to Mark Aben Bartlett . . . she left him beeouse he
killed an ilegitimate child drowning it In slop bucket . . .
then married Monroe . . . lelt him . . . marerled Gelffith
. . . had a daughter sho hnd not scon for years . . . nho
thought she had found her In person of M. McCann . . .
ahe had read of Bender outrages . . . how they burled dend
in orchard . ., that it occurred near Cheeryvale In South-
ven Kunsas ., ., Afterwands hod long conversation with
Mrs. Davis . . . she told me Mrs. Monroe wns old Mm.
Bender.

The Prosecuting Attorney, Mr. Morrison, here
announced “State rests.”

The testimony of Leroy F. Dick was the most
yimportanl presented by the State, and wns most
damaging to the defendants.
~ Mrs. Griffith had the keenest realization of this
fact. Several times she rose to her feet, mullered
in a low tone her denunciation of what she termed
the false statements Dick was making in his testi-
mony. Especially did she give indignanl expres-
sion when Dick gave the conversation between
himselfl and her in German. She did not under-
stand German and could notl speak it. Dick had
clearly sworn false about her in that matter and
she was furious. ‘To the audience her mutterings
were unintelligible, and the uninformed were
certain that it was evidence of her guilt.

Once only, and that was when Maurice Sparks
gave evidence of the mark under the left eye, did
Mra. Davis show the nwful effect the identification
had on her. She winced, the color mounted to her
cheeks and her eyes filled with tears repeatedly.
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Many were sure that this was evidence thal she .
wis renlly Kate Bender.

The little ehild played nround as if nolhing was
being done.  [L knew not, forLunalely for it, that
identification of the mother ns Kate Bender, meant

rison for life, possibly death on the gallows
or the mother, and for this little one a home in an
alms-house, where two of the children of Mrs,
Davis had been placed in Michigan sinee she had
been arrested and brought to Kansas and placed
in jnll. Or that, perehance, it meant a life in an
orphannge somewhere, and being brought up ns
had been Mrs. MceCann, the cause of all of Lhe
trouble for Lhese defendants since the Bender
iden hatched.

The testimony of Leroy F. Dick as given in
Lthis ease will not bear analysis by the trained legal
mind. [t satisficd the minds of the majority of
the people who were in Court and heard it and
iL was suflleient for the Prosecuting Attorney Lo
convince Lhe minds of three Justlices of the Peace
and to get the defendants held to the District
Court for trinl on the charge. The Prosccuting
Atlorneys in their desire to be successful in a case
too often secure such results, not giving evidence
the analysis which all trinl lawyers, with skilled
minds should, and usually do, 7

The defense was begun by calling ns the first
wilness Thomas Jeans, a resident of Labelte
Counly, llving in Osage Township during the time
that the Benders were al Bender House.  Helived
less than three-fourths of n mile south-ecast of the
Bender place:

Fifty-six yeam of nge . . . knew Benders when building
framo house . , . four in family . . . old man, old Indy,
John, Jr.,, nnd Kato . . . know nl] when saw them . . .
lived nelghbor nll thmeo they lived there . . . often nt Bender
placo . . . saw oll together one Sunday . . . another time
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saw old man, old lady and Kute there . . . sold thein wood
all time they lived there . . . when they got nequointed
with any one Lhey stuck to that one , . . wun wt Denders
perhaps a dozen times . . . saw Kate nt old man Hill's . .
. would recognlze women when mot them . . . ald man
Bender was about sixty years old . . . John, Jr,, twonty-
five to tuenty-cight . . . old lndy ity to sixty . . . Knate
nbout twenty-one or twenty-two . . . very falr . . . (nfr
skin . . . dark-red holr . . . five feet, four or five Inches
tall . . . believe would know her i sce her now . . . be-
lieve would know old lady DBender . . . old man Bender
was very rough . . . observed theso defendunta . . . lalked
with them . . . old lndy Bender tulketd langungo 1 could not
understand . . . don't recognize tha volco of theso defon-
dants as of any one I ever knew . . . cun understand this
old lady defendant . . . old lady Hender was too Dulchy
for me . . . never saw clther of these defendants before 1
raw them at Lansing . . . upon my best judgment don't
think either of these defendanta are the Bender women.

Cross-examination by Prosecuting Attorney
Morrison for Stale:

Kaote wns medium sized glel . . . stood up ateaight . . .
talked almllar to other glrls . . . dork-red hadr . . . think
her ey were blue . . . [falr complexion . . . five feet,
four or five Inches tall . . . nbout uverage helght of women

. ol lady Dender wns a little old woman . . . under
ordinary helght . . . quite small.

Re-direct examination:
Never had any convermation with Kate . . . heard her

talking with Mixs King . . . have used spectacles for fine
gight five or six years . . . before that my sight wan good.

The second witness for Lthe defense was Sllns
Tales, of Peru, in Chautauqua Counly, Kansus:

Lived in Osage Township, Labette County, 1871 to 1870
. . . knew Hender placo . . . lived about hall mile from
Bender House , . ., Nenders there when [ went there Lo
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Hve . . . wag nenr them elghteen months . . . know family
well . . . never apoko with old Indy Dender . . . went Lo
Nender store with my brother for groceriea . . . saw John,
Jr., . .. Kute ond old lady . . . llving so close often
passed there . . . saw Koto und John ns they eame from
comp-meeting ground in 1872 . . . Saturdoy nfternoon . .
. had long convematlon . . . frequently saw Kote nnd old
Indy ns posscd house . . . Kuto had light blue eyes . . .
light hair . . . sondy order . . . slight build . . . five feet
two inches tall . . . old ludy dork halr nnd cyes . . . may-
be hair Hitle gray . . . she was slender . . . from acyuuin-
tunce nt that thae think would recognize them . . . they
mny hinve changed some . .. It {8 my judgment would
recognize them . . . boave seen nnd tolked with defendanta
« + . txomined them with view to identlfy them . ., It s
my judgment that these defendunts are not the Bender.

Cross-examinntion by Prosecuting Attorney
Morrison:

Am forty-nine . . . wus present at discovery of bodles .
. » with Linn Plerce first discovered condition of Bender
premises after they left . . . hod not been near for some time
beforo this discovery . . . had only two conversntions with
Kute,

Courl took recess until one o'clock in the after-
noon.

When Courl convened afler recess Silas ‘Toles
wns on Lhe stand for further cross-examination
?ml Lhe Prosccuting Attorney showed him two
leticrs:

Witness admitted thot the handwriting waa his .
lind two conversntions with Kate BDender . . . can't tell
how often saw her when dldn't conversa with her.

The third witness called for defense was Mrs,
Vesta Green:

Reslde In Oawego . . . lived in Shiloh Township, Neosho
County, Kunsas, belore came here . . . wos acquainted
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with a [ew persons in Oange Township, Labetto County . . .
know where the Bender place is loented . . . have beon ol
that place . . . wos there in 1871 . . . wan in house threo
timest . . . took dinner there . . . was perhaps five or slx
months between my vislts . . . wan there twlce one month
« - .+ four members of the fumily . . . have conversed with
Bender women ench time was there . . . nover suw them
anywhere else . . . two men ond two women ., ., . girl's
name Kate . . . boy, John, Jr. . . . think remember how
Kate looked . . . was twenty . . . had ouburn holr . . .
medium  height . . . [reckled foce . . . old ludy DBender
tried to talk to mmo . . . could not understand her . . .
thought she was German by her talk . . . when bodles
were discovered 1 was in IHinols . . . stopped thero two or
three yenes . . . think would bo nble to recognlze tho
women . . . especlally old Indy . . . her oyes were closo
together . . . too close to look nice . . . they were particu-
lurly peculiar in appearance . . . it is a long timo sinco 1
saw them . . . think would know them .. . have scen
defendants . . . once belare they come Into court room . .
. have talked with them .. . do not recognize In them
cither of the Bendern . . . think theso defendants are not
same women | saw ns Denders.

Cross-cxamination by [Prosccuting Atlorney
Morrison:

They do not look like the Benders . . . ol lady Bender
was German . . . this woman s o Yankeo . . . saw de-
fendants next day after they came . . . went on my own
responsibility . . . was in DeKalb County, lllinols, at time
of publication of Bender crimes . . . had been thero only
short time . .. went once to Cherryvale . . . Lwice to
Independence when wo stopped nt Bondors . . . old Mm,
Dender tried to talk English but could not understand her
. + - . she wan fifty-five or sixty . . . oyes closo togother .

. « grey halr . . . Kate had auburn halr, between red nand
Lrown.
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Mr. Morrison nsked witness to Lell just what
she meant by auburn,

Witness pointed Lo Mr. James, one of Lthe atlor-
neys [or defense, and snld his mustache was nuburn
us wilneas mennt by that color.

Kuate wns of good form . . . round, full foco . . . nice
looking . . . tolked some with defendants ot Lawson’s
houso . , . remaincd ten minutes, told them If they were
Benders they muat know mo . . . sald they did not know
me.

Re-direet examination:

Only two rooms in Dender House thnt withess observed
. . . cunvnr partitlon,

- The Tourth witness for the defense was Dr.,
E. W. Wright:

Practlalng physician . . . realde In Oawego . . . lived
in Labette County twenty-two yenrs . . . . Oswego been
homo . . . know geography of the County well . . . was
here when bodies of murdered porsons were exhomed , |, .
1872 Indy come to my offlco Lo got medicine for chills . . .
wns {old slioc wan Kate Bendor . . . she wos hero ostensibly
to leeture . . . was of sandy complexion . . . five feot
four or live luches tadl . . . high cheek bones . . . In my
oflice in 1872 ns near as [ can recolleet . . . younger de-
fondant Is not Kate Bender If woman who came to my office
wan Knte Bender . . . Kate was taller than this defendant

. + « defondant Is not the womann who called at my office as
1 think.

The Hfth witness for the defense was H. G.
Miller of Cherryvale:

Lived there over n yenr . . . before thnt al Oswego ten
or twelve yeam . . . know Bender place . . . have been
thero soveral times . . . maw members of fumlly when |
stopped to buy things aspassed . . . haveseen two old peo-
ple and two young people . . . old man, old woman, young
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mun undd young woman . . . can't say over heard cithor
tulk . . . cun't deserlbe either womon . . . eun't recognize
clther of those women In delendants.

The sixth wilncss_f or the defense was A. Stewart
of Coiley County, Kansas:

Wos In luw business 1871, 1872, 1873 . . . pussed through
Labette County . . . stopped ut Bender Houso four thaes
.+ » met old gentlemaon, old ludy and girl . . . old womun
called her daughter . . . think anw enough of old Indy to
deseribe her . . . cume Into court room out of curlosity
to ree the Benders . . . nstoyoungerwoman,can’teny . . .
old lady is older than M. Bender was then . . . never suw
two parties resemble more than this old lady and Mm.
Iender . . . don’t know whether wus there In 1873 . . .
was there In 1872 . . . took dinner . . . thought Benders
were out of existence , . . other times just stopped . . .
bought some thingy . . . tulked with old woman . ..
Mm Bender talked conalderably broken.

Cross-examination by Judge Atchinson for
the State:

Can’t swear was there any time In 1873 . . . um very
poor on time and nomes . . . think wna there In Full of
1872 . . . old man Dender looked older than old lndy . . .
she was nbout my age . . . Geeman's age hard totell . . .
think il she were living would be about alxty-live or seventy
. « . call her German from her talk . . . thought she was
German . . . told old lady the girl wan not her child na nho
was not German . . . can't remember that girl wua called
Kate . . . can’tuay that [ sald anything to girl . . . don’t
think cver passed Dender place before 1872 . . . paswnd
twice . . . was there four times . . . first time stopped and
wateredd horees . . . went todoor togo in . . . saw only
old lady and gentlemnn . . . can’t say what time In yoar .

. sceond time about month later . , . it ime wina golng
south-west . , . second time coming bnek . . . third time
coming from PParsonn . . . old Indy there overy time . . .
gittonce . . . oll four once . . . old man talked broken . .
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« more 8o thon old lndy . . . 10 old ledy win hiere to-duy
waukl he seventy yearm old . . . was rather heavy set ., .
stout wanmnn , , . halr tuening . . . didn't think there was
such o Ui an the Bender women now . . . old lady Hender
diin’t apenk plain English . . . here Germun tongue wan
natural . . . It wns not put on . . . this woman Ix more
Heshy o o . how whiter halr than Mres. Beader .. . an not
awenring that this old ludy Iv M. Demlder.

The old Indy defendunt was requested (o talk
with witness which she did in open court for
severnl minutes.  After having the conversalion
with the defendant the witness said, *“This woman
docs not talk ns broken as Mm. Bender did.”

Re-examination by Judge Webb:

Hiuving hened this woman talk 1 think It is different
from whnt it wan then . . . this woman hans not the broken
aceent thot Mrs. Dender had . . . otherwise there Is o
simHarity.

Re-cross-examination by Prosecuting Attorney
Morrison:

Germans talk ull Eaglivh at homne with fumilles and learn
it thoroughly . . . those without children o not improve.

Mmi. Almira Griflith (Monroe) was called as
seventh witness for defense, und on her own behalf
she testified ns follows:

Nume s Alnlen Grelilith . . . maolden namo Almirm HIll .
o« fnthee Georga I . . . hio wos born on Long Island in
1790 . . . mother Charlotte Hill . . . malden nnme Char-
lotte Mamshal . . . wns born in Rhode Island In 1800 . . .
| wan born Saw MIH Run, Little Valley, Cattaraugus
County, New York, in 1821 . . . marricd Simon Mark,
u Frenchmnn, December 21, 1830 . . . at my place of birth
+ «+ had by him twelve ehildren . . . Jumes N., Simon,
Charles, Curollne Eliznboth, Sarah Fliza, Mary Ann, Wil.
llum llenry, Rosctte, Emmett A, Elslo Adnline, Myron A.
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and Myra A . . . Simon Mark died Februroy 13, 1806 . . .
hod three brothers, John, Marshall and Washington, and four
sisters, Cornelln, Loulsa, Mahala und Dorlty.

Cross-exnminntion by Proseculing Allorney
Morrison:

IHnd wo names . . . Mark and VanAlstine . . . never
had name Flickinger . . . never knew PPoter Flickinger . . .
never testified how many times was mareled . . . never
married Bartlett . . . he boarded with me In 1867 . . .
was a1 widow with family . . . Mark woa dead . . . am
sixty-clght . . . married VanAlstine when soventeen . . .
was divorced from him In Cottarnugus County, New York
.. . he had wife living . . . married Simon Maork . . .
Lived with him until his death ot Partland, Mielilgnn, In 1860
. . . lonin County ... marrled Monroo nt Carlton,
Michigan, in 1872 . . . lived In Michlgan (rom 1806 to 1874
. . . March, 1869, went to Natlonal Hotel, lonia, Michigun

. . remained four weeks . . . April, went to Hardeastle,
six miles north of Zllwaukee, Saginuw County, Michigan . .
. at once took my mother to Hancock City . . . lived In
McFadden's house three months . . . Jast of July moved
to St. Charles, Soginaw County, Michlgan . . . lived in Mr.
Howe's house one year and llve montha . . . December,
1870, moved to Grass Lake, Mlichigon . . . llved In house
for wlhich Mr. Nicholson was agent ten months . . . moved
to Saginaw In October, 1871 . . . rented Louls Gonsin-
monger’s house in Colton, n suburb . . . lived thero until
October, 1872 ... marricd Josiah  Monroo here . . .
went with him to Derlin, Mlichigan . . . remained nbout
four weeks . . . Monroe's fimt wife nppeared . . . left
Monroe went to Tekoushn, Calhoun County, Michigan . . .
lived at Tekousha until April, 1874 . . . went to my nister
at Martinsville, Ohlo . . . remained untll September, 1874

. went to Concord, Michignn . . . lived In Mr. Ink'n
house through corn-husking . . . nbout November, 1874,
moved to Saginaw . . . rented George Munger’s house of
his nephew, Hirnm Yakel, his agent . . . house stands closo
to Lutheran church . . . lived In thot house until Apell,
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1876 . . . moved to Claflin’s house on Geneaso Street, East
Saginaw , . , remaolned four weeka . . . May, 18706, went
to my Lrother nt lardacrabble, Michigan . . . he was nn
old man . ., . wonl to takae caro of him . . . remained until
July ... moved to Dundeo, Michlgnn . . . remulned
untll Novembor . . . moved to Nlles, Mlchigan, and liave
Hived thero since . . . married Willinm Stephen Griflith at
Iownrd City, Michigan, Montealm County, July 3, 1880 .
« « llved togothor untll May 1882 . . . ho lelt in search of
work . . . howent to Illinols . . . hins never retumed . . .
went Lo lllinols myself in 1866 . . . to Aurors . . . went
o look for my dnughter, Rosa . . . never hod a Kate In my
family . . . can’t tnlk Gorman . . . can’t understand it .
. . hod no conversntion with Leroy F. Dick In German . . .
nover know nny of the Dick fomily . . . nover saw nny of
them until met him in Niles, Mlchigan . . . never had o
Dutch husbond . . . had no connection whatever with old
man Bonder nor with the Bender family . . . you don't
dure say that | ever lived In Kansns, and was the wife of old
John Bender . . . do not understand the “‘goose langunge’’
that Dick told about . . . was In Detroit Jouse of Correc-
Lion for commitling an abortlon . . . the other defendont
in this caso {8 my daughter Sarah Eliza Davis . . . she is
not Xnte Bender.

Sarah Elizn Davis wns called ns the eighth
wilness for defense, and on her own behalf testi-
fied ns follows:

Woaa born June, 1846 . . . malden nome Mark . . .
carllest recollections nro of Cattarnugus County, New York
. . . marricd man by name of Japhet at Salmonea In 1868
. . . he worked for Morrison . . . fimt kept house at Port
Crissen In 1871 . . . lived ot Salmonca, 1869 . . . then at
lumbor enmp , . . husbond worked In mlill of Walter Hume
« + « wont to Wikl Fowl Bay, 1872 . . . he worked for sume
company, Mr. llume . . . on farm from Spring to 1872 to
IFall, 1873 . . . ho chopped cord-wood for George Taylor
from QOctober, 1873, to April, '14 . . . moved to Caro,
Tuscola County . . . waos thero untll May, 1876 . . . went
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to Orun, Ouklund County, Michlgun , . . workel on farm
therv . . . he changed hls nume to Hirwn Jolhinson whon we
came (0 Michigun . . . cemalned untll Spring, 1876 . . .
went to my mother at Dundee . . . wis divoreed from mmy
husband at Pontine, Michlpgun, September, 1876 . . . re-
mained with mother at Dundece untit last of October or Nt
of November, 1876 . . . wemoved to Nlles ., . Hved with
mother there until Full, 1877 . . . mother hus muwlo her
home In Nl evershnee we moved there . . . went Lo Battle
Creek, Maorch, 15877 . . . lived InJ. 11, Wuldo's house . . .
moved to Bellevue, Enton County, Michigan, July, 1877 . .
. marricd Levi B Madison at Belleview, July 23, 1877 . . .
Ly Justice Bouton . . . went to Madison's farm to live, . .
was there until Fall . . . he truded for furm In Cedar Coun-
ty, Missouri . . . he went there und remalned untll Summer
18573 . . . | went to Missouri, June, 1878 . . . slayed on
farm there seven montha . . . we went to Elmore, Michi-
gan . . . | begon washing . . . my husband was sick . . .
couldl do nothing . . . lved at Elmoere two yeams . ., In
David Jones' house . . . moved to Juclson, Michignn . . .
washed to malntain fumily . . . worked In Weaver Luundry
by theday . . . my husband died in 1882 . . ., remaoined at
work until 1884 . . . moved to McPherson, Knnsas . . .
left Michigan, Februnry, 1884 . . . remalned ut McPheron
two ycars nnd five months . . . returned to Michigan,
July, 188G ... winshed by duy In MePherson . . . wis
mother ol three living chitdren . . . Gustle Moy, Lillle
Almira and Freddle Adelbert . . . children went with moe to
Adrian, Michigan . . . remained until February, 1887 . . .
went to Emporin, Kansas . . . John Feenny went with me
and children to Emporin . . . had married him nt Mecl’her-
son . . . wenl to Quincy, lllinola, September, 1888 . . .
went to Jackaon, Michlgan, with my four childron, Feliruary
1889 . . . this chlld s mine by Feenny . . . was two yeans
old Moy 12th . . . Feenay was brought home dead while
welived at Emporin . . . went to St Jolhins, June, 1880 . . .
went to Lansing, July, 1889 . . . wan larger place . . .
hoped to get more work . . . September, 1889, went to
Nilen on tolegram that mother wns nbout to dlo . . . re-
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tuened In four days . . . wis nrrested on charge of larceny
soon nfter . . . taken before maglstente and discharged . .
. then wan areested nn Kate Bender . . . huve been In jail
nnil custody of oflicer ever since . . . marricd Jumes Duvlis
in Manon, Michignn, Mugust 12, 1889 . . . was nrrented
nbout middlo of September . . . Davin wan ut Lansing
when | come nway . . . he ls o stoneeutter o, i thiry-
nine yeam old . . . hos refused to live with me, or support
me, unti! this churge §s cleared up . . . have theee living
chlldren In Poor House nt Berrlen County, Michigon . . .
they were never n charge upon the public until since my ar-
reat L . . have no knowledge of the Germun lnnguage . . .
nover hwd the nume Bender . . . my mother, the defendant
In this case, Iu not vld Mm. Bender . . . | om not Kate
Bender . ., 1 never sald my mother wan old Mre. Dender .
. » | did nay that if she would have her daughter arrested,
shic would be none too pood to be old Mm. Bender . . . In
the name of God, 1 sny I never bore the nume of Kute Dender
nnd I nm not one of the Bender Mumnlly.

There was no cross-examination of Mrs. Davis
by counsel for the Stale. Upon completion of
Mrs. Davis’ testimony the defense rested.

Prosecuting Attorney Morrison for the State in
rebuttal, offered in evidence a letler from Silas
Tolea to Mrs. MeCnnn about alding her to identif
the Benders, which without objeclion was read.
This closed the case so lar as evidence lor cither
mrty was (o be considered. It was five o'clock
in the afternoon of November 19, 1889. The
arguments of counsel was then begun by Judge
Alchinson for the State. He was followed by
Judge Webb and J. 'I'. James for the defense.
Prosecuting Attorney Morison closed for the
State. ‘T'wo hours was given Lo the discussion of
the case by respective counsel,

The court room was packed with an eager popu-
Ince, waiting breathlessly and anxiously for the
declsion.  The three Justices had n long confer-
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cnce and then Justice Klersey nnnounced the
decision, which was that the evidence was sufll-
cient to identify the defendanis ns the Benders,
and to justifly their being held for trinl in the
District Court of Labette County, Knnsas, upon
l\!le fhurgu of having murdered Dr. William 1.

Ork.

Accordingly they were held without ball for
that murder and committed by the Courl Lo the
custody and keeping of the Sherilf of Labelte
County, Kansas, to awail the further action on
the case in the District Court.

CHAPTER XVII.

After that preliminary hearing, the paramount
inquiry among the people of Labette County and
clsewhere was, *‘Are those women Mrs. Bender and
her daughter, Knte Bender?”

To prove that Doclor York wns murdered, and
that the Benders were his murderers, was not n
hard or difficult thing to do. To prove that Mrs.
Almira Griflith was old Mrs. Bender and that
Mrs. Sarah Eliza Davis was Kate Bender would
be very difficult. Many of the people in Labetlte
Counly believed that the Benders were killed by
the posse soon after the discovery of their horrible
deeds nearly seventeen years before Lhis prelimi-
nary hearing. Thefeelingin favor of the defend-
ants largely prevailed in the communily. They
were women, and there wns Lthat little girl. La-
bette County jail afforded very uncomlortable
quarters for the defendants who bad been com-
mitled to the custody of the Sherifl, to be held for
trial in the District Court, possibly at the I'eb-
urary, 1890, term, which was severnl months after
this commitment. Many people became aroused
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and Indignant aboutl keeping women and that
little girl in such a place ns was ufforded in that
jnil.  They gave decided expression Lo that opin-
on Lo the Sherilf. He was a very kind-hearled
and slympnthelic man, and (o mect the situation
and aflay the feelings of the people in this matter,
arrangemenls were made and the prisoners with
that Iittle girl were kept at the residence of
Thomas Lawson. 7

Prosecuting Attorney Morrison and his associa-
ale in this case, Judge Atchinson, now became
confident that these defendants were the Bender
women and were determined Lo prosecute with all
thelr ability notwithstanding the serious difficulty
of ldentification which confronted them.

Judge Webb and J. T. James were cerlain that
Lheir elients were nol the Bender women, bul they
fully realized the danger ahead of them, and the
necessity for positive proof that they were not the
Benders when the case would come before a jury
for trinl. With so many reputable and respectable
citizens lestifying that they were the Bender
women, Lhe State might get a verdict convicting
their clients of thal murder. They at once began
to prepare for the hard legnl battle now confront-
ing Lthem, and it was one of fact.

Mrs. McCann said that in all of her work bring-
ing these women Lo Oswego as the Bender women,
she hnd been gulded solely by her intuitions, or
impreasions made on her mind by some mys-
terious Influence. She had not scen her family
for six months, but she certainly had followed her
theory fnithfully. She admitied that the con-
fession which she had oblained from one of the
defendants would nol conviet. She was, however,
determined to find out and punlsh the murderer
of her father, Mr. John W, Sanlord.

IT this little deteetive had not brought to Oswego
old Mrs., Bender and her daughter Kate, she had
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surely uncarthed a family some of whom were
criminals, guilty of crimes alinost as alrocious ns
those which were committed by the Benders,
provided the evidence and muany stalements of
Sarmh Eliza Davis were to have full eredence.

Mrs. MeCann had made up her mind that the in-
Huence had guided her aright, and if every old sel-
tler and former neighbor of the Benders had sworn
that these defendants were not the Bender women
and looked nothing like them, she would yet in-
sist that she could not bhe mistaken.  [L has been
siid of her that she had more determination con-
cealed about her smull body than wns usunlly
vouchsafed to a whole community of women.

Leroy I, Dick, the special Deputy Sherill, whao
had brought these defendants to Oswego {rom
Michigan, was confident that the Bender women
were in custody. e was a neighbor of the Ben-
ders when they lived in Labette County, and knew
the Bender women personally.  He was certain
that these were the identical Mrs. Bender and her
daughter Kate Bender. He sald that their testi-
mony in the preliminary hearing at Oswego did
not correspond with the story told on the trinl of
Mrs. Davis for larceny ut Niles, Michigun. He
had heard the old Indy defendant tell two or three
different stories. In making investigation he
visited towns where the old lady told him Lhal she
had lived during the time the ﬂendem were coms-
mitting the outrages in Labette county, and he
found that she was mistaken. She had lived at
those places at other times. He found (hal
wherever she had been, she bore o hard name and
he said she had been driven out of several com-
munilies.

He said that Mrs. Davis testified in Niles that
her mother had committed murders in Michigan.
She said that at one time when she was n child
of seven, her mother killed an old beggar womann
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with an ax-helve, who had made her angry.  That
in the night her mother hitched an old  grey
horse Lo o curt, put the budy of that woman In il,
drove Lo n ereck a few miles distant, Lied a roek to
the body and sunk it in o deep hole.  Mr. Dick
found nfd residents, in his investigation of these
fnets, who remembered that old grey horse and that
curl,

M. Griflith swore at Niles that she never had n
Giermnn husband.,  When asked concerning one
Mickinger, deceased, about whom Dick had
learned in making his search for evidenee to salis-
fy his mind thal she was infact old Mrs. Bender,
she replied, that she hod made a mash on s0 many
ir;ll!g'r time, that it was hard to remember them
HI N

Mr. Dick said that this Flickinger answered
every deseriplion of old man Bender. That he is
supposed Lo have commitled suieide by drowning
himsell in Lake Michigan in the year 1884. He
had followed closely the lives of both Mms. Grif-
fith and Mrs. Davis, and from his personal ac-
quaintance with the Bender family, he asserted
positively that the right parties were under arrest
and now held al Oswego as old Mrs. Bender and
her daughter, Kale Bender,

The trained legal mind will not be very highly
impressed by the worlc thalt Mr. Dick had done in
I his cnse as o deteetive and nn oflicer for the State
of IKansas,

CHAPTER XVIIIL.
New Phase in the Bender Case.

A dispately dated November 20, 1889, at East
Saginnw, Michigan, threw some light on the his-
tory of Nms. Davis. It read:
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A new phose in the Bender case has been doveloped.  Thoe
Sherdfl of Oswego, Kansas, wrote n letter to the Sherlll of
Huron County, Michigan, in behall of the woman suspected
ns Kate Bender.  [n it he states thot she nlleges sho lived
at Wild Fowl Bay, now known ns Bayport, with hor husband
in 1873 and 1874,  She glves her husband’s nomo as Hiram
Johnson.. On Investigntion the SherllT found tho Incldonts
mentloned by her, including her child's death nnd bLurlal
were corrobornted by woplo now living nt Dayport who
state such a family did live theee at thut time.

A Mistake.
During the time that the defendants were in

custody at Oswego, one of the papers in that town
published the lollowing article:

Mm. Davls, now in custody in this city as the alleged Kaote
Bender, mmay not be the veritable Kate, but she is o “gay
decelver” all the anme.  Sometime since she Informed hor
custodian that she wns about to becomoe n mother and It
would be necessary to have an "outflt’” suftablo for tho oc-
casion.  The kind hearted Sherllf at once procured an ele-
gant wardrobe for thie prospectivo helr, und overything
passcd nlong in the even tenor of its way'' untll a few dayn
ogo, Dr. Geo. S. Liggett wan called in.  ls interview re-
vealed the fact that Kate has no present nceed of “‘bnby
clothes” and was not llkely to havo while sho remalned In
“durance vile."" This wns posslbly o little schema to enlist
sympathy In her behall, but she instituted proceedings n
little too soon nnd It falled. I{ you mentlon the matter Lo
SherifT Wilson, do so at long range.

More Detective Work.,

The Independence Reporter of Independence,
Kansas, published an article entitled ‘““The Ben-
ders’ while Mrm. Griffith and Mrm. Davis were
held awaiting trial in the Distriet Court at Oswego.
It read as follows:

A mynterioun stranger vislted Independenco last Fridny,
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who scomed very much Interested in regurd to the Bendem.
11 wans nnxloun Lo talk with any old citizen, whomlght know
the most nboul the Benders. lHo had been at work for some
time, and had interviowed Rudolph Drockmann, the mun
who was hung by the Vigllantes on suspicion of belng o con-
federate, and had nlso apent some time at Cherryvale in
acarch of Information.  Jlo won very rotlcent as to his object
nnd could not boe Induced to toll any more ubout hiy buslnesa
than was necessury.

He was portlculorly Interested in lenrnlng everything
pogsiblo about Shennowaldt, the desperado, who attracted
so much otientlon at Independence in old times by his
boldness, steallng Sherllf Brock's horse when Brock was
hunting him, and standing off with his gun pcrsons who tried
to arreat him. Just why ho wanted to learn about this
desperndo ho would not disclose, but Intimated very closely
that ho was ono of the Bonder gang. e ncted n good denl
Jike n dectectivo secking on his own hoolk for evidence of the
identity of the supposcd Benders, with n view to securlng o
ftood nlice of tho Inrge rowards offered for thelr apprehension.

IL In very probnie, unleas something occurs to show thiat
the suspects now under arrest are not the Bonders, that the
trinl will prove exceedingly Interesting. There will be o tre-
mendous effort mada by the State to identify nnd conviet,
while the defense will be able and determined. Between
now and then, o good deal of close detective work will be
dane, nnd the eccurrences of sixteen nnd seventeen years ago
closely scrutinized.

Alter Lhe preliminary hearing, and before the
Februnry, 1890, term of the District Court to be
held at Oswego, the attorneys for both State and
defense were making every investigation that
could be made to secure evidence aboul the Ben-
ders as well ns aboul these defendants. It was
genernlly belleved that large rewards were oul-
slanding for Lhe arrest and conviction of the
Benders.  The allorneys for the defense had de-
tectives al work gathering evidence. The fore-
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poing articles show that detectives were al work,
Old settlers who knew the Bender family not
only did not identily ecither of these women ns
Lender women, but many were outspoken in Lhe
helief that they were not the Benders. A promi-
nent physicinn of Oswepgo declared that Mm.
Davis bore no resemblance whalever to Kate
Bender.  He also declared that NMirs, Bender was
a German, and that Mes. Griflith was o typical
New York Yankee; that there should be no
doubt about it thal she was not old Mrs. Bender.
The Osirego Independent contained the follow-
iny:
HODPE GONE
The Alleged Bender Women do Not Greet Any Lubette
County Acquuintunces—Mres. McCunnn, the

Insplred Detective, Gets Rovelntions from the
Wrong Spirits.

The Denders in town, is o dead tople with Oswego, and |t
is a loncsome [ew who entertnln any hope that the suspects
now under arrest, and held by the strong arm of the law, In
Oswepo, belong to that notorlous Dender famlly. No old
reaiddents hove as yot been nble to positively fdentlfy the
prisanern, und n majorlty think there ls no resemblonco what-
rver to the famous famlily of butehers,

Snild a prominent physiciun of Osweyo to an Independent
reporter: “Kate Bender was o slender woman, with red
hair, fair complexion, high check bones, and n prominent
nose, ‘This woman, alleged to bo Kate, s n short, heavy not
woman, with regular features, black hnir nnd very dark com-
plexion.  She bears no resemblnnece whatever to the {estive
Rate. Old M. Bender wns n Germun, could apenk only
broken English. The woman under nrrest hinn every np-
pearance of being a typical New York Yankee,"

I"opular aympathy gocs for the women under arcest and
Uiere In but little doubt, that they will bo discharged at thelr
trinl.
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Bul few of the old settlers who called Lo see Mrs.
GrifMth and Mrs. Davis as the Bender women,
could sec any resemblance whatever, and the others
Inughed atl the iden that they were the Benders.

CHAPTER XIX.

Prosecuting Attorney Morrison had a very
difficult place to fill, and was himsell muclh in
doubt about these women belng the Benders.

The attorneys for the defense did much hard
work Lo gel Lhe ense ready for trial, which would
prohably be held at Oswego during the FFebruary,
1890, term of the District Court. The Lrue silun-
tion for the defendants and the facts with which
the allorneys flor Lhe defense were confronted and
compelled Lo cope nre (ully sel forth in the
following article which appeared in the Osweego
Independemt al that time:

CONFIDENT OF ACQUITTAL

In n converantion with Mrs. Almira Griftith nnd her duugh-
ler, M, Elizn Davis, tho two prisones charged with being
the Bender womeoen, an Independent reporter finds themappare-
ently confldent that no semblance of cvidenee can be pro-
duced ngainst them when they come to treial nnd that they
will be clenrcd without delay. Mm. Griffith has been il
for n couple of weelns, looks weak and has lost some flesh, hut
in now convalescing.

M. Davis, the alleged Kaote, while elated over her pros-
pective (reedom, In considernbly depresaed over her child-
ren, u boy and girl, nged respectively clght and ten years,
whom she left behind In Niles, Michigan. She is afrald
they will be put in the State Orphan Asylum, and forever
tunken from her rench,  She sayn that her son, Charles Johne
son of Bnyport, Michigan, who Is now twenty-three, will
urrive In the clty this week and atay with her until the close
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of the trinl. He will being with him aflidavits showing hls
mother's marringe and her place of realdenco from 1869 to
1874. Also certificate showing date of his birth. These
ntfidavits, she says, will show that Mrs. Davis first lived in
Canada, Chautauqua County, New York, afterwoards mov-
Ing to Ft. Crisen and Bayport, Michlgan, living In these
places up to the time of 1874.

As the witnesses testified on thoe stand that Kante Bender
was f[rom eighteen to twenty years of age, which would moke
her about thirty-five now, and us M. Davis clalms to be
forty-five and hod n son aged soven ot tho Ume Kate ilved
in this county, she regards this as o strong point Lo establish
her innocence.

The old lady Griffith, while there scema to bo some delay
in geting important testimony, Is atill of good cheer, and
announces thot she will have conclusive avldenco to prove
she was never west of Illinols until brought liera for trinl,
She denounces Mr. Dick, tho specinl oMeer, who nrreated her
on this choarge, a scoundrel of tho basest kind. She snys that
ut Nlles, Michigan, hor son-In-law, Honry Hogue, offored
to pay tho cxponses of hersell and Dlek, to travel nround to
the places where sho had lived during the critleal period of
1870 to 1874 but this officer relused to do so, na she clulma.

Both women also nasert positively that Dick did not
visit these plnces on his own nccount to aatisfy himself of the
correctnesa of their statements, but they aro ovidently mis
taken on this point, ns Dick reclted In his Lestimony the
diffcrent places he had traveled In the hopes of finding some-
thing reliable about the carcers of tho women, his evidence
showing that he fafled to locate AMra. Griffith during the
time that the Dender outruges wero committed In this
County, although he claimed to have traced thelr where-
abouts before and after this time.

Mrs. Davis, the alleged Kate Bender, Is a good talker and
expresses hersell well pleased with her treatment In Oswego.
She was brought here with only one change of clothes, but
this week she was given ten dollars to purchase necessary
wearing apparel.

Mru. Davis showed the reporter n letler from thelr attor-
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ney, J. T. Jumen, in which he tells them that he hins secured
n greal denl of lnformation and Is dally getiing more ond
nays ho wlll hnve the evidence necesaary to prove they arenot
the Benders.  He also tella Mrs. Davls not te fret about her
children ns they are belng kindly cared for and that while
she is bolng held prisoner the authorities will not permit them
to be removed. o suggeats that they hnve no mony as yet
10 sccure lmportant ovidence so that it will be Impossible
Lo secure thelr release on [Hobeus Corpus proceedings.

The people were carcflully considering the facls
nbout the arrest of Lthese defendants ns the Den-
ders, and holding them in custody for so long a
Lime, and insisted upon knowing what was the
basis for the action nr the authorities in this case.
Declarntions were made that these defendnntswere
arrested without cnuse.  ‘That the charge made by
Mm, MeCann was (limsy, based upon her dreams;
that she had Lold n very weak story, a
queer tale, on which to jeopardize the lives and
liberly of these defendunls. The expressed de-
terminatlon to hang these women I possibile,
made by this womnn deteclive, convineed peo-
ple Lthal there wns malicious netion, and it looked
very much like persecution instead of legal and
Jegilimnte prosecution,

Mrs. McCuann and Leroy F. Dick had been in-
strumental in having these defendants arrested
in Michigan and brought Lo Oswego ns the Bender
women, and they were determined that the State
should prosecute them as the Benders.  Together
they were going nbout Labette Countly indus-
triously working (o arouse a public sentiment
ngainst these defendants.

Altorneys for the defense found thelr task of
securing evidence and pml'mring the defense a
very difficult one.  Either the defendants were not
able or nol willing to tell one truth about them-
selves nnd their lives, Dates, events and places
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when given would almost invariably be found 1o
be crroncous.

It was not diflicult to find people in Michigan
who could testify ns to where nnd when the de-
(endants were living among them and whatl events
in their lives transpired from 1870 to 1874,  But,
invariably, it would be found to dlifer from what
the defendants had told their attorneys and thut
miade them double work.  These defendnnts hal
lived very hard lives, nnd by some people it waos
said that they belonged to the eriminal clusses,

Attorneys in preparing the defense had o sift
the prejudice out of the fuets presented 1o them,
as obtained, and get to the truth abhout where
they were living and whal they were doing during
the time the Benders were in Kansas, so as to be
able to show that they were not in Kansas at that
time and could not be Benders,

Both women had been married severnl times,
had lost marriage certiflcates, and could not glve
proper dates, so they could not help the nttorneys
determine under whut name they were known at
various times and in dilferent loealities.  Murs,
Griffith had married a man by the name of Shearer
and was convicted and punished for manslaughter
under that name.  She cither (orgot that name or
would not tell it to her attorneys.  However, step
by step, these attorneys ravelled the thread of
their lives and secured information very much
needed for defense.

They secured officinl  information by certificd
copics of records of the nrrest, trinl, conviclion,
senlence and commilttment of Mrs. Almira Gril-
fith, under the name of Almira Shearer, to the
House of Correcetion at. Detroit, Mlichigan, in
April, 1872, and her receipt at that Institution in
I\{ny. 1872, and her discharge from it if March,
1873. They also secured the testimony of n wit-
ness who saw her in that Institution in October,
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1872, und who identified Mms. Griflith, the defen-
dant alleged to be Mrs. Bender in the ease pendin
nt Oswego, i the woman who was commilled an
served in Detroil House of Correction as Almira
Shearer from April, 1872, to March, 1873.

An nlibl was thus established for defendant Mrs.
Almira Griflith.

CHAPTER XX.

The Statesman published at Oswego gave an
uceount of the situation in the defense of these
women al thal lime as [ollows:

Mr. J. T. Jumes, onv of the counsel for the Benders, the
two women nlleged to be membern of the Dender family,
han been In the clty this week. He han n pocket full of
nllidavits to prove thint these women were living In Michigon
durlng nll tho timo that the Dendoers were committing those
utroclous murdern In thin County.

It Is reported that the County Attorney s satlafled thot
it Is o ‘gone case,” but he has no power to order the dis-
charge of the defendants until the case is called In the Dis-
trict. Court, und no further proceedings will probably be
tuken untll the meetlng of that body. The Court wlll con-
vene on Tuesdny, Februory 4, when the matter will be de-
termined.

The Stalesman has belioved from the first that this wns a
false nlnrm, nnd all developmenta so far tend to strengthen
ftn canvicllons,

I'o get Lhe deposilions of witnesses residing in
Michigan would require the expenditure of n
lnrge sum of money for both sides. The wo-
men  bad no money or property. All expendi-
tures on their behall must be paid by their attor-
neys. ‘The State had been at a very heavy outlay
Lo mrrest and bring the defendants from Michigan,
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keep them in custody, hold the Preliminary and
prepare the cuse for trinl in the Distriet Court,

The taxpayvers were complaining of the ex-
pense to the State of which the Proseculin
Attorney was informed, so he desired (o expunﬁ
just as little money as possible and faithfully per-
form his duty in the prosecution of the case.

It was agreed between the Prosecuting Attorney
and attorneys for the defense to waive all formali-
ties that could be legally waived and to make the
money expenditure ns small as possible.  The
attorneys for the defense were nnxious that this
should be done for the reason that they were pay-
ing hundreds of dollars in preparing the defense
and were receiving nothing from nny source on
Lehalf of the defendants to meet Lhal outlay,

It was agreed that aflidavits should be consid-
ered in so far as could be legally done, in licu of
depaositions to be used as evidence., Al affidavits
when procured were [inst to be submilted to the
Prosecuting Attorney, before any use would be
mace of them by counsel for defendants, and it if
wns decided that Lhey were (o be admitied ns
evidence, then copies were to be furnished counsel
for the State.

Attorneys for defendants submitted some
affidavits to the Prosecuting Attorney, bul they
were nol satisfactory to him and his reasons were
given to the newspapers, for not permitting them
to be used ns evidence for the defense. These
were published without the knowledge or consent
of the attorneys for the defense.,

_ The Osicego Independent published the follow-
ing:

‘The llender Women.,

J. T. James, of Kansns Clty, Mo., one of the counnel for
the alleged Bender women, wns In the clty thia week. 1o
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presented to Mr, Morrlson, the Counly Attorney, nflidavits
of partlen In Mlchlgan, to prove un alibl for lin cllents.

Maria Chapman of Beerlen County, Mlichigan, avers that
she saw nnd knew Mrs. Monroe during the Spring und Sum-
mer of 1873. Thut ahe lived in Michigun ot that time.

Myra A. Hogue of Niles, Michigan, alleges that she Is
the daughter of Mm. Monroo ond In a general way states
thot hier mother lived In Mlchlgan durlng the years 1870 10
1874, Inclusive.

The County Attorney could not dismiss the cose upon
such n showing, and very promptly Informed Mr. James so.

Mr. Morrlaon desires ua to state that the report sent out
from this city, to the Kanror Ci'y T'imes, that the long con-
finement and excltement of the trial had affected the mind of
Mra, Monroe, Is nbsolutely untrue. She s perhinps not the
mosl nmlable woman In the world nnd doe not gel olong
with her dnughter as pleusantly as might be deslred, but
sho Is perfectly sane and bears her confinement with Chris-
tian (1) lortitude.

Thoe statement also, that this cane would be brought
before the Grand Jury Is not correct. The care Is already
on the Criminal Docket of the District Courl and the State
witl be rendy for trela), unlena the defendnnts should be dis-
charged upon n wrlt of hnbeas corpus, which Is not ut all
prabable,

Another Oswego paper, the same week, contain-
ed the following:

The Bender Women Stll] In Custody

J. T, Jumes, of Kansos Clty, Mo., attorney for the women
churged with being the Bendern, was in the clty this week,
with nflidavita concerning the lives of the Bender women.

Mr. Morrison regards the evidence presented not sufficlent
to warant the discharge of the women. Unlesa ovi-
dence more convincing is presented to the County Attorney,
tho women will bo trled nt the Februnry Term of the District
Court, Mr. Morrison dld say to Mr, Jumes that ut any timo
sutlsfnctory proof be made that the prisoncr are not the
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purtics wanted, the State would be glnd to dischnrge them
and would not be techinlen! with regard 1o how the testimony
ahould Le mode, meaning that matiers of form in taking the
evidence would be walved,

Dy thelr contlicting stories the womnen do much to injure
thelr case, if lnnocent, and make search {or avidenco porplex-
ing and dificult. The chance for Kate's acqyuittal is
good und she has repeatedly sald In private converation
that the old woman Is us innocent as o new-boern babe, and
yet the reporter suw n letter this week, she had written Lo
Governor Humphrey, asking him to interede in her behall,
in which she atatea that her mother hod ot one timo acknowl-
edged that she wos Mrs. Bender.  She states in her lelter
that Mrs. Monroe told her that they escaped to No-Man's-
Land In the Indian Territory, where they had a quarrel over
the disposition of the money, s stocking full. Thal at night
the old man shot Jane, meaning Kate. That they went to
Denver, where the men deserted her, leaving her pennliesa,

Mnr. Davis, the alleged Kate, sayns that her mother wrote
from this place, asking for money to come home, but thnt
nhe had none to give her. I this evidence could be relled
upon, it would be a strong point against the old lody.

Mr. Morrison Is very doubtful whether sufficlent evidence
can be gathered o prove the women gulity, but he {eels It
his duty to let a jury decide the questlon.

The people were Informed by n sensational dispateh sent
lo the KansasCity Times, the first of the week, that old Mm.
Monroe had gone crazy, on account of worrylng over the
confinement and the awful crimes charged ngainst her, but if
she Is insanc the attending physician hna fulled to discover it.
She is o womaon of nervous temperoment und possessed of o
violent temper, and she has ocensionnl *“apells’” thot some-
timea lnat two or three doys, but |l she loses her reason, It s
only tempaorary.

This case wans Lthe most important one that was
to be heard at the February, {890. term of the Dis-
trict Court, and much interest was taken in I,
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not only in Labelte county, bul clsewhere in the
State,

"'he Star and Kansun of Independence, Kansas,
published the following:

Amony the cases that will come before Judge McCue, for
trinl at his first term of court in Labette County, is that of
the State of Kansas ngalnst the nlleged Dendem. I the
Stnte maken any sort of n case, this will be onc of the most
Interenting trinls thnt has taken ploce in Konsas, and will
occupy, no doubt, n full month’s time. The sclection of
n Jury for this trin] will prove no ensy mntier.

CHAPTER XXL

Sherilf Wilson retired from office and was suc-
ceeded by the newly-elected sheriff, William Cook,
on Januory 8, 1890, tn whom was Lransferred the
custody of the alleged Bender women. For some
time there had been ill feeling between Mrs.
GriMith and Mrs. Davis, while they were held at
the house of Tom Lawson. Sherifl Cook decided
1o get another place in which to keep these pris-
oners and arranged with Mr. and Mrs. Lawrence
to keep and guard them. Mm. Griffith informed
Sherill Cook thal she feared Mrs. Davis would
kill her. To make certain that nothing of that
kind would be attempled the sheriff had Mr. and
Mrs. Lawrence put Mms. Griffith in one room and
Mnms. Davis and her child in another, then to keep
carcful watch over them and see they did not gel
together. ‘This was n wise move and insured no
trouble with the prisoners. _ o
l L'l‘hc Prosecuting Attorney wrote the following
ctiers:
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Qawego, Konans, Jan. 28, 1890.
Mr. J. T. Joms,
Kansas Chy.

Dear Sie:—1t is my Intention now to move in the Dender
cose ot the carllest posalble moment when Court convenes.
Will have the Clerk send you n eopy of Informution.  Please
govern yoursell necordingly, ns | wunt to dispose of this
matter at the carilest possiblo moment,

Youm very truly,
J. . MORRISON.

Osweyo, Knnaas, Jun. 28, 1890.
Hon. H1. G. Webl,
Parsons, Konaas,

Dear Judge:—! desire to move In the "Bender” case ot
the carlicst posasible moment alter Courl convenes. My
present impression is we will not want to try the Osborn
case agnin. Wil have the Clerk send you copy of Inforimn-
tion In Bender ense,

Yours very truly,
J. H. MORRISON.

Upon this letter is written in Judge Webb's
handwriting the [ollowing:

Mr. James: You better come so as to be on hand. | do
not wish to net without consulting you.
1. G. WEDB.

These leuters and a copy of the Information
were received by J. T, James at Kansas City,
Mo., January 31, 1890.

The information wns in words and figures, ns
follows:
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INFORMATION

Stute of Kannas, } an. In the District Court for sold
County of Lubette County.
TIE STATFE O KANSAS,
Plaimdyf,
Y.
ELMIRA GRIFFITH, aflas INFORMATION
Kuto Betider, Sr., nnid
SARAIN ELIZA DAVIS, altux
Kuote Bender, Jr.,
Defendantn,

Stnte of Konann, Labette County, aa:

I, J. Il. Morrlson, the undemigned, County Attorney of
snitl County, In the name, and by the nuthority, und on
behall of the State of Knnans, come now here nnd give the
Court to understund nnd be informed, that on the 26th, duy
of April, A. D, 1878, in suld County of Labetie and Stnte
of Kansna, Elinirn Griflith, aliua Knte Bender, Sr., nnd Sorah
Ellza Duvis, alius Kato Dcmlur!(.lr.. dld then and there un-
Inwlully, lelanlously, with force und nrma In nnd upon one
Willlam York, wilfully, dellberntely, premeditatedly, and
with mallce nforsthought, muke an nasault; and anld Elmim
Griflith alias Kate Bender Sr., nnd the sald Sarah E.
Davis, aliga Kate Bender, Jr., did then and there with o
certaln heavy lron hammer, n deadly weapon, held in the
hands of one John Dender, Sr., nlded nnd abetted nnd assisted
by the sald Elmira Griflith alias Knte Bender, Sr., and the
suld Snrnh E. Davis alias Knle Bender, Jr., purposely, wil-
fully, deliberately, premedintely, with malice aforethought,
unlawfully nnd felonfously, with Intent to kill and murder
tho anld Willlam York, then aud thore uplawfully, wilfully,
feloniously, purposely and of thelr dellberate nnd premedi-
tated mullee, did strike, Lhirust, penetrate and wound with
the Intent nforesald, thereby, then and there, giving to the
sald Willlam York, with the heavy fron hammer ufloresaid
in and upon the head of him, the sald Willinm York, one
mortal wound, of which sald mortal wound, he, the aaid
William York, then and there instantly died; and the safd
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Elmira Griflith alias Kute Dender, Sr., and the mnld Sneah
E. Davis aliaa Knte Bender Jr., dfid then and there In the
manner ulorewid, unlawlully, felonfously, purposely nnd of
deliberate and premeditated mallee kil nnd murder the suld
William York.

Contrary to the form of the Statute In such case made
and provided, and against the peace and dignity of the State
of Kansas, J. 1. MORRISON,

County Attorney.

State of Knnsas, County of Labette, ny:

1. J. H. Morrlson, belng duly aworn on oath, suy Lhnt |
am County Attorney of sald Labette County, in the Stute
of Kansas, and that the allegmtions net forth ln the within
Information are true, to the best of my knowledge amd
beliel. So help me Gol. J. 1. MORRISON,
(SEAL)

Subscribed in my presence and aworn to before me by J.
H. Marrison, County Atterney, thia 30th, dny of Jununry,
A. D., 1890, COLIN HODGE,

Clerk of The Dlstrlet Court. *

No. 925
State of Kannas, Plaintiff,
Ve
Fimira Griflith aliax Kate Bender, Sr., ¢ al.
INFORMATION
A True Bill

Filed January, 1890, Clerk of Diatrlet Court,

Witnerses: L. F. Dick, William Dick, J. H. Hanley, Della
Dick, T. B. Smith, Della Keck, G. W. Gabriel, Joseph Story,
C. W. Booth, Morris Sparks, David Monuhan, Willlam

Clair, Martin Shive, Chrin Apeck, 1. P. Carpenter, Gro,
Frease, Frances McCann, E. D. Klersey.

Upon the baek of this copy is written:

Recelved by mall, Juny. 11, *90, nt 10:30 a. m.
Attent: J.T. JAMES,
D. M. GURNEA Altorney,
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Another letter:

Oaweito, Knnnaw, Jun, 10,1800,
J. T, Jomes, Eng.
Kannas City.
Denr Sir:
[ e | nm quoted In the newapapners nx ngreelng to
wlmit your “affilavits’’ upon thetrial of the alleged Benders.
] do not want nny mistnke about this. 1 did not so ugree.
[ wnld they might go In for what they were worth in o habeas
rorpua proceeding. ]
You waore to get deponitions of the partien you desired to o
use upon tho teial—I anld I would walve application to the
Court, nnd would only nsk reasonnble notice of the time
nnd place of toking them,
Yours very truly,
J. H. MORRISON.

When the District Court convened at Oswego
['eburary, 4, 1890, because the Lime of Judge Me-
Cue would De so taken up with holding Court at
different. places In his District, and the ndmission
of the Attorneys for State and defense in the
Hender case that it would take several weeks Lo
try the cnse when it wns taken up, the Court
continued the Bender Case to the May, 1890,
term of Lthat Court to be held in Oswego, and the
defendnnts remained in the custody of the Sherifl.

CHAPTER XXII.

During the months of February and Mareh,
1890, Lhe attorneys for Lhe defendant, Almirn
Giriflith, secured certified copies of the Court
records of lonin County, Mlc‘lignn. showing the
nrrest, wraignment, trial, conviction, sentence
and committal to Detroit House of Correction, of
Almira Shearer on a charge of manslaughlter.
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Also the certified copies of the records of the House
of Correction nt Detroit, showing Lthat she was
received into that Institution on Muy 13, 1872,
and wus discharged from there on March 24,
1873. ‘That record also showed that she was sixty-
two years old, born in the State of New York and
by occupation a housekeeper. Certified coples
of the marringe certificates of Almira Mark to
Shearer, Griflith and Monroe were also procured
as evidence in the case.

The testimony of Mrs, John Garden, residing at
Saginaw, Michigan, o daughter of Mrs. Grifiith,
was procured showing that while M. Griflith
wis in the House of Correctlion al Delroll in 1872,
during the month of October, Mri. Garden
visited her. that the Mrs. Shearer then in that
institution and visited by Mrs. Garden, was the
identical Mrs. Almira Griflith held at Oswego,
Kansas, as Kate Bender, Sr., and that she was not
old Mrs. Bender, nor a member of the Bender
family.

A writ of Habeas Corpus wns taken oul for her
and upon its return the District Judge wus nbsent
from Labette County and a hearing wus had before
the Judge of the Probate Couit of that County, in
April, 1890. At that hearing the certilied copics
of the records, testimony of Mrs. Garden, and the
evidence of Mrs. Griﬂi‘lh and Mrs., Davis were
presented for the consideration of the Courl.
Altorneys for both the State and defense made
arpuments,

The Judge Tully considered the evidence nnd
arguments in Lhe case and upon the showlng made
was convinced, iy was the Prosecuting Allorne
Mr. Morrison, that this defendant was not old
Mrs. Bender. He made the order discharging
Mrs. Almira Griflith from the custody of the
sherifT as being held without warrant and ns the
wrong person.  After more than five months of
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rison Jile nl Qawego, this old woman was now free,
ut without any means, far from friends nnd
ncquaintances, nnd there wns no redress for her
aguinsl any reliable or responsible source.

Proscculing Attorney Morrison was now convin-
ced that these women were not the Bender women.
In the Districl Court he dismissed the case againsl
both of Lthe defendants, und Sarah Eliza Davis,
held ns Kate Bender, Jr., was also discharged from
cuslody.

The nbnormal desire to be known i n notorious
criminal and the unbridled tongue of Sarah Eliza
Davls, whom one of the attorneys for Lthe defense
In his nddress Lo Lthe Courl said was Lhe *‘collassal
llar” of his experience in eriminal practice, had
caused Lhese defendants all of this trouble and
Inid the base for Lthe enormous expense which had
been made to arrest and prosecute them as the
alleged Benders. |

Having been held in Labette County as prisoners
for more than five months, al an expense of many
thousands of dollurs 10 taxpayers, these women
were sel free, paupers in a land of strangers, far
from home, relntives, friends or acquaintances,
unable to compensate their attorneys and without
any means of support. The Labette County
authorities instructed Sherilf Cook to purchase
rallrond Llickets for them from Oswego to Niles,
Michigan, which he did, and sent them over the
M. K. & T. railroad vin Parsons.

Mrs. Griffith told SheriT Cook that she was
alraid Lo travel with Mrs, Davis, beeause she be-
lieved Mra, Davis would kill her. They would
change trains nl Parsons.  SherlfT Cook arranged
Lo have Mrs. Griflith taken sccretly to n hotel at
Parsons and kept until next train. Mms. Davis
and herchild went on the firsst train and Mrs.
Griflith followed on the next tmin. The
were thus separnted and o tragedy avoided.
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The people of Labette County were glad Indeed
when these defendants hnd depuarted from Oswego
and the expense to taxpayens stopped,

A few weeks after ShertlT Cook had senl them
away from Oswego, Mms. Davis returned with
three children and rented a house near the Law-
rence residence.  They lived there for some
months. Mme. Davis Jdid washing to supporl
them.  ‘They then left Oswego and have not been
seen since.

At the time of their discharge from custody,
Mrs. Griflith was nearly seventy years and Mo,
Davis almost forty-six years of age. Both have
since become deceased.

Many Benders have been loeated al dilferent
times in many places. Mrs. Griffith and Mns.
Davis were the only persons placed under arrest,
by officers, identified by former neighbors and
taken to Labette County for trial,

CHAPTER XXIIL

Colonel Frank Triplett, in an interview at the
time these women were in custody at Oswego, said

The Denders Were Spirited Awny

Perhaps singly, by confederntes, through the Indlan
Nation, into Texan. That the family drifted to Leadville
and started thelr “murder mill** there.  In the carly doys
of Leadville, it s & well known fact that many men were
disappearing nlmost daily.

Many of those no myatceriously apirlted away were strang-
era from the East, stald bhusinesa men, whose hablta nnd as-
sociations were not auch as to subject them to the ordinury
claima of midnight nssassinntion. The work looked very
like that of the Bendern, nnd Lendville woa far 1 time, at
lenst, thelr refuge.
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No man could have no exnlted himsell in the minds of the
people of Kansas ot that time, as by killlng the Benders.
'"hey never met thelr fute [n that way.

Colonel Triplett believed the Bendems were
wobably living at the time he gave thisinterview
n 188Y.

All of the Benders Returned to Michigan,

Leroy I*. Dick said:

Tho Benders drove thelr tenm Into tho timber und left it
tied to the wagon; that the team hnd eaten the wagon-bed
nenrly up and were almont perished when found; that the
Benders bought ticketa to llumbeldt and went Southward,
divided Into two parties and rounded up and came together
at Denlson, Texns. From thence Inte New Mexico, or the
unpopulnted country in Western Texas.  They were lollow-
ed, overy turn they made was discovered, but always Loo
lute to upprehend them.  When they reached the Western
wilds, all Lrace of them disappenred, und for severul yenrs it
was lost.  [Finally, n clua glven by « Indy, led ta the suspicion
that they had returned to Michigan.

The Benders Were Not Caplured.

J. J. Johns located in Osage Ltownship during
the year 1869, and lived there for LwenLly ycars.
e was a neighbor of the Benders and a frequent
visitor at the Bender House. Once when he called
there he was refused admittance. ‘This aroused
suspicion.

Mr. Johns was with Colonel York and the
senrching parly on May 5, 1873, when the bodies
were exhumed, He was a member of the Vigi-
Junce Committce. He joined the posse and wenl
in pursuit of the Benders. He said: *“They did
not caplure nor kill the Benders.”

The Benders Were Killed.
George Evans Downer, a member of the Vigi-
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lance Committee, who lived ot Independence,
beeame one of the posse in pursuil of the Benders,
On his denth-bed at Downer's Grove, lllinois,
he made the statement thot he waos prum.-nt gun
in hand, when fother, mother, son and daughter
of the Bender family were sent to death by the
posse.  He said an oath was tnken which has
made the fate of the Benders a mystery during all
of the years since they were killed. ‘The Vigl-
lance Committee of which Mr. Downer was a
member was orgunized at Independence.

In those days of Inwlessness tn that country,
such nrgunizzu?on wns Lhe only means of keeping
order and protecting life and property.

Several members of the Vigilanee Commitlee
besides Mr. Downer, were with Colonel York at
Bender House that day when the discoveries were
made and the bodies of the victims exhumed.

The Benders Captured and Shol,

In the IPall of 1876, only three and a halfl years
after the Bender House discoveries and disclosures,
in a camp in New Mexico, near the Arizona line, a
man on his death-bed made the following slate-
ment:

[ was living in the Siate of Kunaax, ncar the town of
Cherryvale, nt the time the Dender fnmily escaped from thelr
clnlm nnd the officers of the law, [Forty-clght hours nftor
they started for the South, | nnd alx others, well mounted
and armed, started at midalght in pusult,  We found that
they had abandoned thelr team, which they first started
with, and had taken up with a frelghter golng to the Sne and
Fox Agency. Wceovertook the outiit one evening, at dusk,
encamped on the bank of o small stream, o few milea from the
Sacand Fox Agency.  The {relghter wos made acquanlnted
with the circumsatanees. The Benders were tnken one mile
nouth-weat of the ford und ladd under the ground,

Among thele effecta waa faund seven thousand cdollnrs,
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which was divided into clght ports. The amount waus o
grent surpring to nll of us, nnd consldering thnt we hud done a
grent servico 1o the country and commmunity, we, ench of us,
there taok n aslemn onth, nover to divulge nny purt or purcel
of e night's work. Nuver glve uway nny nomes of the pur-
tien that [ now give te you,

‘I'hnt dying man then directed that his effects be
sent Lo his sister al Independence.  His grave was
made in 0 beautiful valley in the south-weslern
parl of New Mexico.  There he sleeps his last long
sleep.  The nimes of those who formed that posse,
which he gave, have never been made known by
publicalion.

AL the time the alleged Bender women were in
custody at Oswego in 1889, the slatement was
published that four of that posse were dead, one
then lived in Seattle, and another was a prominent
business and stockman at Sherman, Texas. The
other one wns still following the business of fur-
nishing supplies Lo Indians and emigrants in the
Southwest territory.

The following dispateh was published as sent
from Little Rock, Arkansas, November 4, 1889:

A gentleman who nrrived here (rom New Mexico, stated
thut  he wan In possesalon of covidence to show that the
nutorlous Bender family had all been killed and buried in the
wral end of the Cheroliee Strip, thelr executionera being the
party whosturted In pursult Immedintely after the butcherles
were discovered, The entire Inmlly was extermlinated.

L. T. Stephenson, n resident of Independence and n
member of the Vigilance Commitiee, became one of the
posse which pursued and killed the Denders.

He helped dig the gmves In which the Benders were
bhuried.
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CHAPTER XXIV,

When Judge Webb and J. T James had thelr fimt
conflerence ns Lthe attorneys for the nlleged Bender
women, Judge Webb, said: “They are not the
Benders. We will have a long, hard ﬂghl, bhut
we are defending innocent clients, in this ease.”
Judge Webb was a stranger to Mr. James, but the
manner of his saying that they were not the Ben-
ders, indicated that he knew.  Mr. James had left
Minneapolix in the month of Moy, previous, and
had been looking after some business In the
Indian Territory, keeping n temporary oflice at
Fort Smith, Arkansas.  Upon a telegram received
at Wagoner, he went direct to Oswego over the M.
K. & T'. Railway. It was the first time that he
had seen either of the defendunts, or had met
Judge Webb and he had never heard of either of
the defendants until the receipt of that telegram
which was sent him by a former client.

Mr. James in his Inw practice up to that dale
hod refused to defend any person on a murder
charge, and before he would enter this case ns one
of the attorneys, he wanted to be sure Lthat the
women were not the Bender women. Colonel
York, who was then living at [Fort Scott, Kansas,
not very far from Oswego, wns not pushing the

rosecution of this case and seemed to take no
nterest in it whatever. This was significant.

After a talk with some members of the posse,
including the Captain, Mr. James became con-
vinced that these were not the Bender women.
With Judge Webb, he entered into the defense
and the record tells of the faithful, hard work done
by these attorneys in that case. To make this
defense, secure better detective service and be
near the place of trial, Nr. James changed his
office from Fort Smith to Kansw City, where he
had nn office in the Sheidley Building,
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Levi B. Muadison, a former husband of the
defendnnt, Mrms. Davis, had owned 320 acres of
land in Cedar County, Missouri. This land he
Jeft to her at his death in Michigan, in the year
1882, Mprs. Davis now agreed to convey Lhat
land to Altorney James Lo be used Lo oblain money
with which to secure evidence and conduct the
tlefense of hoth Mm. Davis and her mother, Mm.
GriMfith.  Investigntion of the title o this land
nL Stockton, Missouri, disclosed the fact that a
moriguge hid been foreclosed, the land sold, and
Judge Stratton, living at Nevada, Missouri, had
hought the land in Lﬁe car 1882, the very rcar
that Madison died. Judge Stratton sold this land
Lo Rookins R. Moore, who was living on it in 1889.

Under dnte of December 14, Judge Stratton
wrole as follows:

Nevado, Mo. Dece. 14, '88.
J. T Jumens, Ewmy,

Denr Slr: 1 nm requeated by an old frlend of mine to
writo you regarding certnin lnnd In Cedar County, Mo,
formerly owned by one Levl B. Madlson. The lond was
mortgaged to one John Vanderburg nnd sold under the same
In 1882 —bought by me and rold to Rookins . Moore who
in now in possession nnd nt whose request [ wrlte this,

Yourm truly,
D. . STRATTON,
Judge 26Lh Judiclal Clr., Mo.

The envelope bears the following:

Return 1o D, P, Stestton, Dox Neo. 134, Nevada, Mo.
If not dellvered within 10 dnys.  Postmarked Nevada, Mo.
Dec. 14, 1889, Addrerscd, J. T. James, Esq. Fu. Smith,
Ark.

~ On the buck of this envelope In Mr. James'’
hundwriting appears:

Ana. Jany G, *90.
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That farm was not available for the defense.

CHAPTER XXV,

Renunixeences of H. L. McCune, of Kansas City,
Mo., Formerly a Resident of Osicego.

In the spring of 1872, Dr. Willlum York of Independence,
Ran., while returning on horseback from a visit to his
brother ot Fort Scott, stopped ut u store in Pursons to make
rcme purchases and then continued on his Journey.

Fuiling to reach his destination, his brother, Col. A. M.
York, orgenizcd o rearching party and started on the rond
fiom I'atrons to Independence; not for from Cherryvale
they found o man sltting by the rond reuding a Dlble. In
enswer to their inquiries he informed them that he himsel(
hzd been ottocked by bandita and belleved that York had
fallen o victim to the same outlaws.

York went on in pursult and the Blble student, who
proved to be John Bender, Jr.,of thenotorlous Bender fnmlly,
returncd to his heme and gave the alurm snd the Bendems
disappeared.

Whether they were overtnken and exterminated by o
poss¢ under command of Colonel York, or whether they
succecded In making their eseape in still o mooted ueation
in Southeastern Kanans.

A fcw days later the body of Doctor York was found bur-
jed in the orchard on the Bender place, nuked, fuce down,
throat cut and skull broken. Further search disclosed seven
other bodies buricid in the garden and another body wan
fountd near Cherryvale.

An examination of the house proved it to bou verltable
slaughter pen. [t was n small rame stucture aboul sixteen
Ly twenty feet in dimensions with a door at elther end ond
was divided into two rooma by o canvass partition drawn
tightly over upright standards. Under the house was o
small, deep cellar.

Inthe floor of the enst room over thisx celluc wius u trap
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door. It won the custom of the Benders to decoy into the
house the unwary traveler who had stopped Lo drink at the
well or to buy nt the little atore, e would bo seated in
a chinfr with tho buck of his head agninst tha ennvans pnriition.
At n glven signnl soma manberof the famlly, gencrally be-
lleved ta bo Kate Dender, would strike the victim from be-
hind the screen with n lorge hammer. The drop was then
sprung und the body fell, chair ond all, Into the cellar,
where the work of robbery nnd mutlintion took ploce at
lelnure,

The dotnlls of theso horrible butcherles were published
everywhero and were atill fumlllar to the public.  Naturally
thoy created Intense excltement and Indignation in the
loenllty where thoy wero committed, and every cffort wos
mnde to npprehend the gullty ones and bring them to jus-
tice, but without avail, and to this day all attempta to locate
them have proven fruitless and thelr (ste is unknown, unlcas
it be to the survlving members of Colone] York's band, who
many belleve overtook and slew the fugitives as they fled
into the Indlun Territory, and who have ever sinco gunrded
their sccret well,

In the fall of 1880, having obtulped a diplomn from o low
achool nnd desiring to make myself eligible to distinction, [
declded to loente in Kansas. An old Irlend was practicing
nl Oswego, Labette County, and by invitation I went there
nnd formed o partnermbip with him. Soon nlter my partner
wnR olected Prosceuting Attornoy of the County nntl enterecd
on Lhe dutles of that offlee.

In the summer of 1889 he recleved Information from the
town of Nlles, Michigan, that two women were living in
that vicinity who were known to be criminala and who were
belioved by the authorities there to be Mrs. Bender and her
daughter, Kate.

Alter some correspondence with the Michigan officern,
the County Commlssioners of Labette County, to whom
the matter was referred, declded 1o send Mr., Leroy Dick
of Parsons, formerly Sherifl of the County, and In carlier
duya a nelghbor and nequalntnneo of the llundem, 1o Nilea
to Investlgato the mntter.
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Mr. Dick went to Michigan and saw the women, and
on his return reported that they were, beyond questlon
in his opinion, the guilty parties, and upon tho strength
of his [dentification the necesaary stops were taken and In
November, 1889, the two women were brought to Oswego
charged with the murder of Dr. York.

News of the apprehension of these noted criminnls was
widely published In the newspapers. The Konsas City
snitch, 1 beliove, had not come into existance at that time.

However, the second day after the arrival of the women
a Kansas Clty lawyer appeared on the scene und called at the
hotel where the women were belng kept temporarily and
volunteered to defend them.

They hud no money and he nsked no compensation und
wns therclore no snitch, but o warthy young lawyer who
maw nn opportunity to gnln a reputation honornbly In the
defence of two women charged with o great crime.  And
it may not be out of place to aay that he reclved nmple
reward for ro well did he acquit himsell that one of the
most estimable young ladles of the town fell In love with
him and they were married soon after and I am sure have
lived happily over since.

The legnl battle took place at the preliminary examination.
The complaint charged John Dender, Sr., Kate Bender,
Sr., Kate Dender, Jr., and John Bender, Jr., with having
on the 6th day of June, 1872, in the County of Labette nnd
State of Kansas, murdered one William York, and the ree-
ords of the Justice of the Peace recite that the warmnt was
returncd ond filed November 2, 1889, with Kate Dender,
Sr., and Kate DBender, Jr., In court.

The cxamination tood place in the clreult court room
beginning on November 18 and continuing two days. The
venerable Justice of the Peace who had Issued the warrant
associated with him two other Justices, and these three
sal together and heand the evidence.

The trial, as | recall it, was remarkable and at times
excredingly dramatle. The court room was crowded
with people from all parts of Labetie nnd adjolning Countlies.
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Friends of the vietlma were present nnd Interest In the
procecdings  was  Intense,

Seventeen ycurn had pansed nince the commiaslen of the
crime, but the Japse of time had not blotted out the memory
of the Lloody deedn that had been commited nor dulled the
desire for vengeance.

The only qquestion In the case was, of course, thut of the
identity of the prisonem, an exccedingly difficult matter
owing to the time that hed Intervened since the cormmlision
of the crime, and especially difficult in the cnse of the young-
er woman, who had In the Interval passed from girlhood
to middle nge.

The State produced fiftcen witnesses who had known
the Dender family and who ldentified the prisoners, with
more or less certalnty, na the femnle Benders, while the
tlefence put eleven witnesses on the stand equally credible
nnd equnlly posltive that they were not the supposed erimi-
nals, Tho case was tried with abllity an both sldes.

Tha Prosecuting Attorney wns n shrowd and resourceful
trinl Inwyer, but he succeeded In diserediting one witneas
in n wholly unexpected mnnner. The witneas hind proven
o valunble ono for tho defence.  He hod known Kate Bender
nnd ho remembered her fnce, height, and general appear-
ance distinctly, nnd waa positive that the woman on trial
could never have heen the girl he had kncven.

In the course of his direct examination he stated that
Knto Bender's holr wan red. On croas cxamination the
prosecutor anld, *'You any that Kate Dender had red halr—
when did you lnat see her?”'  The witneas nnswered, **Seven-
teen or ceighteen years ngo."

The Prosecutor—'‘Now, plense close your cyca—now
what color Is thls woman’s halr?”" The witness answered
that [t was hrown.

The woman’s halr was In renlity of a dark shade, hut
with a declded tendency to red,

“Now, please stnte to the Court the color of my halr?"”
The witness anawered without hesitation, *Your halr is
my-u

The prosccutor was possed of a luxuriant growth of sandy
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halr and the answer of the wltness provoked o lough In the
court roaont.

“*Now, please state to the Court, plense open your cyes
and look at my hale and tell the Court what color It [s7*
All eycs nere centered on the withes to see his discomfiture,
but he camly looked nt the lawyer's head and sanld, **Your
hair is gray, air.”

Thereupon It developed that the witiews waa color-blind
and wholly incompetent to dintingulsh colory, und that tho
defect was in his eye rather than in his memory, but ho was
effectively discredited, neverthelesa,

When the cxamination was closed the Justices put thelr
heads together for n time and then announced thelr finding
that the crime charged had been committed and that thero
wns probable cnuse for Lelieving the defendanta gullty of
s commisslon. The bond of the prisoners waa fixed at
$10,000, and ns they were minus over 999 per cent of that
amount, they went to jail,

The county bastlle was, however, untit {or women prison-
crs, and they were soon alter placed under guard at the
home of o Deputy Sheriff to awalt trial.

One morning on arriving at my offico | found the Deputy
Sherill awnlting me.  He stated thot Mm, Bender, Sr., hud
taken violently [ll during the preceding night, and belloving
hersell about to die she had sent for the Prosecuting Attor-
ney to whom she desired to make n confesslon. The
deputy informed me that the Prosecuting Attorney wasawny
from home and he desired me to go with him and take the
old woman's statement

You cnn imagine with what feelings 1 gathored up paper,
pen and Ink and fellowed the oificer. | wna about to hear
from Lhe lipa of this dying woman the true story of these
great crimes—possibly to learn the whereabouts of the other
members of the family. Truly, it promised to bo nn unusunl
experience and 1 commented to myrell on the clrcumstances
which had resulted In placing me for the moment In the
pace of the Prosecuting Attorney.

I found the woman npparently In n dylng conditlon. She
remed to breathe with difMiculty, her volee wan scarcely
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nudible, ot thines hor mind wandored, and her specch beeame
incoherent,  She urged me to mnke hasto nnd tnke down her
statement before (L won Loo lote,

Then with great diiliculty unid frequently Interrupied by
paroxysms of paln she made n stutement which I took down
in writing nml which was in subatance as follows:

A fow years before she hnd mel and morried a widower in
tho state of Michlgan, o had o daughter by n former
wife. Alter thoelr murriuge ho confensed to hier thot lio was
living under an nssumed name.  ‘That he was old man Bend-
or and his doughter wna the notorious Kate. That after
tho murder of Doctor York, tho fumily fled south into the
Indlan Territory. That John Bender, Jr., had the money
that had been tnken from thelr various victima,

Onc morning na they were camped hesido o Httle wiream,
tho father and son quarreled and tho old man bralned the
younger mon witha neck-yoke. The remalnder of the
fumily then worked thelr way north until they reached
Michigan, where Mrs. Nender died.

My informant further stated that her husband had been
Jrowned shortly alter thele marringe and that she and her
stop-dnughter, Knte Bender, hod lived together therenfter
until they wero urrested nnd brought to Knnaaa.  ‘That the
young womnn downstalms wns undoubtedly Kate Bender,
tho only surviving member of thot family. That she, my
Informant, was a Bender only by marrlage nnd an innocent
and much nbused old lady.

Sho signed thia statement, using the name under which
sho hind beon living In Michigan., She then naked me If |
tld not think thia confesalen sufllclent (o clear her If she
should recaver und sho appeared much disappointed and
nlso much stronger physically when [ Informed her that |
did not think a dying statement would be competent evi-
tdence for thut purpose.

An | wna leaving the house, Knte Bender requested an
interview and Informed me that she would like to turn
Statu's evhilence, na whe could tell some very damnging
thilngx nbout tho old woman upstalrs.  But 1 had enough for
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une day.  The old lndy declded not to dle nnd wun ny well
as ever in o few dayn

During the next few weels, the Prosecuting Attorney
began a careful Investigntion of the history of our prison-
ers, which ultimately disclosed that the older woman had
scrved a term in the penitentiary at Jackson, Michigan, nnd
on cxamination the records of that Inatlitution It wns found
that in 1872, when thie Bender murders were conmnitted In
Raonsas, this womon was In the Michigan prison serving o
sentence for mansloughter, sho having struck one of her
tdaughters in the abdomen with a stick of stove wood.

Here was conclusive proof that the prisoners were not
members of the Bender family, but undoubtedly they were
just as bad. Mother and daughter, and yet cither would
have sent tho ather to prison or the gallown to anve hersell,

And now like the mnn who caught the bear, we cn-
tdeavored to let loose. Dy suggestion of the 'rosccuting
Attlormncy, habecas corpus procecdings were Inatituted before
the Probate Judge, nnd the prisoners were released on
condition that they would return to Michigan nt once.

Through tickets were furnished them und they were plne-
ol ona trnin for St. Louls. At Columbus, Knnsas, the fimt
stop, they got off, sold thelr tickets nnd the next day wero
back in Oswego, saying that they liked Kansas better than
Michigan and intended to remain with us, and here we will
leave them and here the reminiscence ends.

I have told the story as accurntely as [ con reenll the facta.
If there are any Jensons to be drawn from It you must find
them yourselves. | belleve that no further attempt hoa heen
made by Labette County to eatch the Dender family.

Travelers who visit the loeality where they formerly
lived say a curse scems to rest upon what was onco the Ben-
derfarm. No ono will live upon the place. The house nnil
barn have been carricd awny In pleces by relle hunters.
The fences have disappeared. Weeds and thistles cover
the ground, and the traveler hurries on to ginze on more
attractive landacapes; for nll nbout nre eultlviated und nt-
tractlve farms and comfortable homen, transforming what
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was onee o lat i treeless wianto Into o rleh and attrnetlve
furming country.

CHAPTER XXVI.
Bender Gossip

SI nteresting stories Lold on Lhe witness stand in
Niles, Mich., by Mrs. Davis against her mother.)

The Alleged Mra. Dender.

Durlng the exnminatlon of the lnrceny cine ot Niles,
where Mm. Monroe hud become enroged at the nctionn of
her doughter, Mmi. Davis, she hod her chorged with burglary
und arrulgned In court,

The Sherifl went to Lansing with o warrant to bring M.
Duvis back. ‘This made her 8o mad that she began to charge
her mother with crimes, murder, and olmost every crime
known.

It finnlly developed to the susplelon that Mrs. Monroe
wans the renl old Dender dovil that was connected with the
Lerrible murders in this County n few yeam ngo. No stolen
goods were found in her posaession, nnd the prisoner nlleged
that [t was o trumped-up charge by her mother to get her in
State I'rison 8o she could not teatify as 10 the varlous crimes
commitied by her mother.

After the concluslon of the teatimony of Mrs. Monroe
umill her doughter, Mra. Hogue, Mrs. Davis took the stand
ond wan proceeding to glve n history of her mother, of her
various murdem, cte.,when the Public Prosecutor, M. Dridge-
man, called for a pause, nlleging that the testimony of Mrs.
Monroe must fimst bo algned.  This was conslderad by some
bad policy, for Mra. Davis appenred to be in the right mood
ta mnke rleh dovelopments,

In the meantime, the mother and daughter became re-
conclled to ench other nid started on foot to eseape.  They
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were arcested, nud finnlly brought to Oswego churged with
being old M. Dender nmd her duughter Kate.

“Bender Gossip' was published by a {m er at
Oswego, Kansas, from which is oblained the ace-
count of the trinl at Niles, Michigan.

Larceny Cuse.

A preliminury henrlng was glven, In this cnge, in Mlchi-
{ran.

The Daty Swrr, published ut Niles, In thoe issue of Qctaber
22, 1889, guve i roview of Mm. Davin® testimony, un follows:

The case agninat M, Eltlen Davis hus been postponed so
often that the people are very tired in walting for results,
Yoesterday alternoon the trinl win reaumed before Squire
Darron, at hia office in the Americun Block, o llttle room
twenty by filteen feet. People erowded Into the place nnd
packed it on shert notice.  The olr became stlfling nnd peo-
ple gusped for fresh nire In due tlhe the examinution
commenced.

Mn. Dovis commenced her testimony by stating that
there were various reasona why she could not glve further
testimony agninat her own mother,  She hnd beon eonvineed
naw that she was her own mother.

“If I totd ull that [ know It would lmprison hier, und | do
not wish to do t."”

Attorney Hamllton:  **Have you been threatened If you
proceeded?”

Ans.  "Yea: threats have been made.  lleary lHowe
called me out and sald If | continued to testify us [ dld ho
would fill me full of holex. There were other rensona. It
wns pretty hinrd to testify agalnat my own mother,'’

Bridgmen: '*Then she la your own mother?'’

Witness:  “*She hns convineed mo thot she ls my own
mother, Al I swore to whien | wus on the stand beforo was
nbwolutely true, but 1 do not want to glve further testhmony
against my mother. If I would glve n truo stotement it
would send her to the penitentlury und 1 do not wislhi to do
i,



HE BENDERS IN KANSAS 151

"Wao llved n mllo und o bulf from Portland In '82. [ have
nover been weolcome nt home, [ wos o litte glel e home
nleeplng up stalen, [ heard in the pight u baby ery; |
Jumped up, nnd looked down between the eriieksund saw my
mother roll the baclk-loyg forwnrd und throw thechild behind
it und burn it up,  This wan 1864, nt North Shade, in Gra-
tloL County, Michigun,

“My oldest sister, Ellzabeth, bad o mishap and this won
tlono to save disgrace.”’

“*Saw her kill a woman who nsked her for somothing to ent.
She did not givo menls nwany, A dispute urose nnd she struck
her with un nx-helve on the back of the neck and killed
her. It wasnfternoon. She took the body ta n monure plle
unel burled it untll evenlng, when she took It 1o n slough hole
und supk It, [ wos mude to go with her,  Her husband
wns in town to sell nx-helves,

“| don't think Mother over lived In Cunndu; sho got into
troutde with brother Georgo's wlfe nnd was arrested in 1868
and sent 1o the Detrolt House of Correctlon one yenr.

[ havoe lived in McPhervon, Kaneus; then nt Emporin.
I received letters with Mother's nnme signed, from Konans,
Colorado nnd Texns; sho wrote me for money. [ sent her
somo to Colorndo; she hns told mo at different times that phe
waa in Konsns nnd had seen nll thot eountry she wanted to
aca; ahe never mentioned any nameoes.

“In 1872 I think she wns in Howard city; hnd u letter from
ber in 1872 from Kansas; nll these were stolen from me on
iny late vialt Lo Niles, ns 1 can prove by my daughter.

"November 14, 1 had n lotter from her in Texnas; 1874, in
Lthe Jutter pnrt of the year; nll were ntolen from me; it was
tinted nt Dover ar Doliver—pome such nnme.

‘Sho mnld: 'My Denr Daughter: Send me rome money.
Ten dollnra Il no more; | nm deaerted.’

"1 do not know who waa with her in Kanras; nover heard
her tell whut business she woa In; she toak up land and wns
furming, but didn’t llke tho cauntry; had nletter from Hutch-
Inaon nnd [Florence, Knnsas; her nnme wns on thoe letters,

“Ed Stoltes, the fellow who went to prison for killlng
n man in New York, married Mm, Monree's daughter;
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sho then married a man in Canoda pumed Wm. Sanford;
he waa killed at Windsor; | waa In the hiouse whon it huppen-
od, and was between eight and nine yenra old when it hap-
pened. It was o large two-story brown house just outalde
of the city. Thero wan Mary Gordon, a llttle girl Ave or
nix years old; he was roped down cellar and his throat cut
with a razor; Mary was down cellar.

1 was so nbused and pounded by Mother thut I ran awny
and staycd in Detrolt two or three weeks, when 1 was tnken
to ['ortland, insensible; don't know how | came so; the
killing wana donc ot three or four o'clock In the morning.

“Mother told me what beeame of Griflith ot Dowagle;
Myron Monroe and GritTith got into o fuss; Myron cul him
on the back of the nceck until he was dead, and he wos
thrown in a well.

1 heard Mother talk nbout the Denders seven or clght
years ogo, telling what crimes they had committed, killing
so many people and burying one chlild allve: told how Lhey
were killed by being struck with n hatchet or hammer, spring
a trap door and then carry them through the window, nnd the
the whole thing."’

Bridgmon: ‘'Did you go down to Konana to get married?

Witneas: '“That Is none of your busineas. 1 will get
married agaln sometime.

**The Bible contalning records of birth sent with Mother'’s
trunk to Muskegon, and those mattem of importance are In
the trunk."

Dridgman: **Do you think your mother crazy?'*

Witness: *Cruzy with the devil. She lied about me and
has owned up to it, and has the goods she charged me with
stealing. She praises God when she don't pralse the devil.”’

DBridgman: 'Mm. Monroe, can you sing?”’

Mrs. Monroe: “Yes, | can sing to Mr. Hamilton, lul-
a-by-baby, on the tree top.”

Witnesa: “Lived in Lonslng when my mother broke me
up. Don't know which of us wakes up the splirits.”

(Mem. Monroe rops under tho table, )

Witness: '"Dring In the battery. [ have been told that
Mr. Bridgman has threatened me with the penltentlnry.'
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Breldgmnan:  “For telllng the truth?”

{ This gnrrulous chlld Is an Innoecenl nulsnnce. )

"My mothor nald sho wos In Konsas since we separated,
In 1800 sho went to Knnans, Haordacrabblo nnd dozens of
othor places.

“]1 have recolved lottera from her nnd they were taken from
mo only lately by my mother; they were Inst In my  valise
nt her houso; one was asking for money; it was from Texas,
nsking mo for ten dollars, ] did not sond it; I feel sure iU
was from D; It commonced with a D: I'm sure; there was
one from Denver asking me for money; 1 sent her three
dollars; this wns In July, 1874; [ sent (L from Cairo.

“Sho nover described her farming In Konsas, nor never
told mo who wan farming with her; it was at Hutchinson—
pralrio land.

“] was with her when she was here,”

Here Stokes, who murdered Fisk, In aworn to have mar-
ried o doughter of Mrs. Monroe, and Mrs. Davis stiil
swearn sho heard he was “sent up'” In New York. This
wns Elizabeth who married Stokes.

Mrs. Davis then says her sister Maory murdered her hus-
band in the cellar.

“This made mo run awny from my mother; after this
man was killed [ became Insensible to all and everything;
this murder occurred at four in the moming; [ can’t re-
member the husband's name.

*“Mr. Monroe frequently told me of the murders by the
Benders in Konaas. 1 am clther forty-four, or thirty-cight,
or thirty-soven; my mother has three different ages for me.

*] bejleve my mother ia dovilish crazy and Is nlways do-
Ing something against her chlldren.”

( Mrs. Davis Insinsates Mrs. Monroe dare not get upand
deny before God she is nnything but a liar. Here Mrs. M.
doesa get up amld the ronrs of laughter of spectators. She
pul up her two hands nnd declarcd she was innocent. )

“My nomo has been Davis since July lost—Mea. James
Davis; 1 was married nt Lanaing; my husband is not there,
[ don't know where he §s; [ lived ot Jackson, thia State,
three years ogo.'



I TIE DENDERS IN KANSAS

Bridgmun: ‘Do you know Jud Crouch?"’

Mm Davis: " You nsk questions when your mouth should
be shue,”

{Boisterous laughter, which Judge Darron wuas obliged
to subduce with stern volee nnd countennnce., )

*This {1 u larceny eane, and my knowlng or not knowlng
Jud Crouch hus nothing to do with tho ease,” subl M.
Davlis, *nnd | tell you, Mr. Orldgmon, the way to get nlong
with women la to mind your own business und lenve thelm
alone.”

Mrs. Davis continuing, said: **1 have unother witness; my
cldest daughter known my mother had possession of the very
property which she charges as having been stolen by me."’

Mru. Davis thought her mother had got her into a serope,
and she should punish her for it in tho courts.

Adjourned until Tuesday, Oct. 29,

CHAPTER XXVII.

The Kansas City Star reporter gave the follow-
ing account of his visit to Oswego:

Old settlers who were expected to fdentfy Mo Almira
Monroe and Mrs. Snrah E. Davis as M. John and Kote
Bender have scen the women since their arrival here. Two
say the right people have been captured, but others laugh at
the idea and the Prosecuting Attorney s in great daubt
now.

Fublic opinion Is fast molding itsell in Invor of the two
women. The attempt at ldentifcation has proved a dlsmal
failure., The witneases on whose oplnions the most rellanco
haa been placed by Prosecuting Attorney Morrlson have de-
claredd in a few wordn thot the wrong portiea hove been
arrrested.

Silas Tolea, now of Chautauqun County, and hia younger
brother were the first to discover the fact that the Bendem
had fied the country. He was sent for by tho Prosecuting
Attorney and arrived In Oswego Saturday nflternoon.
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1 Toles does not [dentify Mm. Davis as Knte Bender,"”
rerunrked Prosccuting Attorney Morrison, 1 shall belleve
we have the wrong partien.  lHo knew her intimately and
lived on an adjoining furm to the Bendems, the two housea
belng not more than n quarter of u mile npart.”

T'olen wos admitted in the reom In which the prisonem are
being kept nnd tollied with themn ball an hour.  On his re-
turen to the Proscenting Attorney’s oifice hesnld, *You havo
the wreng partien.  Kuto Dender nnd Mni, Davis correspond
fulrly In helght, but thero the similarity ends.  Kate Ben-
dee's hoir was Hghter and her (ace much thinner than M.
Davis’. In the color of the eyes a great difference can olso
bo noticed. The olil woman does not resemble Mm. Ben-
der."

Thomasa Jeans, o resldent of thls County, who owned o
farm adjoining thot of the Benders, declared that M.
Monroe did not look like Mrs. Bender and that M. Davis
hore no resemblance whntever to Knte.

The Proscculing Altorney Mue.

Jureph Story, a policemnn of Parsona, wns the only person
whonnw the prironer to-day nnd discovered any reaemb-
lunce between them und the eelminnls for whom tliey were
tnken.

He aald thut there was no doubt whatever in his mind, that
Mm. Davis and Knte Bender weroidentical. 1o claims
to have seen Knto Bender only half o dozen times, but tells
o long-winded story to show that he would never forget her
fuce.

The rosccuting Attorney ndmita that he Is badly dis-
couraged, but declores that he will probe tha mystery to the
Lottan.

It [s very diferent with Mru. McCnnn.,  She has made up
her mind that the Influences gulded hor nright, und i every
oll settler In Lubetto County would swear that tho two
women looked no more llke the persons for whom they were
nrrested than they do like Queen Victorin, she would  atill
insist that she could not be mistaken,

They do not look llke criminnls, nnd, as thelr history
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showus, have devoted most of thele Hves to getting marricd
and ralsing children.

AMm. Monroe claims to have been married three times nnd
to have been the mother of twelve children.

Mr Dovis acknowledges having been married threo
times and having partinlly rmised seven ehilldren.

Mrs. McCann says she can prove that Mrm. Monroe hos
been married cleven times, and Mm. Monroe chorges Mm,
McCann with having stolen her murrlage certificates.

Mre. Dacis Tclla Her Story.

With her two-year-old babe In her nrms, M. Davis 1old
the story of the persecution of Mm. McCann. The influence
exerted by Mr. MeCann over the Ignorant woman Is the
most remarkable feature of this most remurkable cuse.  Mrs.
McCann belleves she has o minslon to perform, and that mis-
sion {s to discover the wherenbauts of her futher's murderern
nnd bring them to justice,  Shue thinks impresalons lead her
in the right direction, und M. Davis s isgnorant nnd super-
stitious and belioves that the ulleged detective ls o Spirit-
ualist who has nbsolute control over her.

“Mm. McCann first came to my homo in Mcl*herson obout
six ycars ngo. ! was sick from child-bleth and Mrs,
McCann followed my little girl home. She profcased great
sympathy for us and lor severnl weeks made {requent teips
to our house claiming it was belng done for charlty's sake.
| was sick for three weeks and ns soon as | could sit up in bed
she began talking to me.

“One day she brought an Instrument to the house which
she said would write my name nnd place of birth. | took It
and sure cnough It wrote Sarah Eliza Mark, Chattaraugus
County, New York.

“I did not know what it all meant, but from that time Mrs.
McCann could do anything with me she pleased. She
would ask me questiona nnd | would nnawer them just an
she wanted me Lo,

“Finally | fell sick again and remalned In this condition for
threo weeks until Dr. Smith of McPherson wan ealled to
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sce me.  Durelng oll this time 1 wan sick M. McCunn
would nslc me yuentionn.'

Mra, McCann's Queer Duinga,

Mm. Davlis told severnl other storles, showing thut Mm.
McCann had mesmerle Influence over her.  She snld whe
Jdlil not remember having aworn in Michigan that her mother
wns Mr. Bender but saiil that she textifled just s Mea,
McCann wanted her to und could not help it.

Nelther of the womnn huve any means with which o
muke n defense.

They clulm that they will be able to prave that M. Me-
Conn offered ane of thele relutives twenty-five dollnm to
swenr that they are Men. John nnd Kate Bender.

M. Davis clnima that M. MeCnnu offered her Gty
tdollora to swenr thut M. Monroo wns Mrs. Jolin Hender,
und M. Monroo snfd that she wan offered Nty dollam to
swoear thot her doughter wos Kuto Dender.

Mer. Jamen, uttorney for the dolense, expeels to prove that
Mres. Almlrw Gelifith, or Manroe, In slxty-eight years of nge.
Her malden nume wan Almlea 1HI nnd she wns born in
Cutturougus County, New York, She wna mnarrled three
times nnd waa tho mother of twelve children, six of whom
nre living,

In 1830 sho was marricd to Simon Mark, a Frenchman
living In Catlurnugus County, who was Lthe [nther of o)l of
her children.  He died in 1860 and in 1872 she wan mar-
ricd to Joseph Monroe, and in 1880 married William
Stephen Griflith of Howuard City, Michigan, who now
lives nt Muncle, Indlana.  She lived with her lust husband
only n few months, and was known [n the community as
Mm. Monroe.

Mrs. Samh E. Davis c¢lnlma to have been Lorn in Catta-
raugus County, New York, In 1844 nnd moved 10 Michi-
gan in 18562,

Sho was married to Levi B, Modison In 1863. In 1879 he
dicd, and In Felirunry, IB84, alic went to MePherson, Kanaas,
n widow with three ehlldren, nll of whom are now in the poor
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house.  Wlthin three months after areiving in MelPhorsan
she was married to John 'Thompson, who died in 1856,

She went to Niles, Michlgun, where she remnined untl
1886 when she returned to Emporin, Kunsas, Sho remuined
in Emporia slx months, returning to Niles, Mlehlpan, where
she remained until her areest,

CHADPTER XXVIIL

The Kansas City Jowrnal contained the follow-
ng:

THE TWO ALLEGED BENDERS

A Journal Representative Interviewa the Prisoners—
The Prosecution Scems to Have Deen Mude at
the Instance of Spouvks. Three Men Fuall to
ldentify Them, While the Fourth Mun Is
Posltive the Younger Womun I8 Knte Bender.

Oswego, Kunaug. - To-doy's developments po or townrd
catablishing the innoecence of the nlleged Benders.  ‘1'hree
men ut Jeast, J. W. Jeens of Montunn, De. MeKennle of
Oswego, and another maon, all of whomn knew the Benders,
have [nlled to identify them.

Public opinlon aa moulded Ly reports that come from
interviewn is that these are innocent poartles, and that the
authoritics have been misled by the delusive elinttering of
Mra. McConn, the “detective.’”  Even the County Attor-
ney has fears of establishing thelr ldentity.

Mr. Jamen, thelr nttorney, har erdered the wonen defen-
danta not to talk to reparters, but the Juirnal cortespondent
had an intervlew with them this morning nt the residence of
Tom Lawson, within n stone’s thraw of the hotod where
Mm. MecCann ls stopping.

The reporter waa talien upatales Into o low roem and upon
the bed sat Almiea Gritlith oned nesr her on o chair sut Saenh
Fllzn Davls, the alleged *Kate Bender,'” holding upon her
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Inp o curly-liended Httleo glel about two yeurs of nge.  They
smtoutly protested Innocence,  In response to n questlon of |
lier Lo the older woman anld:

“1 way born In Collursugus County, New York, in 1821,
My mniden nome wns Almlea HIL ] wos narrled there In
Bawmlill Run In 1810 te n Frenchimun nomed Simon Maork
nnd twelve ehildren were born Lo us. e dled In 1860 and |
iarrled u Scotehmnn by the nomoe of Joslnh Monroe, in 1872,
in Mleblpan, I hud my marrlage certlifiente until M.
McCunn stole it from me,

"We maved to Nilew, Michlgan, In November, 1874, |
wad divoreed from Monroe nnd murrled w thied Lhine to
Willinm Steven Grithith, nt Jloward City, Mlchignn., Ile
deserted mo In 1887 und Iy now In Munele, Indlann.

“I inve nover lived In Konsuy nnd know nothing albout the
Hendors, [ have muade o lving peddling, wushing nnd
anything I could lind to do."

Mra., Gritlith s rather fleshy and s sprightly for her upe,
nnd Joked sbhout the writer seelnge the fnmous Benders.

Surnh Ellzn Dovin wos then intervlewed.  She la about
five feot, two Inches tull, lins brown hulr ond is minus an
upper incisor.  Shoe waua poorly clad and wos numing her
Hetlo girl nt the Lreast nnd bears the marks of npe, that
mnternlty of seven children would nuturally accosion.

AlmosL the first thing she naid woas, *Thot woman,"
mennkng M. McCann, the deeleetive, “hus power to do
nnything with me.,  Why, she bhrought o magnet shaped Hke
n hurp, which hind o frame on [t, - When 1 would grusp [t my
liand would write nnything Mra, MeCuann wnnted it Lo write.
When she enmo into the house | wns completely under the
Inlluence.  She mesmorlzed me,  One time | wius under her
Influence two weeks,  I-om afrald of her, Every where |
go who follows me.”

“When were you first marted, Mm. Doavia?" wns aasked,

“1 wun firat murried to Levi . Madlsan In Michigan In
18063,  He dled in 1870,

“In 1884 [ maved to Mecl*herson, Knnsan, There [ mar-
rled John Thompson. e lived elghteen montha.  About
thls thne | made tho acqualntance of Mra. McCann nnd In o
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short time she had me under her Influence.  § Hved In Me-
I'hereon two yean

“If 1 ever made a confisslon ta Mm. McCann, | don't
know it, but all the tme she was trying to surprise me aml
voax me Into u confesslon.

“*I moved baek 1o Niles, Michigan, in 187, and llved thero
once year. | went to Emporia, Konwuw, in 1888 und M,
McCann came there und wutehed me. [ mmoved bnek to
Niles in six monthsa,

“1 have three chitdeen, Gertrude, nged sixteen, LilHo aged
thicteen and Freddie uged eleven, “I'ho two youngest wero
put in the poor house, amd the oldest went to work."

When asked about her marriage certificates shie cluimed
that Me. McCann had stolen them und other papers [rom
her.

When interrogated us to hee mother’s carcer, she ndmitted
that she had served o teem In e Michlgan penltentiney for
infanticide,

Mrx. McCann was ecen by the Jonrnal reporter Lhis
evening and she sald that in all of ber work In this matter
she had been guided solely by ber Intultions or impressions
made upon hee by somo mysterlous Influence,

She anys she will go to McePherson nmd vislt hee family
u hom she has not reen for six montha,

She certalnly hns followed her theory [mithfully, though
she admits that the confesslon she hus obtulned will not
convict them,

Uncle Jdoseph Storey of 'ammons, who knew the Bender
fumily, will come dewn this evenlng und says that il the
younger woman is not Kate Bender, she is her exnct countoer-

part.

CHAPTER XXIX.
The Kanras City Times contained an article
entitled:
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BASLD ON DREAMS

Mra, McCunn's Charge Fllmnsy. ‘T'he Alleged Bendern
Arrested Almost Without Cuuse. Decidedly
Weank Story Told by Female Dectective. The
Mg Sensation Very Much Like a Peraccutlion
Now. Determination to Hang the Two Women,
If Possible, Expressced by the Accuser. Queer
Tale on Which 1o Jeopurdize Lives,

Oswepo, Konsas, Nov. 2. —Mm. Frunces E. McCann
left Oswego on the evening train for Parsons, where she will
remuin for severnl doys, the guest of Deputy Sheriff Dick,
who brought Mm. Monroe nnd Mm. Davis from Niles,
Michigan.

Mmi. McCann and Mr. Dick nre nbout the only permons
who think thut Mm. Johin und Kute Bender have been
cuptured,

In an interview at the depot this moening the lady said:
“If T have not captured M. Bender, | hnve suceerded in
bringing from Michignn the ugllet womun ever seen In
Kunans."'

Then the little woman shrugged hee shoulders and
lnughed heartily in her nttempt at n joke,

“1 did not expect,” Mm. McCnnn continued, “that many
permona In thla part of Oswegn would he able to fdentify
the prlsonem, for fow of them knew the Bender family, by
sght. ] cannot ray that 1 will be natsificd even if at the trinol
they are turned loose, It depends altogether on how the
investigation is conducted. If they ure turned loose on
thia charste, the murder of my futher, Johin W. Sanford,
nt Windsor, Cunndn, remuins to he disposed of.

“Mm. Davis swore un the witness stand at Niles, Michi-
pan, that her mother was Instrumental In the murder of
John W, Sanlorl.

“It la u matter of public record, and whether it is competent
evidence In the preliminary hearing or not, It will furnish
grounda for nnother Investigntion, 1 propose to see that
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the investigution [s conducted by the State In such a manner
that the whole truth will be arrived at.”

Buscd Eniirely on a Drcum.

This second charge Is based on o deeam,  Supplementing
the dream are confexslons of Mra, Duvis mudde, sho clulmy,
while under n mesmerle influence.

Hobgoblins and ghosts tigure even more prominently in
the Stanford murder Investigation than they do in the
Bender finsco.

Mrs. McCunn hod a deeam which revealed tho murder
of an old man, by un old woman nnd her duughter, Tho
litde daughter of the murdered man was spared.  The story
preyed on her mind and she told it to M. Davis at McPher-
on.

Mms. Davis interpreted the dream.

“Yes, there wist o murder,’’ nafd M. Davis; “the murder-
od man was John W. Sanford, of Windsor, Canuda, und you
are the daughter who wacaped. My mother was the mur-
derer.”

Mrs. MecCann did not know her parentage, and so lmpres-
scd wns she with the interpretation that she made a pllgrim-
age Lo Kentueky, where she vislted nn orphan asylum in
which she wns ralsed.

There she discovered that she had been recelved as Emily
Sanford.

Her next visit was to Windsor, Cunndan, where she discov-
ered that n man by the name of John W. Sanford had heen
murdered.

Mm. McCann retuenel to MePherson, detormined to
prosecute her search for the murderer of her futher. Sho
began by shadowing Mrs. Davis.

How the Bender Iden Hegun,

“There was one thing,'* sald M. McCunn In relnting her
story, "which Mm. Davis nald she would never tell me. |
kept thinking the motter over and these words came to my
mind, 'these people are the Bendem.’

“Ono day [ asked Mm. Davis polnt-blunk if her mother
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win ol Mre, Bender.  Sho begame indignant ot once and
fiereely told me nover to refer to thut subject again.

“On the lollowing doy she wus buslly engaged In washing
over n washtub, 'How muny were there in the Bender
fumily?® I nsked In on olf-humd wny nnd sho wus caught
pupplng.  'Well, et mo wee,’ she soid, ‘there wns Mother—.'
She stopped In an dnstant and throwing her hands up ex-
clnlmed *Now you have the seeret. | have told you nll!l’

“She warped me on fenr of death never to refer to the sub-
jeet ngaln, nnd | belleve that only thoe reuwson whe had in
Lelling mo further of the mnny murdern committed by har
fumily, was to intimidate me.”’

The drcam and the confession which followed (t, form Lhe
ground-work of ull subsequent Investigations.

No attempts ot hdentifieation were made to-dny and the
curluup wure reflused sdmittance to the room In which Mm.
Monroo und Mia, Davis were guanled.

The attorneys for the two are collecting evidence Lo es-
tublish the ldentity of their cllents,

A dispnteh from Portlund, Michigan, states that o deputy
nherlfT of thut County had recelved a letter from Mrs. Mon-
roe requesting him 1o procure allidavits from prominent
citlzens regnrlding the monner of her husband's (Muark's)
denth.

A disputeh from Portland published In the Detroil Free
I’rean corrobornten, In part, the story told by Mm. Monroe,
in regard to her Michigan Hife.

'The dinpoteh snya: * Mr, und Mrs. Monroe came to Port-
lnnd In 1870, shortly after the Windsor tradegy, nnd occupled
tha old block house on the west side of Grund river. They
were genernlly regarded as a quarrelsome, dangerous set and
were seldom molested by the townasfalk, The facts connnect-
ok with the death of Mark cunnot now bo recnlled, but the
husband nnd wife were rertainly disagreeing.  The family
hud some trouble here over the alleged drowning of o bube,
but no arrests were made.”’
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CHAPTER XXX,

State of Michigun, County of Berrlen:

Marian Chapman being duly wworn suys: That in the
carly Spring of 1873, she became acquninted with M. Al-
mira Monroe, now under arrest on susplelon of belng one of
the Dender foamily and connected with the murdem of that
family in the State of Kunsuy, Thot she worked for my
next neighbor in planting corn und other work In thu liouse,
that Spring nnd Summer,

This woman lived a mile from me nnd worked for o Mr.,
Lankston on an adjolning farm.

She fixes the date ot which she fimt knew Mm. Monroe
by the birth of her child, the child born in the Speing of 1872,
She saw und knew this Mms. Monroe durlng the Speing nnd
Summer of 157 und more or leas often cuch yeur to the pre-
sent time,

MARIAN CIHHAPMAN.

Sworn ond subscribed before me this 16th day of Novem-
ber, 1859.

(SEAL) DAVID BACON, Notary Public.

State of Michlgun, County of Derrlen, as:

Myrm A. Hogue, being duly sworn, says: That she is a
resident of Nilew, Michignn, and she has been for fourteen
years last past. That she has been n resldent of the State
of Michigan for twenty-five years, That during the ycam
1870, 1871, 1872, and 1873, she was well and intimately
acquainted with Almira Griflith, formerly Almlen Muork,
now under arrest and held ut Osweggo, Konuw, ns the
notesd Mrs. Bender, and charged with the murder of
Doctor York, and othems In labette County, Kanmas,
That afliant, Myra A. llogue is n daughter of malid Mm.
Mark., That during the year 1870 Mm. Mark lved In
Davld Perry’s hounse, In Concord Townshlp, In  Jnckson
County, Michigan. That In the year 1872, she lived In
Carlton, o suburb and ndjolning South Saginaw, Michi-
gan, in a house owned by one Louls Gonslnminger,
That in 1873 and 1874, Mm. Mark, then known ns Mm,
Monroe, lived at Tekouskn, Calhoun County, Michigan,
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Thut aflant wns well nequninted with M. Gritlith during
auld time nnd of her own knowledygo suys thut she wos lving
during sald yeam ut the pluces sbove set forth.
Her
MYRA -'- A. HIOGUE.
Mark

Sworn and subscrlbed before mo  this 15th dny of
January, 1800,
(SEAL) DAVID BACON, Notary Public.

Onc of the Oswego weekly papers contained
the following:

J. J. Johns of Oswego Townnhip spent Saturday with hia
mother-in-lnw, Mm. 1. W. Patrlck. In 1862 Mr. Johne
located in Labetto County nnd wun u nelghbor of the notorl-
jous Bender famlly. When asked his opinion regarding the
[nte of this family, he stnted positively that they were not
capturcd and killed by o vigilnnee committee, us he wns
member of that organization.  He was o frequent  visitor
nt the house nnd one time wan refused ndmittanee, which
nrauscd his sunpleions.

CHAPTER XXXI.

The Parsons Palladium, dnted June 12, 1907,
contained an artlele which read as follows:

Followling close upon n story recently published that Kate
Bender had been discovered In Oklanhoma and hand been
denounced by u man who wanted to moery her daughter
nnd hadd been refused; now comes nstory from n Knnsas City
woman who formerly lived in Montgomery County und who
clulma hier futher-ln-law waa n member of the avenging
party that sloughtered the Benders after finding of the ovi-
dence of the murdem.

She mentlons Judge Webb, fuormerly of this County an
one of the party who discovered the notorlous trap doar
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through which the victiins of tho Benders wueee tirown nlter
belng struck on the head,

{(This article then guoted part of an ortdele which wan
published In the Kansas City Star dated June Secomd 1907,
and was as follows:)

HELPED SLAY THE BENDERS

A County Treausurer s Sauld to Have Alded Avengors,

Apropos of un article In last Sunduy's Stur, In which
John Keepers related the story of what mony persons be-
lieve to have been the trugic end of the notorious Bender
family of Konsas, Mm. E. L. Stephenson of Kunsas Cliy
oflers some testimony tending to corroborute  Mr, Keeper's
theory.

Mra. Stephenson declares that her futher-in-luw, L. ‘T,
Stephienzon, ot ono time Treasurer of Montgomery County,
Kanaas, was one of o party of men who puraued nnd killed
the Benders, in the manner deseribed by n Cherokee Indlun,
who witnessed the ecxccution.

In the party of avengem, she says, were many prominent
citizens of Montgomery County, nearly all of whom ure now
dead.

“Alter the disappearance of Doctor York nnd his litle
daughter,’” aald Mrs, Stephenson, 'n rearch wus made for
them, which resulted In loeatipg then fAnnlly In n genve on
the Bender farm, together with somoe sixicen other bodles
all of whom had been killed on the sanme muanner.

“Doctor York had been killed by belng struck in the baek
of the head, but the little daughter, from oll appearances,
had been buried allve in her father's grove.

**Everything Indicoted that the premizes hod been but
lately vacated, acouts having evidently gotten wind of the
fact thut the nvengern of Doctar York were headed that way
and the trall wos token up nnd followed theeo duys,

At the cnd of that time the wagons, which had broken
down and been abandoned, were found, nnd seon after
the entire party wns overtnken nnd dispatehed without
mercy.
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"Kute Bender, who seomed to be the leading splrit of the
party, I sald to have fought for ber e viclously.

"At u thne when reporta were belng circulnted that the
Beaders had been found nnd arrested, knowlng that my
futher-in-law had been Hving In the country at that time
[ asked him If e thought it was true, and his reply, quietly
glven, was that hie know it wun not, for he hnd helped to
ty tholr gtrnves.

*Later hie told me of nn experlence he hud himself hod
with the Bemdem.

“In the eorly doys of Montgomery County, Knnsos,
he had held the posltlon of County Treasurer, bunking
funds ot Oawepo, some sixty-five mllea awny, to which
place he made trips overlund by private conveyance.

“On the ocenslon spoken of he wus necompanted by
1., G. Webl, the Distelet Judge of the County, who wns
polngt to Osweo to hold hls regular term of courl.

“Iuther owned the finest tenm of hormes In the County
of Arablun nnd llombletoninn stock, with harncesa silver-
mouptcd nnd o fine covered bugyy.

“On the way they stopped for dinner at the Bender (arm,
which wus tho only Inn along the route.  Driving into the
barnyard, they ordored the horses fed without unhitching
m thoy were In haste.

“Delng ushiered Into the front room of the house, careyling
with thom the valise contnining the funds, they were
confronted] by Kate Bender, who cume to tuke thelr ordem,

“They were forclbly struck by her evll (nce, the Judge
remorking nfter she left that he wouldn't eare to be compel-
ledd to [ace hee [n close qunrters without wenpons of defence,

“While waiting for thelr meal to be brought, Father
wilked outl to see thut the horses had been attended to
wil discovered (hat hils orders to feed without unhitching
hud] beon dlsregurded, the hormes inving been tuken from Lthe
bugry nnd locked In the barn.

“Returning to the hounse he told this to the Judge. Doth
regarded It as n suspleloua circumstance and they began
to look nbout them. i

“The room in which they sat was divided from o rear
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room by n thick curtain, und on closer exuminntlon, it was
found thut this curtuln and the table covered n long, closely
fitting trap door.

“In n short time, Kute Dender reappeared with thelr
meal, and placing it on the table, drew two chulm to one
aide of the table, with backs to the curtain, and Invited them
to ‘draw up,’ Immediately leaving the room.

“*Quietly lifting the table over to the other slde of the
room, they took their pluces ut it, fncing the curtnin,

“Scarcely had they done so, when o vigorous blow wan
struck on the other slde of the curtaln In such o way that
had they been sitting in front of the curtain one of them
must have been killed.

“Simultancously with this blow the trap doar In the floor
New open downward, revealing a hole large enough to have
taken in table, chaims and thelr occupants,

“Renlizing that they would probably be outnumbered,
Father and the Judge deew thele revolvers, rushed out of
the house to the barn, hroke ln the door und while ono stooed
on the defensive, the other hitched the homes to the buggy.

“They drove out of the ploce ns fast ne they could,
folloucd Ly several shots from the house.

‘On returning to Independence o few doys afterward,
carcfully avoiding the Bender furm on his way, Father
learned of the disappearsnce of Doctor York and his Httle
doughter, who had left Independence some daya previous.

“[t wns the informution given by him of his adventure
at the Dender form which led the uvenging parly to make
straight for that plaee.”

CHAPTER XXXIL

Ie Knew the Bender Family.

On Mu'y, 1907 the Kansas City Star, inils
Sunday edition conlalned Lhe following:

John Keepers Alded in the Scarch for the Murdecera
P'eriodically the report goes over the rountey that the
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notorlous Bender fumily his been found,  But nlwnys the
rumor Is found 1o be (niwe,

“They will nover be found,'” sl Johin Keepers, an - ex-
Kupnnn, now living ut 21334 Bellefontuine avenue.  *When
the Bendem left thelr fanm in Crawilord county, Kansaos,
in 1873, nfter thelr erlmes had been committed and dis-
covered, they ure supipased to hove gone into the Indian
Ferritory. ’

"It Is nlmost an nhsolute eertninty that the Bendem were
oll kiMed nnd buried by outlaws Hliie themselves.

"“I'hy Benders knew 1oo much —thot's why they were
e,

*1 wan one of the porty of men that went to the Bender
home when a search wan belng made for Doctor York of
Independence, n brother of Col. A. M. York of Fort Scolt.

“We met old mun Bender ot the gate and told him our
creaml.

" Ho suld Ty hidd been shot ut by highwaymen o few dayns
before on Lhe Verdlgris clver, slx miles distant, That led
un ofl on 1 (nlse neont,

"When we enme back ten days luter the Denders had dis-
nppearci.

*“The discovery of their flight wns made by a nelghbor
named Pierce, Tie told olthers and n search of the premiscs
wan begun,

“First we went through the house.  We found n trap door
Ini the Noor, uned below LU §n tha cellnr, the gravel flooring was
atnined with blood.

“In the gnrden we found several ploces where the carth
had sunk.

“The most recent appearing of these we dug Into nnd
found there the body of Doctor York.

“We souniledd oll the other depressions with nn lron rod
and found In that way sixtcen bodles,

*1f [ remember rightly, n total of 104 persona were reported
mirsing In that nelghborhood,

"Of courne wo never knew whother the Denders had killed
them all, for the bodles were not found.
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“But I belleve if we had mude closer search nt the tine we
could have found many more graves.

“All of the murders occurred In the Full of 1872 und the
Winter nned Spring of 187,

*“The Benders kept a store und hotel for travelers, though 1
don't believe they ever had more thon ten dollars worth of
roods in the store at any one time.

“And | don’t belicve any  truveler who stopped there ever
lived to continue his journey. If he wasn't murdered In
hix sleep he was killed at the dining table.”

Mr. Keeper does not eredit the story that the Benders
were killed by o lynching party not {or from thelr home.

* I they had been,'” he sald ‘'] would have known aboul it.
There was o large reward for cach member of the family,
dead or alive, and if they had been killed someone would have
claimed the reward.

**There is more probability in the story of n Cherokee In-
dian, who while fishing nlong the tributary of the Verdigris,
nbout twenty-five miles rsouth of the Knnsas line, witnessed
what many people believe to have been the finish of the
Bender

“*The Indian zald he saw an old man and an ol womun,
with a younger couple, campuxl around a covered waogon.

"A band of twenty men came upon them suddenly wnd
killed everyone, burned the wingon and outfit and then lefe.'”

Anolher paper published in Kansas, near the
Bender farm, contained among olher Lhings Lhe
following:

The question as to what became of the Denders haa been
revived.  Most people for yeamm have belioved that the
Benders cacaped from Kansas nnd are stlll living somewhere,

Kansas hns had many revolting crimes within her borders,
but none ever equnlled the Bender erimes, except pousibly
the sacking of Lawrence.

The DBendem lived on the main road about linlf-way
between Thayer and Cherryvale. That was In the carly
‘seventles,  There were four In the family. Old man Bene
der and his wife and n son nnd his wife. ‘The ron’s wifo
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clnimed to be o Medium nnd hnd great influence over other
membern of the fmmlly.  They ran a sort ol n country
tuvern.  ‘Ihey soll refreshments and fed travelers who
happened slong, ubout meul time,

Thelr house consisted of two rooms amd the partition
cominted of n culico curtuin,

In the enrly npring of *73 people began to suddenly dis-
appesr uround that sectlon of the country. They would
start aut on the Thuyee-Cherryvale rond and that would be
the lont seen of them. They would drop completely out
of mlgght.

In Murch of thut yeur Willlum York, u brother of Senator
York, who played an important role in the Pomeroy Sena-
toriul acandal, started from Forl Scett to Independence,
He alro dropped out of sight.  Shortly afterwards the Ben-
der fumlly disappesred. The fimt time they were miased
was when n nelghbor found a enlf tied to o tree In the yard
temd.  ‘The enlf had dled of starvation.

The people then becumo curlous and an investigation
followed., They found u trap<door In the house and it
opened 1o o plit about six feet in diameter. The ground
floar of it wns rooked with blood. It smelled of decayed
human (lesh,

Out In the garden some sunken holes were dincovered. A
nelghbor thought he would dig down and sce what would
turnup. lle discovered a humun corpse.  When It waos re-
moved it was discovered to bo that of Willlam York. The
investigntion then continued and-soven more bodies were
nfterwanls discovered. They were nll identified with tho
exception of one,

Those ldentificd were; Georpe W. Longeohr anil daughter;
three monthaolil. Longeolir hod lost his wife and was tak-
Ing the little girl back to lowa to live; George Drown, of
Cherryvale; William McCrothy, of Howard County, who -
left liomo with two thourand dolinra in his posscssion; 11. T.
MeKenzie, of Indinnn, who hnd come West with n lttle
money to locate; M. R, Boyle, of Montgomery County, nnd
an unknawn man,

It was afterwanin brought out that all of these people
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were killed In the Beader home st different times, with the
exception of Longeohr umd his doughter,

The victim would stop for u meul, e would be seated
at the table with hia back near the enlico curtain,  Then
one of the Benders would slip up nid hit him on the head
with u hanmmer, crushing his skull. [lis body would drop
through the trap Into the hole ond to make sure of hla death
once of the Benders would then cut his theont from cor to car.

Every victim was trented in this fashion.  Thelr heads
were oll crushed and theire throats cut.  In due time the
body woulld Ix taken to the ganlen and burled.

On April 7, 1873, the four Benders drove awny. They
left their team about o mile from Thuyer nml took the trnin
for Humboldt. At least that is thestory.  They have never
been ween mince.

A posse was after them about this time. After skirmishing
all around, the members of the posse returned home, saying
they had given up the hunt. They dropped the subject
quickly.

The whereabouts of the Bendem never seemed to bother
them alter that.  Dut other people wero curioun nndd are
curious to this day.

The posae never peaclied.

That they got rld of the Bender hux nlways been suspec-
ted by many,

CHAPTER XXXIII.
Story of The Bendera.

It wns our rare good fortune to have ns our guest over
night, with the anner [olks, recently, Mr. Leroy F, Dick, of
I'arsons, who was a nenr neighbor of the Benders ot the time
of thelr murders here; who was Township Trustee of that
Township at that time; who exhumed those corpses in the
Bender graveyard, who had charge of those corpses after
they were exhumed: had charge of the Dender premises alter
the Bender left, and participated in all the lending scones
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nnil Incldents connected with the discovery of the erhines,

He It was who fiest polnted out the correct clue to the
mlralng Doctor York, had charge of the poases in the search,
nnd who was alterward Deputy Sherllf In the efforts that
were mode to track, follow nnd npprehend the Bendemn.,

It was lnst Thursduy night at nine o'clock, nlter we hud
finlshed printing ond nddeessing the anner while sitting
nround the flre in compuny with Brother Dick that n casun!
remark mode by one of the (nmily relative to the Bender
murder, which huppened after we came to Jowel county,
Kunsas, sprung the aubject nnd turned his attention to it.

From nine o’clock to one o’clock in the morning we sat
entrunced with that thrilling story—thrilllng In its horrid-
neas-—thellling In the manner In which it was told-—thrilling
in its minutne and Incldents and ol the detalls of which
Bro. Dick is wo fully cognlizunt, and to which he was an eye
witness, nnd in which he wns compelled to be n participant
at that time.

From him we learned that the New York Ledger atory
thut old mun and old womun Bender nnd Kate nnd John
were overtnken hy Colonel York and his party nnd all shot
to death, down un Cow Creck (or some other creelke) wans the
verleat fiction,

They had been gone soventeen dayn bofore thoy wero
missed from tho premises. A calf that they had left ted
up at tho stuble hued perlshed for water or starved to death,
and their tenm that they had driven into the timber and left
tied to the wagon had eaten the wogon bied nearly up and
were nlmost perished when found.

They therefore dld not drive off, nccording to  the
Ledper's benutiful Jegend, but bought tickets to Humboldt
on tho milroad, went Southward, divided into two par-
ties, rounded up und enme together at Denlson, Texas, and
from thence ta New Mexico, or the, then, unpopulated
country in Wesatern Texas.

They were [ollowed, Every turn they made was dis-
covered, hut nlwaya too Inte to apprehend them; and when
they reached the westeen wilds oll trace of them disappeared
nnd for several years, wan loat,
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Finully a clew, given by n ludy, led Lo the susplelon thnt
they had roturned 1o Michigan.  Dro. Dick wns appolntecd
Deputy Sherifl to track this clue.  Ho troveled over cloven
thowwnd milew, found the old lndy, found Kuate anid found
two other daughter of Mes, Bender, but Jolin and the old
man he could not yet track of,

Old Mra. Dender had been married thirteen times, the
other two daughters were ench lving with thele eighth or
ninth husband and Knte had u buby in ber nrms und hod been
muchly marricd, but was st that tme without a husboned.,

He brought Kate and the baby nnd old Mra. Bender boek
to Oswego and lodged them in jull, thereby peeforming bila
part in the drama as fully and ruecessfully ns posalbile.

This was in 1889, seventeen yearn after the murders wern
cammittedd.  Kate from a teim, well proportioned glel hal
grown corpulent.  The old womun hald becomo  haggurd,
wrinkled and skinny.

Identification here was not complete. The necemsnry
evidence and witnesses from Mlchlgun, und other plnces,
would have cost the State o Jurge num.

A lawyer uppeared on the scene from thele old haunts to
defend them, presumobly the futher of Kate's ehild,

The dificulty of [natenlng the crimes upon Lthese two
women in the nbsence of John and old mun Bender—-tho
improbabllity that o jury would do #o, und vurlous other
conslderatlons, led the County Attorney to doubit the pro-
priety of prosecuting the case, nnd adding the expense tonn
aver-burdencd nned, at thot thine, debt-rldden County.

This decislon to dismias the case hus led mnny to doubt
the real [dentity of the partles nppreliended; but the (hetd
ns given by Mr. Dirk must forever dlapel uny doulit of thut
kind In the mind of any one who shisuld hear the ovlidence;
and thix declsion of the County Attorney, nnd dlsmlssul of
these wretehen from Justlce, is by inr the most unanvory nnd
unaatisfactory part of thls great Bender eplsode.

Bro. Dick has in his possesslon the hummer and other
implementa of death which the Hendera used to dispatell
their victima. He hina kept tenek of the history of his pris-
nnera alnce they were relensed from custody here. 1o has
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also been enubled to got some hnformatlon with regord to
tho other mombers of the Bender fnmlly,

Kuto Bender §s now dend,  Old mun Bender §s ulso dead
—wonl mad nnd committed sulelde by drowning himself
In Luko Mlehlgan.

Ho was lept for u tlme In o private asylum.  ‘The old
Indy went to see blm, nnd nt sight of her he became ruving
and frantic. 148 renl nnmo wos not Bepder, but Flickinger.

John in utlll, b last accounts, Yving, romewhere In the
ploeries of Northern Michligon.  ‘The old womnn s still
nlive.

None of them ever wonl by the nume Dender after they
left Lubetto County, but Mr. Dlek Is well sequalnted with
thelr assuined and often changed numes, or was untl re-
contly,

All thls may nol read so pretully as the published romance
of tho [nte of the Benders, but [t s n great denl more correct.

Crlmo vametimen becomes so grent nnd nppalling in ity
mugnitude an to dofy justice. This seems to be the cuse
with tho Bender mnurders here.

Eight hotlics were exhiumed [rom the Dender orchard;
one n Jittle child that waa Juld in the hole allve, with s
murdered futher, nnd vo burled up, nllve.  The hodices
wora burled seven feel deep.  Thelr heada were mashed
with o inmmer and thelir throats cut to bleed them well.

There wna o prepnred recaptacle under the house to cateh
the hlood, Every vestlge of the subsoll was removed {rom
where the bodies were burled, and hauled to the barnyard
and eareflully covered over by mnnure, The ground waa
kept nleely inrrowed over, and was sel In apple trees,

Other bodica nnd skelotons were afterwards found nlong
the boltoms nnd in the timber that were no doubt also Den-
der victima,  In et one was discovered nt some dlstance
from tholr home, In n creel, or pond, that fimt gave n clue
ta foul plny going on in that vicinity. From thlaitis known
that they dld not put nll of their victima Inte thelr privato
grave-yar<d nt hiomoe.

They secured several thousnnd dollnrm from thelr vietims,
Anold Germanindy Just from theold country whom they did

R ]
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not murder was robbed of fifteen hundred dollurs In gold,
two thouand dollars in Jewelry, und had two checks an the
bank for large sums tnken from her while stopping n fow
dave ot their house while her xon-In-law was looking for n
home.  The money and jowelry were never recovered but
payment wis stopped on the checks nmd thut monvy she
alterward recelvedl,

From two others of thele viethny they recelved over
theve thousand dollane.  One young man who dicd ol was
burid with the nwt only had foriy cents, although they
cxpectes] to gt a large sum from him. From thelr firat
victim they obitained over fifteen hundred dollurs, aned {1
was no toubt this pood luck, and the feverish thimt (or gain
that followd, that scared their conselences nnd steeled thelr
hearts to the enormity of their erlmes,

The bodies were stripped nuked before belng burled and
the men were mutilated by having the private parts cut off,

CHAPTER XXXV,
Ol Man Bender.

The theory of L. F. Dick of Pamans, who went to Michl-
gan and brought back two women as old Mrs. Bender nnd
Ratr, that old man Bender Is dend, having committed sul-
cide In Michigun, Is not accepted by everyhady, and there
are many who believe the old man s yet alive, desplte
Dick's bellef that he sulclded nnd the bellef of othern that
he aned the remainder of the Infamous fnmlly were disposed
of years ago by the vigilantes,

A Columbus, Ohlo, paper of last Saturdny printed n
scn=ational story that old man Render s still nlive and wna
recently paroled from the Ohlo penitentiory.

Photographa are given of the man recently paroled from
the penitentiary, and old man Dender as he looked when he
disappeared.  An the story goes this suspect was reccived
at the penltentiary from Cincinnatl under the name of C. 8.
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Miller, July 12, 1886, on u seven years® seatence for grand
lurceny.

He dreifted into Clucinnutl from where, no one knows,
ahortly prior to his uerest, nnd nbsolutely refused to divalge
nuy portion of his pust history or glve his plivee of realdence,

Whils In the prison nt Columbun, Miller elnlmed Lo b
worlth w consldernide sum of monvy but would never tell
how hu camo In poscssion of It

Although repested efforts were mude by the oflicinls at
the State Prison to learn something of Miller's past life, not
one sylluble of his history wns ever given by him,

Previous to the date of his relense he mel the requirementa
of the parole luw by sccuring employment from a former in
Morgan County, Ohlo.

Miller hawever, only remained with his employer two
duys, leaving one night for parts unknown after the {farmer
nnd his funily hud retired, and no clue to his whereabouts
hiet slneo been lenrned.

'Thia netlon of the prisoner constitutes n vielatlon of his
parole aud fifty dollnrs reward has been offered by the penl-
tentlary authoritles for information that will lend to his
cupture,

Miller is now reventy-two yenrs old, and his mysterious
tisappearance from Morgan County certninly liwams some
slgnlfAconce, for It is hardly rensonable that o mnnn of his age
would care Lo expose himself to a return to the penltentinry
by violuting the condition of his relense unless there wns o
fear that he would be taken up on some graver churge.

And to forge another link In the chaln of clrcumstances
which reem 1o rensonnbly establish e clnim that old man
Hender and MlUller aro one and the snme mnn, nnd nlsoe oe-
count for Millee's atrange disappenrance slnee hisrelensefrom
thu penitentiney, 1t I8 soid that since this Investigution han
been instituted [t has been learned that some of the ollicinly
nt that Institution accused Miller of bieing old man Bender,

Phipps, the member of the board of managers from Cin-
cinnatl, was heard 1o remark thut there was a great many
people in his city who hod seen Miller, nnd who were nlso
[umilinr with the newspaper cuts of old wnan Bender, that
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thought there was a remarkable resemblunce between the
two.

It is also sald that there are many persons who have como
in contact with Miller who ngree with the foregoing opln-
fons, yet thelr confidenco in the resemblonco was not sufll-
clently strong to arouse suspiclon, thinking, na many others
yet think, that oll the Dender fumily wero killed by the poase
of armed men who pursucd them some sixteen yeant ago.

CHAPTER XXXV,
Mrs. Garden's Correspondence.

Mrs. John Garden of Saginaw, Michigan, was
a daughter of Mrs. Griflith. The following lel-
ters were received and written by her.,

DETROIT 1HOUSE OFF CORRLECTION
Offlce of the Superintondent

Dotrolt, Dec. 27, 1889,
Mrs. John Garden,
200 Hermanlon R. Saginnw, Mlch.
Muadam:

In reply to yours of 24th Inst., would sny upon referring
to our records, we find that no person by the namo of Almlrn
Marks or Bartlett wos committed here between Jonunry
1st, 1870 and Janunry Ist, 1874,

We do find, however, 8 record of ono Almirm Shearer
having been sentenced to one year's Imprisonment here on
May 13th, 1872, from lonia Co., Michigan, for the crime of
manslaughter. She wans discharged from here Muarch 24th,
1873.

When recelved here, she stnted she was sixty-twa yenrs of
nge, was born In New York, and lier occupation ns house-
keeper.

This is all the Information we can find In this case.

Yours truly,
JOS. NICHOLSON, Supt.
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Snginaw, Jon. 26, 1804,
Mr. 1. T, Jumen,

Dear Sir:- - Your Jetter is Junt recelved so hasten to
anawer. ‘This Is the fimst steaight nccount | have had on the
whole cnse.  Mother Is wrong os o dates in the timo she was
sent to prison for you can neo by the letter 1 send you that it
waon In 72 she wans in Detrolt.

I shnl) go Monidny to Jackson to geL her marrloge cer-
tifcate If It is there. 1 om nlmost a stronger to my mother
nnd her dolnge for § left home In 62 at the age of ten yvears
and hoveo not heen home only three or four times since, und
then not 1o stay only n fow hours so you see [ know leas
nbout them than you do. | think if you write to Dotroit
workhouse they will make out n regulor certificate of her
imprisonment and discharge. 1If you think I ought to go
there I will go nnd got 1t mysclf. 1 do not know whut name
mothier wns maerled under to Mr. Shearer, 1 wrote her to
send me her nume nnd sho does not answer my letter. After
my father died §n '06 ] wus not home for over ten years so |
o not know uny of my step-fnthera’ names or which was first
or lust only Grlilith, [ know him. I have been to Carlton
nnd find out It was In '74 she lived there so that will do her
no good but 1 can swenr sho wian in Detroft in "72 for | went
there to see her mysell and [ think that will be all that [a
needed.  Plense writo mo if you think that will be nll right.
Mr. Jumes, [ will be truthful with you, 1 have not got the
money or | would not be kile as | have been but will do oll 1
cnn.

Youm reapectlully,
MRS. MARY GARDEN,
200 llermanson R., Saginaw Mich.

Saginaw, Jan. 31, 1890
Mr. Jamoy,

Dear Skr:—| sent you to-dsy a copy of the marrioge of
my mother to Monroe. Also will send you a letter § just
received from Jackson. | will send the money to-day to get
n copy and 1 will send Lo you just na soon ns possible. |
think nll will be well with her for 1 know she s innocent,
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Please excuse thils short letter for T um so tlred [ con barcdly
stand up. 1 hoave traveled ull duy on feot to find Mr, Robin-
son und found him slek ln bed with LuGrippe. Givemother
my best wishes und love,  Write If there s more to deo.,
Your truly,
MRS, MARY GARDEN,
200 Hermnnson R.

Suginnw, Feb. 10, 1810,
Mr. Jams,

Dear Sie:—Your letter I8 just now recelved no [ husten 1o
unswer. Do you think there [v any juntice in holding my
mother thero when you know slie (s pot Old M. Bender?
Is there any wuy by which we cun make the Stute pay her
for all this? There ought to be. 1t 1s not poxsible for me
to get the fifty dollars nor is It posslble for me to be there
at court, although | should like 1o he, Hul you ean speuk
some words of cheer to my mother for me.  Did you get the
paper {rom Detroit? And do they st hold M. Daovla?
Or have they let her go?  God only knows what punlsh-
ment to put on her for the teeelbile lies she hos told, Some-
timea I think she is in some way connected with  these
Bendera. Do you know what has been done with hee Hetle
children that were lelt In Mlchlgan?  Mother wrote ine they
was sent to Cold Water school. 1 wrote to Mother this inorn-
ing belore 1 got your letter nnd guve her good cheer nnd 1
know It wus nouse.  I{ It wna posdlble to xend you the mon-
ey [ would but | cannot. My husband will pot let mo hnve
it not even once-tenth part of it for he says they hrung [t
on themselves. But If there is nnything 1 ean do
plense me let know and [ will do It If In my power. |
remaln youra to commuand,

MRS, MARY GARRDEN,
200 Hermunson I3 Saglnow, Mlich,
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CHAPTER XXXVI.
T'he Benders Bowund Over,

A Diterencue of Opinlon St an (o Thelr Identlty.—
Seven Wihtneswes Declure 'T'hat the 'T'wo Michigan
Women Arce the Benders, While Seven Othern
Lgunlly as Relluble Declure They are Not.—
The Trlune Court Glves Junstice the Benefit of
the Doubt and Ilolds the Prironers Without
liall,

Oswego, Kanms, Nov. 1W.—{Specinl. )—Aflter the ex-
aminntlon of sixteen witnewes, soven of whom declure Lhe
prisoners are the Denders and seven of whom say they are
not, and two hinving no opinlon, thoe three justiees declde
that there I probuble emuse for holding them for trinl In the
Distrlet Court without ball,

‘T'ho court room hun been packed with citizens of Lobette
Counly [ur two dnys, and never wos such intercst monifes-
ted in u trin] in Labolte County, Tha decislon wos glven
nt ten o'clock to-nlght, -

Onv witness for the Stato snd six for the defense were on
the stund to-duy, bealdes tho prisoners who were pluced on
the atand In thelr own defense,

Mm. McCaonn thinies now thnt slie will reap her reward,
while County Attornvy Morrison belleven he will convict
them.

Judge Webh and Mr, Juma, the nttorneys for the de-
[enwe, lnugh ut the iden of thelr ever belng convleted, while
the great crawd of peaple nre nhaut equnlly divided In opin-
lon. Tho prisoners necepl the altuntion und seem not to be
nTecled.

Leroy Dlek wus the lust and most lmportant witnesa (or
the Stnte and testified na follown: ‘1 have lived In this
County for twenty-one years; lived from 1861 1o 1878 Ltwo
niles nouth nnd two miles enst of the Bender fnrm. 1 knew
the Benders, nl) of them: anw the youny people at Sunday-
school nnd slnglng; unw the men in the tlmber; trled to awap
horsen with them. | wns with York when hin brother's
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Lbody was found. [ have the hmnmers und the clock in my
possossion.  One of the hammers Is o six-pound colller's
hammer, another nn Alasknn hammier and the third o smoall
haommer. | was the Township Trustee at the time,  The
vlection wns at my house.  The Hender men eanme there Lo
vote; was ot Niles, Mich.; heard peeliminury examinuation,
The younger wamun  testitied that hier mother wan the
veritable M. Bender and wns not her mother, but her
step-mother,

*She admitted to me several times that her mother wos
M= Bender.  Kate Bender hud a small wart or mole under
ber left eye. 1 belleve the=e women are the Hender women.
1 conversed with Mex Bender in 1872 la Engllslh. [ spoke
to the clder prisonee in Beerion Springy. Mich., In Germaon,
She replicd in German.®’

Cross-ecxmination eliclited the following testimony: *1
went to Michigun to being back the prizoners, W 1 identified
them. | first saw them in the Berrden Springs juil,  ‘The old
Indy asketdd me to talk to her peivately in an inner room of the
jall.  She nsked me to Intercede with the nuthorlties to
have her and her daughter sepamted, nn hee duughter hald
threatened her life.  She said that she belleved her daughtor
was Kote Bender. She sald thut she believed Mm. MeCann
wns her long-lost daughter Roxa, nnd didn’t know what she
was doing.”’

Quention by Mr. James-—*'What was your exnct languoge
to her in German?'’

He replied: 'l nsked her, * Kana Ich nickl cerkaufen in
Deutsch?  She replied ‘Das kunnst du nichl.”

Q. "Can youu interpret?’

A. "Yoeu itIa*Can Isell you in Duteh? *That you enn't,’
she replled.”

Mr. Dick was on the stand all forenoon, nnd us he detatled
the convermation with the women In Michigon, wnid the
charges they had mado aguinst cach other, the prisoners
became very muceh excited nnd muttered constantly; **Oh,
what lies; did you ever hear such ntuff?*’

Mr. Dick replied to repented sgquestioning that he wos still
gatisfied that these are the Bender women.
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Ilis evidence showed that by thelr own testimony these
women nre hinpd enses, U they ore not the Benders.,

Wituczacn for the Defeune.

{ An the Lesthmony of each of these witnesaes hina been
glven fully In the Chapter whileh rehenmsen the calllng of
wltnessens and evidenen given ns called, In this report of that
caso ns glven In the paper, nll evidenee I8 omltted except
particulur points mado In the trinl, The Stnte rested and
thie defenso enlled as thelr first whitnens, Thomas Jenns, )

Queation by Judge Webh, 'On your beat judgment are
cither of these women old Mm. Bender or Kute?”

A. 1 don't think that elther one of them ls Mm. Nender
or Kate."

On crog-exnmination the witness was conalderably con-
fused. Hesald " That Mm. Bender was o very small womnn
welghlng about one bundred nnd ten pounds.” IHe wos con-
fused and falled to deseribe Lhe prisonem with his eyes shut.

Bllags Toles of Perw, Chnututuqun County, Kaunans, wos
cnlled.

In cloalng he sald: "My judpment is thut these nre not
the Dender women.'’

Mm. Vestn Green was called us n witness by the defense.

Question by Judge Webb;  *Are either of these women
the Denders?”

A. 'l believo they are not.  They don’t look like them at
nll.  Mrm Bender had o pecullne look out of her eyen. Her
rycs were very close together.”’

On cross-cxnminntion witness snfd: 1 have seen these
peaple before to-dny, nnd [ sow ms quick ns I looked nt them
thut they wore not the Benders. | can't see that Ellza
Dnvis hus the fimt ook ke her."

The old lwly, whom sovernl peuple hove sald was Mre.
Bender, went on the stand In her own beholf and all eyes
were atrained (o get o look nt her.  She had the story of her
Hle down pat, nnd gave t glibly,

"My Iather's nnme was I, 1 had three brothers nnd
four sisters. 1 married three other men beslde Griffith.
One by name of Mark und ono by name of VanAlstine and
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one by the name of Monroe. [ win slxty-clght yeam old,
1 was murried at seventeen to Van Alstine, At twenty-one
1 marricd Murk, o Frenchmun,  Muark died in 1886, ]
wid in Michigan from 1866 to 1872, 1 wus in Detrolt In
the House of Correction for committing an nbortion. |
got out in 18GY."

She then enumernted six or cight places where she went,

“In 1569, slie sakid, 1 Hved ot St Churles o year and a
hntf, or until 1871, Then I went to Chorleton, nad marrled
Mr. Monroe, In 15872."

The witness than enumernted about ten ploces whero
she lHved from 1S72 to 1876, She anld ahie went to Niles -
in 1876, and had been theee sinece,  She mnld shoe hiad her
daughter arreated for larceny.

A lpbored and odious cross-examinntlon lollowed, in
which the old Jady qustioned the County Attorney several
timen, cnusing loughter.

Sarah Eliza Davis was then sworn und gave the ateaight-
st story the writer has ever heard, In oll Instanees glving
cxact datest and nnmed of pluces where nhe had llved from
1860 to 1889, She had marrled four men, Gilbert Juphot,
alias Hiram Johnson, at Lansing: Jumes Madlson ot Bell-
view; John Feenay nt Melherson, and Mr. Davia ot Muoson,
and had lived in several places In Dlinols, Michigun and
Kunsas,  She told of her four chlldeen nnd broke down
crying while giving their numes,  She sndd: ' In the nnme of
Gaod, | um not & Bender,”

On cross-examintnlon she snid; 1 dld not know where my
mother llved from 1869 to 1871, 1o my examinntion nt
Niles 1 did not say that my mother wns M, Bender, but [
«aid that she wns none too pood to be Mm, Hender,"

The eross-cxnmination failed to shoke her, nnd In it she
guve the names of parties in Wild Fowl By and other ploees
In Michigan, where shie hud lived from 18569,

Her atory was one that showed a lfe of burdshipa nnd
trouble, of marrylng and bearing chililren, and of the many
remavals she had made In order that the woll milght be
kept from the door.
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This in the Kansas City Journal reporl of the
Case Made on the night thal the cuse was closed
and the decision of Uhe Justices made Lo hold the
defendunts without ball, und the same night the
following wos sent from Oswego and nppeared in
the Journal with the foregoing report of the cose:

Deacription of the Bentdery,

Oswepto, Kna., Nov. 11, (Specisl )—="The Journal corres-
pondent wus shiown by 1. A, Wells, of Erle, K., & very
Imeresting relie whileh he hay kept for sixteen yenrs, i the
shupe of one of the orlginnl proclumntlonn of Ex-Governor
Onhorpnu, of Kunans, dated Moy 17, 1873, or twelvo doys
nfter the bodles were found, which ofter reciting that
"Wherens, sovern] ntrocloun murders hnve been recently
commiltted In Lubelte county, Kua,, under clrcunutances
whilelh fustens beyond doubt the comimnirslon of these erlmes
upon n fumlly known ws the Bender fumily,"” offers n rewnrd
of flve hundred dollar for the caplure and dellvery of elther
of the purtles to the Sherlfl of Labette County.

I'he eblef Interesl attnehed to thly hundblll s the fact
thut In It nre given deserlptions of the Bendera as obtalned
from the heat sources nt the thme,  They nre us (ollowa:

John Boneer, nhout alxty yeam of ape, flve feet elght
Inchea In helght, German, spenkys but little English, dark
complexion, no whiskera nnd sporely bullt,

Mrs. Bender, nboul fifty yvears of nge, rather heavy set,
blue vyed, brown hulr; Germnn, apeaks broken English.

Johin Bender, Jr,, alian John Gebhardt, five feet, eight or
nine Inclust In helsght, sllghtly bhullt, grey eyes with brawnish
tint, hrown halr, Hght moustache, no whiskers, nbout twenty-
soven years of nye; apeaks English with Genman aceent.

Kate Bender, nbout twenty-four years of age, durk halr
ml eyes, good looking, well formed, rather bold in appenr-
nnee, Huent toalker, speaks good Engllsh with very llttle
Germnn neeent.

One of the strunge things shown by the testimony In the
trinl s the fdea peaple hnve of whal is nulurn halr.

Thoy nll swear that Kato Dender hind between a llght and
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a dark auburn halr, s then say that what they mean by
suburn hair is that of the color of the younger prisoner, who
has a dark brown halr.

The descriptions glven above of the two women ore
strikingly similar to the prisoners, with no exception, unless
it is the lack of German necent In the ol woman

CHAPTER XXXVII.
Thinks he Has Benders Located.,
THINKS TIHE BENDERS LOCATVED

— Ly

Near Echo, Montunn, - Discoverer Lived In Ransas
Once Upon a Time. --WII Bet his Ranch ‘T'hat
It Is Kote. Glves Minute Dicections Hlow e
Can be Found.- Is Living In o Log Cubin with
Tar Paper Roaol.

Every once In awhile some one writes to the Lubette
County nuthoritics that they have discovered the where-
abouta of John and Kate Bender, members of Labette
County's famous family of murderers.

Each infarmant [s positive that he hias the eght partes,
Alrcudy the County has spent hundreds of dollues In trying
suspects and In followlng up alleged clues,  No longer than
last year the people were exeited over thele reported dis-
covery in Colorndo nnd rome money wan spent by the County
to make an unsuccessful Investlgation,

The lollowing Is the latest communieation, 1t will not
be acted upon.

*To the Sherlfl of Labette Co., Kanang,

Dear Sir:—There Is o party here that we have strong
suspicions of belng the Denders. And 1 nim n Kansns man
mywsell having lived in Knnsas at the time the Beniders done
their work there it cause me to believe these are the Bendern.
This woman is lorty-aix o fifty-slx years olid, welgh about
one hundred and eighty pounds, ks about five feetl ten in-
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clies high, Sho clalins her folks live In Missourl. She haa
lived In Michlpznn nnd moved from there to Town nnd from
Jown to hero, An 1 hiear It ahe wins run out of lown os n
fre<bug.  She hus six ehildeen (nll blonds) and n husband.
Ho in about six feet two inchex high and not very
Mleshy. I this in Kate Demder her eyes ore ateele blue with
Hiht bhrown hir,

It han been over n year sinee | read in the Kausan City
Star nbout the Bander,  ‘Thero hus been something here
viery myaterlous, und 1 buve heen u yenr deckding what te do.
She hus threntened people here.  Thoy are tulking of golny
lo Connda. 11 you think of sending s man send one that
knaws themn for sure. If aol send mo a deacription of Knte
and Jobn  Hender und 0 photogeaph I you  lave
them.,  Wrlte 1o box (6) vix, Echao, Montann, and if you
renid o man, tell him to comoe 10 Feho and go about one-half
mile routh on the main road und very near one mile east and
he will find the writer of this on the right of the rond In n
little log house with tar paper roof, or Inquire of tho post-
master nt Eclio about hox six,

I have a runch here nud If theswe are not the parties |
nuspect, woulil like to have It kept quict alter.  Write and
let me have n good descriptionof the Bendems i you
don’t semdd o man here right awny. I you acnd a man here
let him pretend to be wanting to buy n farm. We surmise
this womnn colors her hafr. - We think It is white and curly,
You hl better be enreful ns thise peeple nre on the lookout.
The post-minster will tell you my wife und 1 nro all right, hut
it woulil be botter to Inguiro s it might eause sunplelon by
these portiea If they aro the Hendem. 1 will bet my ranch
an |t.

July 18th, 1902,
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CHAPTER XXXVIIL
Frank Ayors Dead.

Mun Who Clanimed to he Kute Blender's Husbund,
Murdered.

Fort Collins, Col. April § —Frank Ayers, who about two
years ago, gained considernble notoriety by charging his
wife with belng a member of the notorlous Dender famlly,
of Kansas, was found shot through tho head and mortally
wounded near his home in Owl Canon, twenty miles north-
cast of here. A ranch hand who reported the case Lo the
authoritice naid that he was riding by and heard the shots.

Upon investigation he found Ayres lying on the ground
with a ritle and revolver beshile him.  Ho hns been de-
tained pending inveatigation by the coroner.

Ayera led the uwuthoritios of Knnss on u long wild goose
chase In 1901, when he clolmed tho standing rewnrd offered
for the arrest of the Benders,  He safd he had morried Knto
Bender and ahe had tried to kill him nfter she had confessed
that she waa really Kate Bender.

Thic officers went to Fort Collins to nrrest the womnn and
then found thot Ayers was totolly rresponsible and that the
woman wis not Kate Bender,

Further concerning this case the Kanras City Journal of
April I, rays:

The coroner left for Owl Canyon to-night and will hold an
inquest. It has not been learned whether the shooting wos
done by Ayres or not.

Frank Ayres, aboul t(wo ycars ago, acquired some
notoriety by appenring In Kansas Clty dressed In woman's
clothes. Ile gave his name and nddress, and wos released
Ly the police.

He Inter enused the arrest of his wile, charging her with
Lelng 0 member of tha notorious Bender family, of Kansaa,
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A couplo of yeam ago Ayres created n sensation In thie
County, the sceno of the notorlous Bender murders, and wus
glven much publicity at the time.

Ho clothed himself with mystery and was cvasive in
stalements.  llowever, hie succeeded In enlisting the Com-
missioners in his tale and as o result o trip wos moade to Fort
Collins by E. L.. Burton, representing the County, and V.
Monyhnn, Frank Dicnst and M. E. Sparks, the three lntter
wero residents formerly of Oaage township, and acquaninted
with the Dendoers nt the timo the erimes were committed.

The trip was frultless us investigation revenled that the
partica suspected were not the oneas wanted, and thot Ayres’
stutementa were not to bo relied upaon.

CHAPTER XXXIX.

Story of the Fate of the Bender Family Told by Muan
Who Helped Pursue Them.

Speciul Dispatel ta the Globe-Democral.

Chicago, Il., July 12—George Evans Downer, of Downer's
Grove, who on his death bed han tifted the vell of secrecy
from the futo of tho infamous Bender family of Kansas, s
was told excluslvely in Sunday’a Globe-Democrat, Is n grand-
son of Plerce Downer, who founded the settlement of Down-
er's Grove In 1833, and for over Lhirty ycars has Jived the
life of n respected and honored business man of the Chicogo
suburb.

1lundredns of storics of the fute of the Bender family have
been told, und nt frequent Intervals men and women have
been necused of belng members of the munlerera.  Several
confexserd Lthat the chargo was Lrue, and two were tried on
it, but In every case jt was proved conclusively that the per-
sons were either unjustly nccused, insane, or notoricly-scek-
Ing cranks.

Downer's wonderful story, however, is not from heamay,
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not from rumeor or “'reasonlng,” but s the reeltul of nn eye-
witnes who watched the fiends at work, who helped to or-
ganize the posse which pursued the tlying murderers, nid
who wius prsent with gun in hand when fother, mother, son
and daughter were sent to death.

And then on oath was tnkeen that has made the fote of the
Benders o my»tery all these yeor,

Wife Waa lo Receal Story.

To his wlfe Downer by 10ld the story o hundred times
since thelr marringe twenty years ago, nnd It was under-
stood that alie, who knew the story by heart, shauld give
it to the world after his death,

But for many months he has been lving on n alek bed
wulting for the end brooding over lils wild Western Hie In
the ‘sixtics and enrly ‘seventica,  The welght of hia reeret
has been an ever greater burden to ilm, and ot lust ho ex-
pressed the desire to have the matter acttled before bls death,

After this decislon hie beeumo rapldly weaker, und when
the time came to take down the story It wus only pousible
for his wife to well It in his presence, In hls words na she re-
membered them, with occaslannl corrections nnd ndditions
by the dying mun.

While living in Independence, Knnsas, he beenme nnem-
bier of the vigloanee committee, as In those lawless dayn sich
orpunizations were the only means of keeping order nnd pro-
tecting life.  He hind considernble success In gevernl eriminal
cases, and when prople began to disappenr on the rond from
Orage Misslon to Independence he hod o desire to solve the
myatery.  This daslre was incrensed when Dr. W, H., Yorlk
disappeared, nnd he with severnl other members of the
vigilnnce committee, et themselves about to find the mur-
dem,

How Clew waa Secured,

His fimt clew came from o womnn canvisser who hind np-
penled to n lawyer to recover pome goods In the poxsesalon
of the Bendern.

She had reached the Bender house in the ufternoon nnd
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nlter selling somo goods to Kute she wan Invited Lo spend
tho evening with thom, and nfter supper the family inslsted
thint shie remnin for Lthe night.

While Knto wos washing tho dishes ier brother John eame
into tho roem und sturted Lo shiarpen un ugly looking knife.
‘I'hls wns too much for the wemnn, who was already terrifled
by the ovll looks exchanged by the fnmily, and Insistence
Lthint she stuy all nlglt,

She fled to the woods nnd hid in n creek while the Benders
hunted for her.  Later she mode her wny to Independence,
The lnwyor thought there wan nothing Lo the slory, ns the
poods were roturned, but §t proved the clisw that led Lo the
end of e fumily of butchern.

CHAPTER XL,
Kate Bender Reported Dead.,

The Globe-Democrat  published  the following
dispalches:

Cullforninn Says Womnn Known as Mrs. I'ecters Con-
feased to EHHm.

Rio Viata, Cul,, May 6—Kauale Bendor, of the notorious
[amily of Knnsus murderers, Is dend here, ncrording to as
slntement mndo to-dny by John Colllns. ‘The womnn waos
known ns Mm. Gavin nnd Inter us Mms. Pelers.  Collins
declures the womun gave him n detulled neecount of many
murders whielh she and her brother commltied fn (he Dender
home al Cherryvale, Kansus, In the 'soventies.

Muany Crimea Commilied,

Kunuas City, Mo., May 6.—It is not known how mnny
murders the notorious Dender fumlly committed while
living In Knnans,

Tho (amily consisted of Wm. Dender, aged 60: his wife,
nged 66; Knte, nged 26, nnd John, uged 23 yenrs.  Kute
nnd John weree childeen of Wm. Dender by o former wife.
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The Denders kept a little store, which Is belioved, however,
to have been mointained only ns a decoy lor traveler.

Raote Bender professed to bo o mngnetle healer. Her
role was to make love to the unfortunato wayfarers who
sought shelter at the Bender house and Jure them (o a cor-
ner of n room where her brother concealed behind a curtain,
would crush their skulls with heavy clubs. Robbery was the
motive of the crimes.  Aflter tho lamlly fled, the bodies
of nine victims were found on the Dender place.

The foregoing was published May 8, 1910.

The San Francisco Examiner, dated May 6,
1910, published the lollowing dispatch:

NINE DODIES FOUND IN BENDER CELLAR

llow many Persons the Familly Slew Never Knowng
Gang's Fate n Mystery.

Knnaas City (Mo.,) Moy 6.—It I3 not known how many
murders the notorlous Bender [nmily commlitied while
living the carly '70s in Labette County Knnans, ‘Tho fumlly
consisted of William Bender, slxty years old; his wile, nged
fifty-five ycnrs; Kate twenty-five years old, and John,
twenty-three. Kate and John were children of Willinm
Bender by o former wife.

Kate Dender professed to be n magnetic healer. The
Bender house was situated on the main highway between
Independence, Kanaas, and the Osage Mlsslon. The Ben-
deru kept a little store supplied with food for men ond beaat,
but it was sald to have been n decoy for weary travelers
rather than anything clse.

The Benders lived in a frame house, alout twenty leet
long and sixteen feet wide, The ono room was divided by
canvas partition dmwn tightly over upright scantlings.
This partition was the death trap.

The victim wasa decoyed to a sent near the ennvas. Kate,
behind the canvas, would render the victim sonseless with a
hammer. If the blow was not fatal, the old man followed
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with blown on the lemplo. Then the throat was cut.  Alter
the body was roblied, it wns Lthrown Into the cellar through n
“blind door."

After the family fled, nine bodies were found on tha place.

The murder of Doctor York, of Independence, led to the
undoing of the murderers. llis brother, A. M. York, of

“ort Scott, inatituted a seareh and found nine bodies on the
Bender ploce, Including that of his Lrother.

The fate of the Dender famlily has never been definltely
known. At varlous times permons who have claimed to have
been members of o posse Lhat purmued the family have glven
oul statements. Somc huve sald that the entire (amlily was
killed. Others have stated thut Kate escoped.



